DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of
Brainbees Solutions Limited

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31,
2024 “Financial Year under review”.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company's financial performance for the Financial Year under review along with previous
Financial Year’s figures is given hereunder:

Standalone Consolidated
For the For the For the For the
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
(In Rupees millions)

Revenue from operations 21,632.10 25,418.92 64,808.56 56,325.39
Other Income 1,032.49 987.27 942.25 987.37
Total Income 22664.59 26,406.19 65,750.81 57,312.76
Less : Expenses 23,286.53 27,970.12 68965.88 62,717.00
Add: Fair valuation of - - - 543.68
consideration payable to
selling shareholders due
to business combination
Net Profit/(Loss) after (621.94) (1,563.93) (3,215.07) (4860.56)
Tax
Net Profit/(Loss) after (621.94) (1,563.93) (3,215.07) (4860.56)
Dividend and Tax

Note: The above figures are extracted from the standalone and consolidated financial statements
as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

The Company is engaged in the business of buying, selling, advertising, promoting maternity,
baby and kids products on a wholesale basis through various channels and providing facilitation
services in education, training and other related activities. The Company is also a single brand
retailer and operates stores under the brand name Babyhug. The revenue from operations of the
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Company has decreased from Rs. 25418.92/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31,
2023 to Rs. 21,632.10/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 on a standalone
basis and increased from Rs. 56,325.39/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 to
Rs. 64,808.56/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 on a consolidated basis.
The Company had a net loss of Rs. 621.94/-millions in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
as against net loss of Rs. 1,563.93/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 on a
standalone basis and a net loss of Rs. 3,215.07/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31,
2024 as against net loss of Rs. 4,860.56/- millions in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023
on a consolidated basis.

3. CONVERSION OF THE COMPANY FROM PRIVATE LIMITED TO A PUBLIC
LIMITED COMPANY

Your Company was converted into a Public Limited Company effective November 02, 2023
upon issue of fresh certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies, Pune, Maharashtra
and accordingly private word has been removed from the name of the Company, leading to a
consequent amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

4. ANNUAL RETURN

As per provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’),
the Annual Return of the Company is placed on the website of the Company at
https://www firstcry.com/investor-relations/compliances

5. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration under Section 149 (7) of the
Act, that they meet the criteria laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Act read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014..

6. STATEMENT REGARDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As required under Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in the opinion of the
Board of Directors of your Company, the Independent Directors comprise persons of high repute
and possess relevant expertise, proficiency and experience in their respective fields.

7.  DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board by diversifying its composition so
that the Company gets the benefit out of such diversity in befter and improved decision making.
To achieve this the Company has adopted and has in place the “Board Diversity Policy” and the
objective of this Policy is to ensure that the Board is fully diversified and comprises of an ideal
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, with
diverse backgrounds. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
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Board which possesses a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends remuneration of the Directors,
subject to overall limits set under the Act, as outlined in the Remuneration Policy. The salient
features of the policy are as listed out below:

e The policy sets out the guiding principles for the Human Resource Department and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to the Board the
remuneration policy of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management
and other employees of the Company.

e Ensures the composition of remuneration is reasonable and industry comparative to
attract, retain and motivate the employees at different levels

o Ensures therelationship of remuneration to performance is transparent and well disclosed
to its employees ahead of payment.

e Remuneration has a balance between fixed and variable pay and is supported with
suitable long-term incentives, on need basis.

The aforementioned policies are available on the website of the Company at
https://www firstcry.com/investor-relations/policies-compliances.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act the Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of the Board as a whole, its Committees, and the directors individually including
Independent Directors as per the framework as laid down by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee pursuant fo its terms of reference and approved by the Board.

Based on the inputs from all the directors on board composition and structure, effectiveness of
board processes, information, and functioning, etc., evaluation of Board’s performance was done.
The performance of the committees was also evaluated by the Board after seeking input from the
committee members on composition, effectiveness of committee and its meetings. In a separate
meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non- Independent Directors, the Board as a
whole and the Chairman of the Company were evaluated, taking into account the views of
Executive directors and Non- Executive Directors.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board reviewed the performance of
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to
the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful
and constructive contribution and inpufs in meefings, etc.
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9. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year under

review.

10. DIVIDEND:

The Company has incurred losses and hence, do not recommend any dividend for the Financial
Year 2023-24.

11. RESERVES:

The closing balance of the retained earnings of the Company for the Financial Year 2023- 2024
was Rs. 2,672.77 /- millions. During the Financial Year under review, following amounts were
transferred to below specified reserves:

Reserves Amount in INR (In millions)
Securities Premium 3601.8
Shares Options Outstanding Account 1,691.5

12. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company, as on March 31, 2024, has 9 (nine) subsidiaries and 26 (Twenty-six) step-down
subsidiaries and no associate company and joint venture, the details of which are as follows:

S. Name of Subsidiaries/ Step Type of Instrument | No. of Shares held as on
No. Down Subsidiaries 31.03.2024
1. | Intellibees Solutions Private Equity Shares 9,999 shares of INR 10/-
Limited each
2. | Joybees Private Limited Equity Shares 9.999 shares of INR 10/-
each
3. | Swara Baby Products Private Equity Shares 9,256,500 shares of INR
Limited 10/- each
Series A 1,28,48,221 shares of INR
Compulsorily 10/- each
Convertible
Preference Shares
4. | Firmroots Private Limited Equity Shares 54,600 shares of INR 10/-
each
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S. Name of Subsidiaries/ Step Type of Instrument | No. of Shares held as on
No. Down Subsidiaries 31.03.2024
Seed C Compulsorily | 715 shares of INR 10/-
Convertible each
Preference Shares
5. | Solis Hygiene Private Limited Series Al Equity 52,890 shares of INR 10/-
Shares each
6. | Digital Age Retail Private Equity Shares 10,49,979 shares of INR
Limited 10/- each
7. | Globalbees Brands Private Equity Shares 75,259 shares of INR 5/-
Limited each
Series C Equity 7,906 shares of INR 5/-
Shares each
8. | Firstcry Management DWC- Equity Shares *240,000,000 shares of
LLC (United Arab Emirates) AED 1/-each
9. Shenzhen Starbees Services Monetary RMB 1,414,363.18/-
Limited Contribution
(People's Republic of China)
10. | Firstery Retail DWC-LLC Equity Shares ** 141,099,000 shares of
(United Arab Emirates) AED 1/-each
(WOS of Firstcry Management
DWC-LLC)
11. | Firstcry General Trading LLC Equity Shares 100 shares of AED 1,000/-
(United Arab Emirates) each
(WOS of Firstery Retail DWC-
LLC)
12. | Firstery Trading Company Quotas 1600 quotas of SAR
(Kingdom of Saudi Arabia) 100,000/- each
(WOS of Firstcry Management
DWC-LLC)
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S. Name of Subsidiaries/ Step Type of Instrument | No. of Shares held as on
No. Down Subsidiaries 31.03.2024
13. | Better & Brighter Home Care Equity Shares 46,400 shares of INR 10/-
Private Limited each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
14. | Butternut  Ventures Private Equity Shares 31,667 shares of INR 10/-
Limited each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
15. | Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited Equity Shares 45,900 shares of INR 10/-
each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
16. | Dynamic IT Solution Private Equity Shares 29,728 shares of INR 10/-
Limited each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
17. | Eyezen Technologies Private Equity Shares 51,000 shares of INR 10/-
Limited each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
18. | Maxinique Solution Private Equity Shares 35,371 shares of INR 10/-
Limited each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees Compulsorily 69,930 debentures of INR
Brands Private Limited) Convertible 10/- each
Debentures
19. | Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Equity Shares 69,310,642 shares of INR
Private Limited 1/-each
subs;d;a.r.y Ef . (:Jilobalbees Non- Convertible 4 debentures of INR
rands Private Limited) Debentures 50,00.000/- each
20. | Mush Textile Private Limited Equity Shares 11,450 shares of INR 10/-
each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
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S. Name of Subsidiaries/ Step Type of Instrument | No. of Shares held as on
No. Down Subsidiaries 31.03.2024
21. | Kuber Mart Industries Private Equity Shares 22,900 shares of INR 10/-
Limited each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
22. | HS Fitness Private Limited Equity Shares 80,000 shares of INR 10/-
each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
23. | DF Pharmacy Limited Compulsorily 90,00,000 debentures of
Convertible INR 1/-each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees Debentures
Brands Private Limited)
24. | Candes Technology Private Equity Shares 58,424 shares of INR 1/-
Limited each
(Subsidiary ~ of  Globalbees Compulsorily 17,544 shares of INR 1/-
Brands Private Limited) Convertible each
Preference Shares
25. | Encasa Homes Private Limited Equity Shares 1,67,481 shares of INR
10/- each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
26. | Frootle India Private Limited Equity Shares 5,495 shares of INR 10/-
each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
27. | TW Brands Private Limited Equity Shares 3,090 shares of INR 10/-
each
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
28. | Kitchenopedia Appliances Compulsorily 10,409 shares of INR 10/-
Private Limited Convertible each
Preference Shares
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
29. | Plantex E-Commerce Private Compulsorily 15,000 shares of INR 10/-
Limited Convertible each
Preference Shares
(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)
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S. Name of Subsidiaries/ Step Type of Instrument | No. of Shares held as on
No. Down Subsidiaries 31.03.2024

30. | Prayosha Expo Private Limited Equity Shares 7,000 shares of INR 10/-
each

(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)

31. | Solarista Renewables Private Compulsorily 11,052 shares of INR 10/-
Limited Convertible each

Preference Shares

(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)

32. | Wellspire India Private Limited Equity Shares 5,100 shares of INR 10/-
each

(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)

33. | Globalbees Brands DWC Equity Shares 14,21,000 shares of AED
1/- each

(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)

34. | Healthyhey Foods LLP Partnership Interest | Contribution- INR
60,000/-

(Subsidiary of  Globalbees
Brands Private Limited)

35. | Swara Hygiene Private Limited Equity Shares 9.999 shares of INR 10/-
each

(Subsidiary of Swara Baby
Products Private Limited)

*Your Company has invested AED 60,000,000 on February 7, 2024 by way of equity investment,
for which the share certificate is yet to be received. Pursuant to the aforesaid investment, your
Company’s investment in Firstcry Management DWC-LLC will be AED 300,000,000, divided
into 300,000,000, equity shares of AED 1 each.

**Firstcry Management has invested AED 1,176,000 on March 26, 2024 for which share
certificate is yet to be received. Pursuant to the aforesaid investment, Firstcry Management will
hold total investment of AED 142,275,000 divided into 142,275,000 equity shares of AED 1 each
in Firstcry Retail DWC - LLC.

During the Financial Year under review, no company has become or ceased to be the Subsidiary,
Joint Ventures or Associate Company of the Company.

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are prepared in
accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. Further, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the
subsidiaries in the prescribed format Form AOC- 1 is appended as “Annexure — 1’ which forms
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part of this report. The statement also provides details of performance and financial position of
the subsidiaries.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Act are given in the notes to Financial Statements forming part of the Annual Report.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

All Related Party Transactions (RPTs) that were entered into by the Company during the
Financial Year under review were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of
business. The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub
section (1) of Section 188 of the Act entered into by the Company during the Financial Year
ended 31* March, 2024 is annexed hereto as Annexure - ‘2’ in prescribed Form AOC-2 and forms
part of this report.

15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
Since the Company is mainly engaged in wholesale business, the Company does not consume a
substantial amount of energy. However, the Company has strived to imbibe energy conservation

principles and initiatives across all its facilities.

i. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Key Initiatives taken across are highlighted below:
The Company has continued usage of the electric manual switches that were installed in each
work station at the registered office which has led to considerable saving of energy levels and the

electricity costs.

ii. The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy:

The Company has also installed new-age energy efficient LED fittings and motion sensors in its
various warehouses across India which has helped us to reduce the energy consumption. The
Company is also discussing with various landlords of its warehouses to set up solar energy as a
green source of energy.

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

The Company constantly evaluates new developments and invests into latest energy efficient
euipments.
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16. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The Company does not have any formal Research and Development Department. However,
efforts are always made for the improvements in its process controls, control over the time and

materials wastages. Expenditures on such activities cannot be identified separately.

i The efforts made towards technology absorption: The Company has not absorbed any
technology from any source.

ii.  The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution: Not Applicable

fii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year): Not Applicable

(a) the details of technology imported: Not Applicable
(b) the year of import: Not Applicable
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: Not Applicable .

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons
thereof: Not Applicable

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not Applicable

17. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the Financial Year, foreign exchange outgo was Rs. 9,54,98.871.52/- and foreign
exchange earnings were Rs. 57,30,70,261.4/-.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT:

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization. The
Company has a robust risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks and
also to identify business opportunities. As a process, the risks associated with the business are
identified and prioritized based on severity, likelihood and effectiveness of current detection. The
Company has devised necessary policy, constituted a Risk Management Committee and prepared
a framework for development and implementation of risk management including identification
therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence
of the Company.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the Company has adequate system
of internal control commensurate with its size, scale, nature, and complexity of business to ensure
safeguarding of its assets and investments against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. The Audit Committee
reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control environment and monitors
the implementation of audit recommendations.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace and an Internal Complaint Committee in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 for reporting and conducting inquiry into the complaints made by the victim
on the harassments at the work place.

Your Company believes that a sustainable company is built on a foundation of good governance
that promotes ethical behavior at all levels and continues to reinforce the right environment.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual
harassment and hence, there were no complaints pending for redressal as on 31st March, 2024.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the statutory auditors and external consultant(s)
and the reviews performed by Management, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2023- 2024.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to
the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(i) inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31,2024, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there was no material departure from the
same;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2024 and of the loss for the period
from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024;
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(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
(v)  they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the

year: and

(vi) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

22. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
MANAGEMENT ACT, 1999

The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management
Act, 1999 during the financial year 2023-24.

23. SHARE CAPITAL
During the Financial Year under review, the Authorized share capital of the Company has
increased from Rs. 100,47,30,030 (Rupees One Hundred Crores Forty Seven Lacs Thirty
Thousand and Thirty One) to Rs. 120,47,30,030 (Rupees One Hundred Twenty Crores Forty
Seven Lacs Thirty Thousand and Thirty One) as on March 31, 2024.
The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 93,68,97,530 (Ninety Three
Crores Sixty Eight Lacs Ninety Seven Thousand Five Hundred Thirty) to Rs, 96,66,98,940
(Ninety Six Crores Sixty Six Lacs Ninety Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Forty) as on March 31,
2024,

a. Buy Back of Securities
The Company has not bought back any securities during the Financial Year 2023-24.

b. Sweat Equity
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the Financial Year under review.

C. Bonus Shares

The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the Financial Year under review.

d. Employees Stock Option Plan
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The Company established three share option plans “Brainbees Employee Stock Option Plan-
2011 which was deemed to come into force on May 31, 2011 and “Brainbees Employees Stock
Option Plan 2022 which came into force on January 21, 2022 and Brainbees Employees Stock
Option Plan 2023 which came into force on December 21, 2023 (“ESOP Plans™). The ESOP
Plans entitle the employees to purchase shares in the Company. Under this plan, holders of vested
options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price provided in the option agreement
signed with the respective holders of the options. All the options have a vesting condition of 25%
every year over a period of 4 years for employees under the Brainbees Employee Stock Option
Plan- 2011 and Brainbees Employees Stock Option Plan 2022. Under the Brainbees Employees
Stock Option Plan 2023, the vesting period is 25% every year over a period of 4 years for other
employees and for the management employees the vesting period is on the performance basis.
Please refer to Note 44 of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March,
2024 for details.

Disclosure as required pursuant to Rule 12(9) of The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 stating details of options moment during the financial year 2023-24 under
Employee Stock Option Schemes is provided below:

Sr. ESOP Plans ESOP 2011 ESOP 2022 ESOP 2023
No.

1 options granted - 5,28,224 -

2 options vested 3,04,891 20,12,835 -

3 options exercised - - -

4 the total number of shares - - -

arising as a result of
exercise of option

5 options lapsed 23,985 1,68,081 -
6 the exercise price INR 7.44 - INR 2 -
INR 28.09

7 variation of terms of none none none
options

8 money  realized by - - -
exercise of options

9 total number of options in 15,38,451 2,43,30,351 -
force

Under ESOP 2023, out of the total 24,834,508 options, 14,900,705 Equity Shares have been
issued to Brainbees ESOP Trust on December 27, 2023 and no options have been granted.

Conversions/ Rights Issue/ Private Placement

The Company has not issued any Shares through Rights Issue or Private Placement during the
year under review.
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24. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
As on March 31, 2024, following were the Directors of your Company:-

i. Mr. Supam Satyanarayan Maheshwari (DIN: 01730685);
iii. Mr. Sanket Raghavendra Hattimattur (DIN: 09593712);
iti. Mr. Paul Alexander Davison (DIN: 08457025);

iv.  Ms. Bala C Deshpande (DIN: 00020130);

V. Mr. Gopalakrishnan Jagadeeswaran (DIN: 02354467);
vi.  Ms. Sujata Vilas Bogawat (DIN:07901334); and

vii.  Mr. Neeraj Sagar (DIN: 09475452).

As on March 31, 2024, following were the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company:-

i. Mr. Supam Satyanarayan Maheshwari (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer);
ii. Mr. Gautam Sharma (Group Chief Financial Officer); and
iii. Ms. Neelam Jethani (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer).

During the year under review, there were following changes occurred in the Board of the
Company:

Appointment/Re-appointment/Resignation:

e Mr. Zhooben Dossabhoy Bhiwandiwala (DIN: 00110373) and Mr. Akshay Tanna (DIN:
02967021) resigned as a director of the company with effect from April 12, 2023 and May 24,
2023 respectively.

e Mr. Supam Maheshwari( DIN: 01730685) was re-appointed as Managing Director of the
company for further period of 5 (Five) years with effect from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2029.
Further He was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the company with effect from
December 1, 2023

e Mr. Puneet Renjhen (DIN: 09498488)) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board
of the Company with effect from April 24, 2023. He was appointed as a Director of the
Company pursuant to approval of Shareholders at the 13™ Annual General Meeting held on
September 29, 2023. Further, he resigned as a director of the company with effect from
December 26, 2023.

e Mr. Simit Batra (DIN: 09739615) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the
Company with effect from May 25, 2023. He was appointed as a Director of the Company
pursuant to approval of Shareholders at the 13™ Annual General Meeting held on September
29, 2023. Further, he resigned as a director of the company with effect from December 26,
2023.

e Mr. Amitava Saha (DIN: 02655827), Mr. Vikas Agnihotri (DIN: 08174465), Mr. Amit Gupta
(DIN: 02282600) and Mr. Atul Gupta (DIN: 06940578) resigned as a director of the company
with effect from December 26, 2023
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The Board of Directors wish to place on record the appreciation for the contributions made by
outgoing Directors of the Company during their association with the Company.

Retirement by Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Companies (Management
& Administration) Rules, 2014, Mr. Paul Alexander Davison (DIN: 08457025), Non -
Executive Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. Item seeking your approval on the above
is included in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. Brief resume and other
requisite details as stipulated under Secretarial Standard — 2 on General Meetings of the
Directors being appointed/re-appointed forms part of the Notice of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

25. BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the company met 9 times to transact the
business of company in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 173 (1) of the Companies
Act read with Rules made thereunder.

26. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, the Board of Directors had the following Committees in order to
effectively cater to their duties:

I.  Audit Committee;
The Company has constituted the Audit Committee vide resolution in the Board of

Directors meeting dated May 2, 2022. The Audit Committee met 3 times during the
financial year under review and comprises of four Directors as below:

Sr. Name of the Director Em-.cutwe;-F Non- Ind-ependentf Non-

No. executive independent

1. Mr. Gopalakrishnan Non-Executive  Independent
Jagadeeswaran
(Chairperson)

2. Ms. Bala C Deshpande Non-Executive  Independent

3. Mr. Neeraj Sagar Non-Executive  Independent

4. Ms. Sujata Bogawat Non-Executive  Independent

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

II. Nomination And Remuneration Committee;

The Company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee vide resolution
in the Board of Directors meeting dated May 02, 2022 and further re-constituted by way
of a Board resolution dated December 16, 2023. The Committee met 3 times during the
financial year under review and comprises of three Directors as below:
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Sr. Name of the Director EX('CIIﬁV(‘{ Non- Ind-ependentf Non-
No. executive independent
L. Mr. Neeraj Sagar Non-executive Independent
(Chairperson)
2. Ms. Bala C Deshpande Non-executive Independent
3. Ms. Sujata Bogawat. Non-executive Independent

III.  Stakeholder Relationship Committee;

The Company has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee vide resolution in
the Board of Directors meeting dated May 02, 2022 and further re-constituted by a
resolution of a Board dated December 16, 2023. The Committee comprises of three
Directors as below:

Sr. Name of the Director Executivei’ Non- Ind-ependent! Non-
No. executive independent
L. Ms. Sujata Bogawat Non-executive Independent
(Chairperson)
2. Mr. Supam Maheshwari Executive Non-independent
3. Ms. Bala C Deshpande Non-executive Independent

During the financial year 2023-2024, provisions of Stakeholder Relationship Committee
were not applicable to the company, hence no meeting of Stakeholder Relationship
Committee were required to be held.

IV.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee vide
resolution in the Board of Directors meeting dated May 02, 2022 and further re-
constituted by a resolution of Board dated December 16, 2023. The Committee met once
during the financial year under review and comprises of three Directors as below:

Sr. Name of the Director Execuﬁve{ Non- Ind'epemientfr Non-
No. executive independent
1. Mr. Supam Maheshwari  Executive Non-independent
(Chairperson)
2. Mr. Neeraj Sagar Non-executive Independent
3. Mr. Sanket Hattimattur | Executive Non-independent

V.  Risk Management Committee

The Company has constituted Risk Management Committee vide resolution in the Board
of Directors meeting dated May 02, 2022 and further re-constituted by a resolution of
Board dated December 16, 2023. The Committee comprises of four members as below:

Sr. Name of the Director EX(‘Cllth&f Non- Ind'ependentf Non-
No. executive independent
Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340

Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
Sohrab Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com



27.

28.

29.

L. Mr. Supam Maheshwari Executive Non-independent
(Chairperson)
2. Mr. Gopalakrishnan Non-Executive Independent
Jagadeeswaran
3. Mr. Sanket Hattimattur ~ Executive Non-independent
4. Mr. Gautam Sharma Executive (Group Group CFO
CFO)

During the financial year 2023-2024, provisions of Risk Management Committee were
not applicable to the company, hence no meeting of Risk Management Committee were
required to be held.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.:
001076N/N500013) have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of
five (5) years from the conclusion of the 12® Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year ending 31* March 2027 i.e from the
financial year 2022- 2023 to the financial year 2026-2027.

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments and explanations.

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2023-2024 does not contain any qualification,
reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark.

DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENT FROM THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THIS REPORT:

Filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI)

Due to a change in the Company’s business requirements necessitating a change in the proposed
“Objects of the Offer” section in the DRHP (“Previous DRHP”), the Company had withdrawn
Previous DRHP and has filed a new DRHP with SEBI and the Stock Exchanges on April 29,
2024 for proposed listing on BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

There are no other material changes and commitments occurred during April 01, 2024 till the
date of this Report which would affect the financial position of your Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)

As per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder, the Board members in its meeting formulated a CSR Policy and constituted a CSR
Committee to look after CSR initiatives of the Company. The Annual report on the CSR activities
of the Company is annexed herewith as “Annexure —3”.
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31.

32.

33.

34.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under the provisions of Companies Act,
2013.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules prescribed thereunder
is implemented through the Company’s Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to enable the
Directors, employees and all stakeholders of the Company to report genuine concerns, to provide
for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make
provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy is available on
website of the company at https://www.firstcry.com/investor-relations/policies-compliances

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

During the Financial Year under review , the Company had been converted into public limited
company having paid-up share capital of more than Rs. 50 Crores and turnover more than Rs.
250 crores, the Company was required to appoint Secretarial Auditor pursuant to Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. In view of the same, the board appointed
M/s. Samdani Kabra & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of
the Company, for the financial year 2023-2024.

During the Financial Year under review, there are no qualifications, adverse remarks or
disclaimers made by the Secretarial Auditor in their Secretarial Audit Report, which is annexed
herewith as an Annexure 4.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items

as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year alongwith their status as at the end of
the financial year;

c. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof;

d. The Managing Director of the Company did not receive any remuneration or commission
from any of its subsidiaries;

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
Sohrab Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com



C
Ceom

e. No frauds were reported by auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013; to
the Audit Committee or Board; and

f.  No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to customers, employees, bankers, business
associates, vendors and consultants, and various Government Authorities for their continued
support extended to your Company’s activities during the year under review. Y our Directors also
acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on your
Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BRAINBEES SOLUTIONS LIMITED /nbes\
Supam Maheshwari Sanket Hattimattur \;;‘_; _
Managing Director & CEO Executive Director & Chief of staff
DIN: 01730685 DIN: 09593712
Date: July 05, 2024 Date: July 05, 2024
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ANNEXURE -1

FORMNO. AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
OF SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Name and
country of the
subsidiary

Intellibees

Solutions
Private
Limited

Swara Baby
Products
Private
Limited

Firmroots
Private
Limited

Solis
Hygiene
Private
Limited

Joybees
Private
Limited

Globalbees
Brands
Private
Limited

Shenzhen
Starbees
Services
Limited

(People's
Republic of
China)

Firstcry
Manageme
nt DWC-
LLC
(United
Arab
Emirates)

The date since
when
subsidiary was
acquired

19-06-2015

23-04-2020

26-12-2020

16-03-2021

01-02-2022

16-06-2021

13-08-2019

04-04-2019

Reporting
period for the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different from
the  holding
company’s
reporting
period

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

January to
December

NA

Reporting
currency and
Exchange rate
as on the last
date of the
relevant
Financial year
in the case of

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

CNY-11.53

AED-22.69
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foreign
subsidiaries.
Amount in INR (In Millions)
5. | Share capital 0.10
257.01 0.81 0.67 0.10 0.80 1.41 300.00
6. | Reserves & -0.86
surplus 2,234.05 73.06 574.02 - 13,287.51 1.23 2.09
7. | Total Assets
5.06 4,095.06 9145 1,802.03 0.10 22,552.97 3.80 302.42
8. | Total
Liabilities 5.83 1,604.00 17.58 1,227.34 - 9,264.67 1.16 0.33
9. | Investments
- 0.10 - - - 19,308.85 - 299.35
10.| Turnover
- 6.864.97 4847 1,838.31 - 70.97 4,90 1.66
11.| Profit/ (Loss)
before
-0.67 795.52 -23.22 234.93 - -589.53
taxation 0.31 0.03
12.{ Provision for
taxation - 208.79 - 11.75 - 3.39 0.02 -
13.| Profit/ (Loss)
after taxation -0.67 586.73 -23.22 223.17 - -592.92 0.30 0.03
14.] Proposed NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Dividend
15.| % of
. 100.00% 86.01% 67.90% | 79.34% | 100.00% 52.15% 100.00% | 100.00%
shareholding
Sr. | Particulars Subsidiaries
No.
1. | Name of the | Firstcry Firstery Firstcry | Edubees | HS Fitness DF Candes |[Healthyhe
subsidiary Retail DWC-| General Trading |Educationa| Private |[PharmacyTechnolog y Foods
LLC Trading Compan 1Trust |Limited****[Limited** y Private | LLP****
L.L.C. y **  |Limited**
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(United Arab
Emirates)*

(United Arab
Emirates)**

(Kingdom
of Saudi
Arabia)***

The date since
when
subsidiary
was acquired

10-04-2019

07-07-2019

17-02-2020

28-10-2019

28-01-2022

17-02-
2022

31-03-
2022

11-11-
2021

Reporting
period for the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different from
the holding
company’s
reporting
period

NA

NA

January to
December

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Reporting
currency and
Exchange
rate as on the
last date of the
relevant
Financial
year in the
case of foreign
subsidiaries.

AED-22.69

AED-22.69

SAR-
22.20

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Amount in INR (In Millions)

Share capital

141.10

0.10

160.00

0.01

1.00

15.00

0.12

Reserves &
surplus

125.70

0.75

95.90

-54.72

107.32

651.56

-21.03

16.17

Total Assets

62.85

6.99

100.57

40.25

111.46

756.33

466.91

51.58

Total
Liabilities

47.44

6.14

36.47

94.96

217.78

89.76

487.82

3541

Investments

0.10
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10.| Turnover
219.95 236.36 89.32 38.59 296.50 222.59 681.77 | 227.12
11.| Profit/ (Loss)
before - -
taxation 16.05 0.55 58.14 -9.52 78.77 -72.14 | -182.31 11.29
12.| Provision for
taxation - - - -0.87 -0.46 4.83 0.46 4.00
13.| Profit/ (Loss) - - -
after taxation 16.05 0.55 58.14 -8.65 78.31 -76.98 | -182.76 7.29
14.| Proposed NA NA NA NA NA NA | Na NA
Dividend
15.| % of
. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 80.00% 60.00% | 61.86% | 60.00%
shareholding
Sr. | Particulars Subsidiaries
No.
1. | Name of the | Better & | Butternut | Cloud |Dynamic| Eyezen Maxiniq Merhaki Mush Kuber
subsidiary Brighter | Ventures | Lifestyle IT Technolog ue Foods and | Textile Mart
Homecare Private | Private | Solution fies PrivateSolution] Nutrition | Private | Industr
Private |Limited*** Limited** Private [Limited**|Private| Private |Limited**| ies
Limited** * Limited** w* Limited| Limited**** w* Private
2. | The date | 29-10- |04-12-2021| 15-11- 18-12- 15-11- | 18-10- | 29-09-2021 | 29-12- 08-12-
since when | 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
subsidiary
was acquired
3. | Reporting NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
period  for
the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different
from the
holding
company’s
reporting
period
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Reporting
currency and
Exchange
rate as on the
last date of
the relevant
Financial
year in the
case of
foreign
subsidiaries.

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Amount in INR (In

Millions)

Share capital

0.80

0.42

0.51

0.58

1.00

151.02

69.31

022

0.31

Reserves &
surplus

50.04

57.55

-24.00

41.82

-6.89

-89.68

1,090.25

9.45

1.523.46

Total Assets

59.77

94.52

28.06

113.78

6.25

62.29

3,025.91

36.97

1,688.26

Total
Liabilities

893

36.55

51.54

71.38

12.13

0.94

1,866.35

27.30

164.49

Investments

0.06

10.

Turnover

100.41

111.40

130.66

273.97

3.57

26.99

3,444.28

63.04

1,089.66

11.

Profit/ (Loss)
before
taxation

18.68

-15.93

-4.76

-102.07

-7.35

-188.85

435.12

-10.13

-78.49

12,

Provision for
taxation

3.11

0.25

0.00

0.07

0.00

-60.56

13,

Profit/ (Loss)
after
taxation

15.57

-16.19

-4.76

-102.07

-7.35

-188.85

435.19

-10.13

-17.93

14,

Proposed
Dividend

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

15,

% of
shareholding

58%

76.00%

90.00%

51%

51.00%

51.26%

100.00%

51.54%

74.00%
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Sr.
No.

Particulars

Subsidiaries

Name of the
subsidiary

Digital
Age
Retail
Private
Limited

Encasa

Homes

Private
Limited***

*

Frootle
India
Private
Limited**

E3

JW
Brands
Private

Limited**

wE

[Kitchenop
edia
Appliance
s Private
[Limited™*

* %

Plantex E-
Commerce
Private
Limited***

*

Prayosha
Expo
Private
[Limited**

EL 3

Solarista
Renewabl
es Private
Limited**

Ed 3

Wellspi
re India
Private
Limited

whwd

The date
since when
subsidiary

was acquired

02-05-
2022

20-04-2022

27-04-
2022

28-07-
2022

15-09-
2022

03-09-2022

02-05-
2022

07-04-
2022

27-04-
2022

Reporting
period

the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different
from
holding
company’s
reporting
period

for

the

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Reporting
currency and
Exchange
rate as on the
last date of
the relevant
Financial
year in the
case of
foreign
subsidiaries.

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Amount in INR (In

Millions)

Share capital

10.50

3.28

0.11

0.06

0.20

0.25

0.10

0.21

0.10
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6. | Reserves &
surplus 1,408.61 110.43 929.44 213.79 114.13 610.34 250.16 221.88 -5.81
7. | Total Assets
15,588.30| 197.32 143562 | 244.70 201.37 886.11 260.35 304.96 210.64
8. | Total
Liabilities 14,169.19| 83.61 506.07 30.86 87.03 275.52 10.10 82.87 216.35
9. | Investments
- 0.00 - - - - - - -
10.| Turnover
34,042.84| 355.24 3,061.67 | 576.79 42480 1,291.85 526.06 341.81 152.96
11.| Profit/ (Loss)
before 44917 | 7214 | 67221 | 73.69 | 29.33 3830 | 7613 | 645 -0.84
taxation
12.| Provision for
taxation -81.98 1943 167.63 18.05 5.28 - 19.76 -9.36 -
13.| Profit/ (Loss)
after 367.19 | 5271 | 504.58 | 5564 | 24.06 3830 5637 | 1581 | -0.84
taxation
14, Proposed NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Dividend
15. % of
. 100.00% | 51.00% 51.00% | 55.78% | 51.00% 60.00% 70.00% | 52.50% | 51.00%
shareholding
Sr. | Particulars Subsidiaries
No.
1. | Name of the |Globalbee, #Swara (Brainbees
subsidiary s Brands | Hygiene | ESOP
DWC Private Trust
e Limited
2. | The date | 07-12- [27-06-2022| 08-11-
since when 2021 2021
subsidiary
was acquired
3. | Reporting January to NA NA
period  for December
the
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subsidiary
concerned, if
different
from the
holding
company’s
reporting
period

Reporting
currency and
Exchange
rate as on the
last date of
the relevant
Financial
year in the
case of
foreign
subsidiaries.

22.37

NA

NA

Share capital

1.42

0.10

0.05

Reserves &
surplus

0.06

127.81

Total Assets

7.01

3.332.79

3.683.41

Total
Liabilities

5.53

3.204.88

3.683.36

Investments

3.683.41

10.

Turnover

4.35

764.32

11.

Profit/ (Loss)
before
taxation

0.10

156.29

12.

Provision for
taxation

2648
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13.| Profit/ (Loss)
after

129.81 -
taxation 0.10

14.| Proposed

NA NA NA
Dividend

15 % of

100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00%
shareholding ° ° °

* Firstcry Retail DWC-LLC (United Arab Emirates) is a step-down subsidiary of the Company (100%
subsidiary of Firstcry Management DWC-LLC).

** Firstcry Retail DWC-LLC is holding 100% stake in Firstcry General Trading LLC and Firstcry
General Trading LL.C has become Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Firstcry Retail DWC-LLC. The
ultimate parent of the group is M/s. Brainbees Solutions Limited.

*** Firstcry Trading Company (Kingdom of Saudi Arabia) is a step-down subsidiary of the Company
(100% Subsidiary of Firstcry Management DWC-LLC).

**+*These Companies are step-down subsidiaries of the Company and Subsidiaries of Globalbees
Brands Private Limited.

# This Company is a step-down subsidiary of the Company and Subsidiaries of Swara Baby Products
Private Limited.

Note:
1. Your Company have following subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:

a. Joybees Private Limited (India).

2. Your Company does not have any subsidiary which has been liquidated or sold during the year.

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
Sohrab Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures of the Company:

Sr.No. | Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Not Applicable
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was

associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the Company
on the year end

No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extent of Holding %

4. Description of how there is significant influence

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit/Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Note:
Your Company does not have any associates or joint ventures which is yet to commence operations or
which has been liquidated or sold during the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BRAINBEES SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Supam Maheshwari Sanket Hattimattur
Managing Director & CEO Executive Director & Chief of staff
DIN: 01730685 DIN: 09593712
Date: July 05, 2024 Date: July 05, 2024
Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340

Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
Sohrab Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com



ANNEXURE- 2

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY THE
COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH

TRANSACTIONS UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

S. | Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration | Salient Justification | Date(s | Amoun | Date of
No | related party | contracts/arra | of the | terms of the | for entering | )  of | tpaidas | special
and nature of | ngements/trans | contracts | contracts or | into such | appro | advanc | resoluti
relationship actions / arrangemen | contacts or | val by [ es, if| on
arrangem | ts or | arrangemen | the any:
ents/trans | transactions | ts or | Board
actions including transactions | , if
the value, if any:
any:
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
Sr. | Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration | Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount | Amount
No. | related party and | contracts/arran of the the contracts or approval of the paid as
nature of | gements/transa | contracts | arrangements or by the contracts | advance
relationship ctions / transactions Board, if / s, if
arrange including the any: arrange any:
ments/tra value, if any: ments/tra
nsactions nsactions
(InINR
Millions)
1 | Firstcry Management Investment - Investment made | Sincethis | 1,922.62 NA
DWC LLC-Wholly | made, Share Related
Owned Subsidiary based payments Share based Party 5.14
and Cost charge payments Transaction
back expense is in the
ordinary
Cost charge back | urse of | 7-50
expense business
and at
arm’s

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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Lcom)

Sr.
No.

Name(s) of the
related party and
nature of
relationship

Nature of
contracts/arran
gements/transa

ctions

Duration
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions

Salient terms of
the contracts or

al'l'angements or

transactions
including the
value, if any:

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board, if
any:

Amount
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions
(In INR
Millions)

Amount

paid as

advance
s, if
any:

length

basis,
approval of
the Board

is not
applicable.

Shenzhen  Starbees
Services Ltd.-Wholly
Owned Subsidiary

Professional
fees paid

Professional fees
paid

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.

0.08

NA

Digital Age Retail
Private Limited-
Wholly Owned
Subsidary

Sale of trading
goods, Rent
Income, License
fees, Investment
made, Share
based payments,
Purchase of
traded goods
and cross
charge.

Sale of trading
goods

Rent Income

License Fees

Share based
payments

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s

12,424 .47

494.44

12.80

49.50

NA

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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Sr. | Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration | Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount | Amount
No. | related party and | contracts/arran of the the contracts or | approval of the paid as
nature of | gements/transa | contracts | arrangements or by the contracts | advance
relationship ctions / transactions Board, if / s, if
arrange including the any: arrange any:
ments/tra value, if any: ments/tra
nsactions nsactions
(InINR
Millions)
Purchase of length 2,465.48
traded goods basis,
approval of
Cross Charge the Board 287.03
is not
applicable
4 | Firstcry Retail DWC | Sale of trading - Sale of trading Since this 478.81 NA
— LLC - Step Down | goods, Service goods Related
Subsidiary income, Cost _ Party
charge back, Service income Transaction 73.82
Share based Cost charge back 5 m the 0.44
payments and ordinary
Royalty Income Share based course of 2310
payments business
and at
Royalty Income arm’s 148.15
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.
5 | Firstery Trading | Sale of trading - Sale of trading Since this 136.33 NA
Company- Step down | goods, Service goods Related
Subsidary Income, Cost _ Party
charge Back, Service Income | Transaction 73.82
Royalty income is in the
a.ng S}txir e based Cost charge back ordinary 0.98
payments course of
Royalty income business 54.07
and at
arm’s

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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Sr. | Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration | Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount | Amount
No. | related party and | contracts/arran of the the contracts or approval of the paid as
nature of | gements/transa | contracts | arrangements or by the contracts | advance
relationship ctions / transactions Board, if / s, if
arrange including the any: arrange any:
ments/tra value, if any: ments/tra
nsactions nsactions
(InINR
Millions)
Share based length 50.32
payments basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.
6 | Edubees Educational | Royalty income - Royalty Income Since this 4.17 NA
Trust- Trust and Sale of Related
established by | trading goods Sale of trading Party 2.97
Company goods Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.
7 | Firmroots Private | Internet display - Internet display Since this 7.20 NA
Limited-Subsidiary charges, Rent charges Related
Paid, Rent Party
Received Rent Paid Transaction 0.05
is in the
Rent Received ordinary 0.01
course of

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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Sr.
No.

Name(s) of the
related party and
nature of
relationship

Nature

ctions

of
contracts/arran
gements/transa

Duration
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions

Salient terms of
the contracts or
arrangements or
transactions
including the
value, if any:

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board, if
any:

Amount
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions
(In INR
Millions)

Amount
paid as
advance
s, if
any:

business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.

Swara Baby Products
Private Limited-
Subsidiary

Purchase of
traded goods,

Interest income

and loan given

Purchase of
traded goods

Interest Income

Loan given

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.

1,944.26

32.75

50.00

NA

Solis Hygiene Private
Limited- Subsidiary

Purchase of
traded goods

Purchase of
traded goods

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at

arm’s

87.89

NA

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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Sr.
No.

Name(s) of the
related party and
nature of
relationship

of
contracts/arran
gements/transa
ctions

Nature

Duration
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions

Salient terms of

the contracts or

arrangements or
transactions
including the
value, if any:

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board, if
any:

Amount
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions
(In INR
Millions)

Amount
paid as
advance
s, if
any:

length

basis,
approval of
the Board

is not
applicable.

10

Globalbees
Private
Subsidiary

Brands
Limited-

Sublease rent
income ,
Internet display
charges and
cost charge back

Cost charge back
expenses

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable.

3.52

NA

11

Merhaki Foods and
Nutrition Private
Limited- Step down
Subsidary

Internet Display
charges,
Miscellaneous
income and

Miscellaneous
income

sublease rent
income

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the

0.58

1.80

NA

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
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Sr.
No.

Name(s) of

nature
relationship

the
related party and
of

Nature

ctions

contracts/arran
gements/transa

of

Duration
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions

Salient terms of
the contracts or
arrangements or

transactions
including the
value, if any:

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board, if
any:

Amount
of the
contracts
/
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions
(In INR
Millions)

Amount
paid as
advance
s, if
any:

sublease rent
income

ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable

12

Prayosha Expo
Private Limited- Step
down Subsidary

Purchase of
Traded Goods

Purchase of
Traded Goods

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of
business
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable

0.27

NA

13

Brainbees
Trust

ESOP

shares issued

Loan Given and

Loan Given

Shares issued

Since this
Related
Party
Transaction
is in the
ordinary
course of

3,631.60

business

3,631.60

NA

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
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Sr. | Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration | Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount | Amount
No. | related party and | contracts/arran of the the contracts or | approval of the paid as
nature of | gements/transa | contracts | arrangements or by the contracts | advance
relationship ctions / transactions Board, if / s, if
arrange including the any: arrange any:
ments/tra value, if any: ments/tra
nsactions nsactions
(InINR
Millions)
and at
arm’s
length
basis,
approval of
the Board
is not
applicable

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BRAINBEES SOLUTIONS LIMITED

W#M

Supam Maheshwari
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01730685

Date: July 05, 2024

Brainbees Solutions Limited

Sanket Hattimattur
Executive Director & Chief of staff
DIN: 09593712

Date: July 05, 2024

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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ANNEXURE- 3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Your Company’s CSR policy focuses on working on projects that have a high impact on the
communities in which we live and operate. Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) at the
Company goes beyond business and extends to the implementation of socially relevant activities
for the benefit of society at large. The focus areas for utilizing the CSR funds are promotion of
education and employment-enhancing vocational skills, promotion of healthcare including
preventive healthcare and other areas approved by the CSR Committee within the ambit of CSR
Rules as amended from time to time.

The Company’s CSR projects and programmes will be implemented through public charitable
trusts, not-for-profit companies set up under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956
(corresponding to Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013), through recognized and reputed NGOs
and similar enfities.

The Company has earned profit during the financial year 2020-2021, 2021-2022 and loss during
the financial year 2022-23. As per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, there is average
net profit of the Company calculated for previous three financial years and therefore, the
mandatory CSR spend as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable to the Company
for the financial year 2023-2024.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Number of |Number of meetings
S1. . Designation / Nature |meetings of CSR of CSR
No. Name of Director ot‘g Directorship Comll:ngttee held |Committee attended
during the year during the year
1 Mr. Supam Maheshwari- | Managing Director & 1
" | Chairman CEO
5 Mr. Neeraj Sagar- Non-Executive 1 1
Member Independent Director
*Mr. Sanket Executive Director &
3 Hattimattur- Member Chief of Staff )

*During the year under review, Committee was reconstituted by a resolution of Board dated
December 16, 2023 pursuant to which Mr. Sanket Hattimattur was added as a member and Mr.
Amitava Saha ceased to be the member of the CSR Committee.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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Web-link for composition of Committee: https://www.firstcry.com/investor-relations/committee-
members

Web-link for CSR Policy: https://www firstcry.com/investor-relations/policies-compliances

Web-link for CSR Projects: https://www.firstcry.com/investor-relations/compliances

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR

Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

Not Applicable
5.
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (In Rs.)
(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) 2,64,35,060
of section 135
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 5,28,701
section 135(5)
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any NIL
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5a+5b-5c) 5,28,701
6.
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (In Rs.)
(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and 8,68.875
other than Ongoing Project
(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. 8,68,875

Brainbees Solutions Limited

CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340

Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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(e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Spent Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under
for the Financial Year.| CSR Account as per sub—section (6) Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5)
(inRs.) of section 135. of section 135.
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund| Amount. Date of transfer.
Rs. 5,50,000/-
(Rupees Five Lakhs
Fifty Thousand Only)

(D Excess amount for set-off, if any:

SL. No. |Particular IAmount (in Rs.)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section

(@) (5) of section 135

Please note that the
Company doesn’t want
set off of excess amount

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(1)]

spent on CSR
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of
the previous Financial Years, if any
(V) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]
Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340

Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three

Financial Years:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Amount Balance Amount
transferred to | Amount in Amount Amount fransferred foa| remaining
) Unspent CSR | Unspent CSR| Spentin | Fund as specified under | to be spent )
Preceding ) Deficie
) ) Account Account the Schedule VII as per in )
Sl. No.| Financial ) ) _ ) ncy, if
Year(s) under sub- under Financial | second proviso to sub- succeeding a
section (6) sub—section Year (in section (5) of section Financial Y
of section (6) of section| Rs) 135, if any Years (in
135 (inRs.) 135 (inRs.) Rs)
Amount | Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
1 FY-1 6,90,375/- 6,90375- | _ _ _ 6,90,375/- _
2 FY-2 _ _ _ _ _ _ _
3 FY-3 _ _ _ _ _ _ _
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
i i Amount of
Short particulars Pincode of the . A i .
Dateof | CSR Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary
SI. No.| of the propertyor | property or . X i : :
creation| amount of the registered owner
asset(s) asset(s)
spent
[including complete
address and location|
of the property]
(1) 2 3) (4) (5) (6)

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.
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SI. No.

Short particulars
of the property or
asset(s)

Pincode of the

property or
asset(s)

Date of
creation

Amount of

CSR
amount
spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary
of the registered owner

CSR Registration
Number, if
applicable

Name

Registered
address

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BRAINBEES SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Supam Maheshwari
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 01730685

Date: July 05, 2024

Brainbees Solutions Limited

Sohrab Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com

Sanket Hattimattur

Executive Director & Chief of staff

DIN: 09593712
Date: July 05, 2024

CIN: US1100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr.




Samdani Kabra & Asso.
Company Secretaries

Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Brainbees Solutions Limited

Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338,
Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road, Pune,
Maharashtra —411 001, India.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Brainbees Solutions Limited (“Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that, in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 (“review period”), complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes
and Compliance-Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the review period, according to the provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), and the rules made thereunder;
ii. Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, and the Rules made thereunder;
iii.  Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings.

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”) Act, 1992: -

a. SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, to the extent applicable;
SEBI (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding
the Act and dealing with client, to the extent applicable;

c. The other Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992, are not applicable to the Company being an Unlisted Public
Company.

SARBSL2324

702, Ocean, Sarabhai Compound, Near Centre Square Mall, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Road, Vadodara-390023.
Ph: +91 265 2988933-2311933, 9723462962. E-mail: cssamdani@gmail.com
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Samdani Kabra & Asso.
Company Secretaries

We have also examined compliance with all the applicable clauses / Regulations of the
following: -
i. Secretarial Standards (“Standards”) as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India, and
ii. Being an Unlisted Public Company, Clauses / Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company.

During the review period the Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that;

A.  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors during the review period were carried out
in compliance with the Act;

B. Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda
and detailed notes on Agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance /
shorter notice with consent and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the Agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting;

C. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded;

D.  There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all the
applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines;

E. During the review period, there were no specific instances / actions in the Company in
pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc.,
having major bearing on the Company’s affairs. However, during the review period,

i. The Company has been converted from Private Limited to Unlisted Public Limited
Company effective from November 02, 2023 upon issue of fresh Certificate of
Incorporation by the Registrar of Companies, Pune, Maharashtra.

ii. The Board of Directors and Members of the Company at their respective Meetings
as held on December 21, 2023, have given approval for raising capital through an
Initial Public Offering of Equity Shares (Fresh Issue aggregating up to Rs. 1,816 Crore)
and an Offer for Sale of Equity Shares by existing eligible Shareholders.

SURESH Digitally signed
by SURESH
KUMAR UMAR
MURLIMANO puguimanoHa
HARKABRA  RKABRA

Suresh Kumar Kabra

Partner

Samdani Kabra & Asso.

Company Secretaries

ACS No. 9711 | CP No. 9927

ICSI Peer Review # 884/2020

ICSI UDIN: A009711F000680788
Place: Vadodara | Date: July 05, 2024

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix A and forms an integral part of
this report.
SARBSL2324

702, Ocean, Sarabhai Compound, Near Centre Square Mall, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Road, Vadodara-390023.
Ph: +91 265 2988933-2311933, 9723462962. E-mail: cssamdani@gmail.com
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Samdani Kabra & Asso.
Company Secretaries

Appendix A

The Members,
Brainbees Solutions Limited

Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338,
Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road, Pune,
Maharashtra — 411 001, India.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter, that:

SURESH
KUMAR

Maintenance of secretarial records and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and
other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our examination was limited to verification and audit of
procedures and records on test basis. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records and compliances based on such verification and audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records and we believe that the processes and practices we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
Compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations, happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the Company’s affairs.

Digitally signed
by SURESH

KUMAR
MURLIMANO yyrumaNoHA
HAR KABRA RKABRA

Suresh Kumar Kabra
Partner

Samdani Kabra & Asso.
Company Secretaries

ACS No. 9711 | CP No. 9927

ICSI Peer Review # 884/2020
ICSI UDIN: A009711F000680788

Place: Vadodara | Date: July 05, 2024

SARBSL2324

702, Ocean, Sarabhai Compound, Near Centre Square Mall, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Road, Vadodara-390023.
Ph: +91 265 2988933-2311933, 9723462962. E-mail: cssamdani@gmail.com
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

3rd floor, Unit No. 310 to 312,
West Wing, Nyati Unitree
Nagar Road, Yerwada,

Pune - 411 006

Maharashtra, India

T +91 20 6744 8888
Independent Auditor’'s Report F +91 20 6744 8899

To the Members of Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brainbees Solutions Limited
{formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited) (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group'), as listed in Annexure 1, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based cn
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors oh separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries the aforesaid consalidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and joint ventures, as at 31
March 2024, and their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows
and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in acordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under sectior: 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent uf the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'} together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibifities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to
in paragraph 11 of the Other Matter(s) section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinicn.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Repart thereon
. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Chartered Accountants Waiker Chandick & Co LLP s registered
with fimited Hability with idenlification

Offices in Ahmedabad, Bengalury, Chandigarh, Chennat, Dehradun, Gea, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, number AAC-2085 and has ils regislered

New Delfhl, Noida and Pune office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Quter

Glrcle, New Dekhi, 110001, India



Walker Chandiok &Co LLLP

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The Directors’ Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's Board
of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Holding
Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial
information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financiat statements. Further,
in terms of the provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror. These financial
statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of
the companies included in the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial =tatements as
a whole are free from materia: misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misslutement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern;

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information/ financial statements of
the entities or business activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
statements of such entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the financial statements, which have been audited by the
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

1.

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of 3 subsidiaries, 24 step-down subsidiaries, aLLP and 2 controlled
trust whose financial statements reflects total assets of ¥ 27,966.74 million as at 31 March 2024, total
revenues of ¥ 27,018.63 million and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 1038.75 million for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements whose financial statements have not been
audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries, a
LLP and controlled trust, and our report in terms of sub-section (3} of section 143 of the Act in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries, a LLP and controlled trust are based solely on
the reports of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, a subsidiary and 3 step-down subsidiaries are located outside India whose
financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors
under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company's
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accolnting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s
management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of such subsidiaries located outside India, is based on the report of other
auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited
by us. :

Our opinion above an the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not madified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the reports of the other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary and a step-down subsidiary whose financial

statements reflects total assets of ¥ 203.08 million as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of ¥ 155.08 million
and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 23.66 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements whose financial statements have not been audited by us. Thase financial
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statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of the aforesaid subsidiary, step-down subsidiary and controlled trust, is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on ather legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
financial statements/financial information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the report{s) of the
other auditor(s), referred to in paragraph 11, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we report
that the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with
the provisions of and limits |aid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the
Order reports isstied till date by us and by the respective other auditors as mentioned in paragraph 11 above,
of companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 and
covered under the Act we report that:

Following are the qualifications/adverse remarks reported by the other auditors in the Order repoarts of the
companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 for which
such Order reports have been issued till date and made available to us:

5 Name CIN Holding Clause number of
No Company/ the CARO report
subsidiary which is qualified
or adverse
1 Better &  Brighter | U24139WB2009PTC135807 Subsidiary {vii)
Homecare Private
Limited

2 Butternut Ventures | U15500MH2020PTC344852 Subsidiary {(xvii)
Private Limited

3 HS Fitness Private | UT1200HR2013PTC050241 Subsidiary (i), {vii) & (xvii)

Limited

DF Pharmacy Limited i U52311GJ2008PLC050241 Subsidiary {xvii)
Wellspire India Private | U52390MH2021PTC370225 Subsidiary {xwvil)
Limited .

8 Candes  Technology | U31909DL2021PTC376160 Subsidiary (i) & (xvi)
Private Limited

7 Cloud Lifestyle Private | U24100GJ2017PTC087708 Subsidiary (xvil} & (Xix)
Limited
8 Dynamic T Solution | U52399DL2002PTC117546 Subsidiary (xvii)
Private Limited

9 Maxinique Solution | U52339HR2020PTC090218 Subsidiary {xvii)
Private Limited

10 Merhaki Foods and | U24100RJ2017PTC059188 Subsidiary (xvil)
Nutrition Private Limited

11 Firmroots Private | U15400KA2016PTC086485 Subsidiary (xvii)
Limited

Eyezen Technologies | U74999MH2016PTC282804 Subsidiary (xvii}
Private Limited
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5 Name CIN Holding Clause number of
No Company/ the CARQO report
subsidiary which is qualified
or adverse
13 Frootle India Private | U74999MH2019PTC332657 Subsidiary (vii) & (0
Limited
14 Swara Hygiene Private | U24246MP2022PTC061559 Subsidiary (it)
Limited
15 Digital Age  Retail | US2100PN2011PTC139221 Subsidiary {vii)
Private Limited
16 Globalbees Brands | U24298D1.2021PTC380760 Subsidiary {xvii)
Private Limited
17 Encasa Homes Private | U52100MH1983PTC406756 Subsidiary (vii}
Limited
18 Brainbees Solutions | W51100PN2010PLC 136340 Holding {vii)
Private Limited
15, As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the

other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries,

inco
appl

a)

h)

rporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent
icable, that;

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating fo preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors, except for the matters stated in paragraph 15(g){(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended)}.

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2013;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company its subsidiaries
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, covered under the Act, none of the directors
of the Group companies are disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification / adverse remark / reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other
matters connected therewith with respect to the consolidated financial statements are as stated in,
paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 26(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A' wherein we have expressed an unmodified
opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the exptanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financiat statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act:

i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements;
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vi.

The Holding Company, its subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries covered under the Act, during the
year ended 31 March 2024,

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
india whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
and the cother auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
on the date of this audit report as disclosed in note 43(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
or its subsidiaries to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiaries (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, on the date of this audit report as disclosed in the note 43(h) to the accompanying
consclidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company
or its subsidiaries from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiaries shalf, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or tne fike on behalf of
the Uitimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our ar other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Holding Company, its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2024

As stated in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination which
inciuded test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the subsidiaries of the Hoiding
Company which are companies incorporated in India and audited under the Act, except for the
instances mentioned below, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account,
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit we and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the consequential impact of the
exceptions given below:

1. In case of the Holding Company and one subsidiary —

a. The audit trail feature in the accounting software used for maintenance of accounting records
was not enabled throughout the year, and

b. The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for another accounting software
to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of biling records.
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2 In case of two subsidiaries - The accounting software used for maintenance of all accounting

records and payroll records are operated by third-party service provider. The audit trail feature
was not enabled at the application level for the period 1 April 2023 to 14 August 2023 for the
payroll software. In the absence of any information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any
direct changes made at the database level in the ‘Independent Service Auditor's Report on a
Description of the Service Organization’s System and the Suitability of the Design and Operating
Effectiveness of Controls’ (‘Type 2 report’, issued in accordance with AICPA Description criteria),
we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to the database was
enabled and operated throughout the year used for both the accounting software.

. In case of one subsidiary -

a. The audit trail feature for accounting software used for maintenance of accounting records
was not enabled from 1 April 2023 to 13 April 2023, and

b. The said accounting software did not capture the details of who made the changes i.e., User
Id for one location from 13 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

_In case of one subsidiary - The audit trail feature for accounting software used for maintenance

of accounting records was not enabled from 1 April 2023 to 3 April 2023.

_In case of one subsidiary - The audit trail feature for accounting software used for maintenance

of accounting records was not enabled from 1 Aprit 2023 to 7 April 2023.

_In case of two subsidiaries - The audit trail feature for accounting software used for maintenance

of accounting records was not enabled throughout the year.

. In case of one subsidiary - In the absence of the ‘Independent Service Auditor's Assurance Report

on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness’ (‘Type 2 report’ issued
in accordance with SAE 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service QOrganisation), we
are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature at the database of the said software was
enabled and operated throughout the year.

_ In case of sixteen subsidiaries - In the absence of any information on existence of audit trail {(edit

logs) for any direct changes made at the database level in the ‘Independent Service Auditor's
Report on a Description of the Service Organization's System and the Suitability of the Design
and Operating Effectiveness of Controls’ (‘'Type 2 report’, issued in accordance with AICPA
Description criteria), we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to the
database of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fir

Partner

Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Shashi Tadwalkar

Membership No.:101797

UDIN: 24101797BKCPDX9538

Place: Pune
Date: 05 July 2024
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Annexure 1: List of subsidiaries

Sr. No. | Name of Entity Relationship
Brainhees Solutions Limited (Formerly known
1 as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited) Holding Company
{Brainbees)
2 Intellibees Solutions Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of Brainbees
3 Firstery Management DWC LLC Wholly owned subsidiary of Brainbees
4 Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd Wholly owned subsidiary of Brainbees
5 Joybees Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of Brainbees
8 Digital Age Retail Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of Brainbees
7 g\;vs;? Baby Products Private Limited (Swara Subsidiary of Brainbees
8 Firmroots Private Limited Subsidiary of Brainbees
9 Solis Hygiene Private Limited Subsidiary of Brainbees
10 %%);é?f:js?rands Private Limited Subsidiary of Brainbees
11 Fdubees Educational Trust Controfied trust of Brainbees
12 Brainbees ESOP Trust Controlled trust of Brainbees
13 | Firstery Retail DWC LLC mggg;n‘fgjtd;&%'sfg of Firstary
14 Firstcry Trading Company ﬁgﬁg:ﬁgﬁ{j Dsﬁé ifféy of Firstery
15 Firstery General Trading LLC ‘é\l;giiilyD%vge&sgbsidiary of Firstcry
16 Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
17 Maxinique Sclutions Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
18 Better and Brighter Homecare Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
19 Fyezen Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
20 Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
21 HealthyHey Foods LLP LLP of Globalbees
22 Butternut Ventures Private Limited Subsidiary of Glohalbees
23 Dynamic IT Solution Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
24 Kubermart Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
25 Mush Textiles Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbhees
26 Globalbees Brands DWC LLC Subsidiary of Globalbhees
27 HS Fitness Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
28 DF Pharmacy Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
29 Candes Technology Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
30 Solarista Renewables Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
31 Encasa Homes Private Limited Subsidiary of Globatbees
32 Frootle India Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
33 Prayosha Expo Private Limited Supsidiary of Globalbees
34 Wellspire India Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
35 Plantex E-Commerce Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
36 JW Brands Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
37 Kitchenopedia Appliances Private Limited Subsidiary of Globalbees
38 Swara Hygiene Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of Swara Baby
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Brainbees
Solutions Limited (formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited} on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Annexure A

independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) ‘

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Brainbees Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited) (the Holding Company’) and its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’), as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, , which are companies
covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for astablishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reiiable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (1CAV) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial contrels with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the
ICAIl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or efror.




5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

8. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statetments,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to .error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies, the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financtal controls with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.




Other Matter

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to 7 subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥ 11,591.92 million and net assets of ¥ 4,996.54 millicn as at 31
March 2024, total revenues of ¥ 10,636.60 million and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 41.06 million
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary
companies have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies,
is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other
auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’ ﬂegéstration No.: 001076N/N500013

siwe/ 7

Shashi Tadwalkar

Partner

Membership No.: 101797
UDIN: 24%01797BKCPDX8538

Pune
05 July 2024



Brainbees Solutions Limited [formerly known as Brainbees Solutlons Private Limited)
Consolldated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
[All amounts [n Rupees milllon, unless otherwise stated)
Particutars Note No, As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4(a) 6,691,57 4,215.75
Capital work-in-progress dia} 5,05 245,25
Right of use asset 5 9,008,82 7,116,57
Geodwillt 4(b) 7,781.54 775841
Other intangible assets 4fc) 15,197.68 16,240.84
Intangible assets under development 4z) 0.30 19.64
Flnanclal assets
{a) Investments 5{a) 50.08 0.08
~ (byOther Hinanclal assets 6{a) 946.20 891,22
Deferred tax assets {net) 7 1,897.42 1,627.88
Income tax assets (net} 8 324.99 273.40
Cther non-current assets 9 (a) 2,665.03 2,780.37
Tatal non-current assets 44,568.68 41,169.41
Current assets
inventorles 10 16,294,562 12,860.03
Financial assets
{a) Investments 5(k} .06 0,04
{b) Trade receivables 11 2,184,07 2,251.30
{c} Cash and cash equivalents 12{a) 3,616.96 2,593,51
{d) Bank baiances other than [c) above 12{b) 3,120.91 9,200.15
{e) Loans 8[c) 360.82 390,77
{f} Other financial assets &{b) 79191 130.62
Other current assets 9 {b) 4,165.80 2,602.46
Total curcent assets 30,535.15 30,028.88
Total Assets 75,103.83 71,198.29
Equity and liabilitles
Equity
Equity share capital 13 {a} 814.71 814.71
Equity Component of Compulsorlly Convertible Praferance Shares 13 (b) 70.37 70.37
Other equity 14 (a) 30,822.28 33,677.49
Equity Attributable to owners of the parent 31,707.36 34,562.57
Nen-Controlling Interest 14(h) 6,207.17 7,434.35
‘Total equlty 37,914.53 41,996.92
Llabilities
{a) Borrowlngs 15 {a) 2,294.60 550.40
(b) Lease liabllities 5 8,482,77 6,408.86
(c) Other financial liabilities 15 () 7,085.52 6,819.48
Provisions 16 {a) 245.44 187.51
Deferred tax llabifties 7 2,845.15 3,014.62
Other Non-current Uabilities i8 (a) 541,15 172.06
Total nen-current Habilitles 21,498.63 17,152.03
Current llabHitles
Financlal fiabliitles
{a) Borrowlngs 15{a} 2,332,62 1,214,34
{b) Lease Liabilities 5 1,115,48 81749
{c} Trade payables
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 874.86 339,38
Dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 8,204.60 7,035,33
|d) Cther financial liabilities 15 (c} 1,268.23 1,159,86
Other current Habliities 18 ¢h) 1,782.52 1,396,95
Provislons 16¢h) 56.58 49.96
Current tax [iakilitles (net) 8(b) 55.78 31.13
Total current labillties 15,690.67 12,048.44
Total agulty and llabilitles 75,103.83 71,198.29
Surnmary of materlal accounting policy information 2-3
See accompanying notes forming Integral part of Consolidated financlal statements 4-43
As per our report of evan date attached For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Brainhees $olutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees
Chartered Accountants Solutlons Prlvate Limited)
Firm Registration number - D01076N/N500013 CiN - US1100PN2010PLC136340 @
éw/w
. i
Supam Maheshwarl Sanket Hattimattur
e Managing Director Director
Shashl Tadwalkar DIN : 01730685 DIN : 09593712 .
Partner Place ; Pune Flace ; Pune ,
Membership No. - 101797 Date ; Pate: \)’uv’/
Place ! Pune ” A y}l
Date ! M, p \‘j/
g o il / Q
IS} i Zgjgé GautantSharma NEelam Jethani
o Chief Financial Officer Cempany Secretary
Place : Pune




Bralnbees Solutlons Umited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limlted}
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts In Rupees mililen, unless stherwise stated)

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Flrm Registration aumber - 001076N/N500013

Shashi Tadwalkar
Partner

Membership No, - 101797
Place : Pune

W

Particular Note | For the year ended March 31, | For the year ended March 31,
articulars No. 2024 2023
income
Revenue from operations 19 64,808.56 56,325.39
Other income 20 042,25 987.37
‘Fotal Income 65,750.81 57,312.76
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 21 {a) 5,574.65 4,795.19
Purchase of Stock-In-trade 21 {b} 38,898.87 33,171.84
Changes In inventorles of stock-in-trade, finished goods and work in progress 22 {2,841.56) 3,386.15
Employee benefits expense
(i} Employee benafits expense 23{a) £,084.21 4,083.53
{il} Employee share based payment expense 23(b) 1,780.58 3,614.37
Finasce cost 24 1,153.63 715.73
Depreclation and amortisation expense 25 3,708.73 2,942,83
Other expenses 26 (2} 15,606.50 12,446,63
Total expenses 68,966.01 63,156,67
Loss before tax and before exceptional items and income tax {3,215.20) [5,843.91}
Exceptional items income (net) 26 {b} - 543,68
Lass before tax (3,215,20} {5,300.23)
‘Tax expense
Current tax {438,05) [172,05)
Deferred tax 438.18 611,72
. Tatal tax expense .13 438,67
Loss for the year {3,215.,07) [4,860,56)
Other comprehensive Income
{tems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Re-meastrement of post-employment benefit obligations 3.08 27.02
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
lncorve tax relating to re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations 10.56) {B.56)
Items that will be reclasstiied to Statement of Profit or Loss
Galns ang {losses) arising from transiating the financlai statements of foreign operations {10.96) 8.67
Income tax effect relating to Items that will e redlassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Income tax effect of a forelgn cperation i83 {4.36)
Total other comprehensive Income [6.60) 24,77
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,221.67) [4,835,79)
Loss for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent (2,742.77) {4,410.81)
Non-controlfing interests (472.30) (449.75}
{3,215.07} {4,860.56}
Total other comprehensive income
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent {8.02) 24,61
Non-controlling interests 1.42 0.16
16.60) 24.77
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent {2,750.79) {4,386,20)
Non-controlling interests (470.88) 449,59}
{3,221.67) 14,835.79)
Earning per equity share 28
Basls earning per share (iNR) {6.20} {9.97)
Diluted earning per share {INR} {6.20} {9.97)
Surnmary of materfat accounting policy information 2-3
See accompanying notes forming integeal part of Consolidated financial statements 4-43

For and on behalt of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutfons Limlted {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions
Private Umited)

CIN - U51100PN2010PLC136340 ‘,ﬁq\ﬁ
by

-

Supam Maheshwari Sanket Hattimattur
Managing Dlrector Director

DIN ; 01730685 DIN : 09593712
Place : Pune Place : Pune

Bate ; Date :

=+

e Ao

Gautam Sharma eelam Jethani
Chief Bnanclal Officer Company Secratary
Blaca ; Pune Place : Pune

Date ;

2

Date :




Bralnbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited}
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts In Rupees miltlon, unless otherwlse stated}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flows from operating activitles
Less for the year {8,215.20) {5,300,23)
Adlustments for:
Depreciation on areparty, plant and equipment 1,169,48 854,34
Amortlsation of Intanglble assets 1,687.03 1873.22
Amortlsation of right of use assets 1,452.22 1,015,27
_ Employee share based payment expense 1,780,58 3,614,37
Rent Cencession - (20.01}
Loss/{Galn} on Termination on Leases 78,85 129,50}
Unreallsed forelgn currency Joss {15,28) {14.79)
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks {412.22} {560.58)
Interest income on others {106.84) (78.11}
Finance cost 1,153.63 745,73
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 2,972.25 1,269.71
Worklng capital changes
(Increasel/Decrease in trada recelvahles 67,23 191.80
{Increasel/Decrease In Inventories (3,434.59} 3,080.6%
{Increase)/Decrease in other financlal assets (1,023.38) 296,31}
{Increase)/Decrease In other non-current assets 124,65 {1,284.49)
fincrease)/Decreass In other current assets 11,563.34) (228,99}
Increase/(Decrease) In trade payables 1,700.75 {5,579.04)
Increase/[Decrease) In other current and Non-cuirent Habiiities 754,64 131.08
Increasef{Decrease) in provisions 71.64 79.65
Increase/{Decrease) in gurrent and non-current financial liabillties 374.41 {1,624.29)
Cash generated from/{used In) eperating actlvities 44,26 {4,257.27)
Ihcome tax paid {net} (464.99) 267.33
Net cash ganerated from/{used tn} operating actlvlties [£3] [420.73) {3,989.88)
Cash flow from Investing activitles
Acqulsitlon of property, plant and equipment {3,404.86} {2,330,66)
Acquisition of intangible assets (24,59) [52.47)
Acgulsition of other Investments [net) {50.02) -
Investments In Bank deposlts {17,669.40) {30,064.97)
Proceeds from Bank deposits : 73,851.06 39,11z.40
Acquisition of Subsidtarles (Refer Note 22} (2,669.17) {3,945.48}
Loan to Employaes 60,15 (283.81)
Interest recelved 536,27 609,87
Net cash genarated fram investing activities [8} G20.44 3,040.89 |
Cash flow from fnancing activities
Proceeds from Issue of shares - 0.64
Praceeds from securitles premium - G.47
Repayment of lease liabilities (Including interest) {1,772.89) [1,200.82)
Repayment of borrowings {1,719.73) {623.58}
Proceads from borrowings 4,592,21 1,472,828
interast paid (274.85) {155.57)
Net cash used in financing activities {C} 414,74 [506.18)
et Increase/ [decrease] In cash and cash equlvalents (A+8+C) 1,023.45 {1,455.17)
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the beglnnlng of the vear 2,593,51 4,048.69
Cash and cash aguivalents at the end of the year 3,616.96 2,593.52
Notes:
particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Coinponents of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in hand 193 1.69 234
Fund In Transit 28,55 6.81 -
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 1,314,741 1,253.21 2,450,98
Ip depasit accounts having original maturity fess than 3 months 2,271.77 1,331,80 1,595.87
Total 3,616.96 2,593.51 4,048,69




Bralnbees Solutlons Limited lformerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Consalidated Statament of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Alt amounts In Rupees million, unless othenwlse stated}

Notest
Movement in flnanclal llabilities

partleulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance of borrowlngs
Nan-current borrowings 550.40 511,02
Additions due to Business Comblnztion (non-current) - 581.88
Current borrowlngs* 1,214.34 390,60
Lease llabliities 7,226.35 3,191.92
Interest accrued but not due on boerrowlngs 7.66 5.41
Movement
Cash flows 848,42 {505.04)
Non cash changes 4,419.64 4,822,86
Closing balance of borrowings
Non-cursent berrowings 2,294,60 550.40
Current borrowlngs* 2,332.62 1,214.34
Lease liabilities 9,598.25 7.226,35
Interest accrued but net due on borrowings 41.34 7.66

*Current borrowings includes current maturities of non-current borrowings.
Non-cash mavement represents:
« With respect to leases, accrizal of interest on lease liabiiities, rant concessions, new additions and

Summary of material accounting policy Information
See accompanying notes forming Integrat part of Consolidated financlal statemeants

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstration number - CO1076N/N500013

o

Shashl Tadwalkar

Partner
tMembership No. - 101797
Place : Pune

e
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private

Urnited)
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Supam Mahaeshwarl
Managing Directar
DIN : 01730685
Place : Pune

Date :
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-
Gadftam Sharma
chlef Financial Officer
Place ! Pune
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- Sanket Hmr
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Directar
DIN : 09593712
Place : Pune

Date: 4
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\:ee am Jethani

Company Secretary
Place : Pune
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Bralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes farming part of these Consolldated Financial Statement
{All amounts In Rupees miliion, unless otherwlse stated}

1 Reporting entity

Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Brainbees Solutlons Private Limited) {tha 'Helding Company'} is a company domiclled in Indla, with its registered office situated in Pune. The
Holding Company is engaged in the business of buying, seiiing, advertising, promoting baby and kids products and Fast Moving Consumer Goods {FMCG'} geods on a whelesale basis
through various businass partners. The Holding Company has also ventured into pre school business for kids through vartous franchisee partners in India,

The Consolidated Financlat Statement comprises the financlal statements of the Holding Company, Its subsidizries and step down subsidiaries {together referred to as “the Group”}.

N

Basls of preparation for flnanclal statements
A, Statement of compllance

Thase Consalidated Flnancial Statements have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS) as per the Campanies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the Act’} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Consolidated Financial Staternents were authorised for issue by the Holding Company's Board of Directors on 05 july 2024,
Detalls of the Group's material accounting policy laformatlon are included in Note 3,
B. Functional and presentation currency

These Consolidated Financlal Statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is lso the Holding Company's functional currency, All amounts have been roundad-off to the nearast
Jakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basls of measurement

The Consclidated Financlal Statements have been prepared ch the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement hasks
Certaln financial assets and liabilitlas Falr value
Consideration payable to selling shareholders due to business combination [Refer Note 32) Fair value
Equity-settied share-based payment arrangements Fair value

b. Basls of consolidation

{i} Subsidiaries

subsidlaries are entities controllad by the Group. The Group contrals an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variabla raturns from its Involvement with the entity and has the abllity
to affect those returns through its power over the entity, The financial statements of subsidiaries are Included in the Consolidated Financial Statement from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

{ily Non-controlling interests (NCI}
Non-controlling intevests are measured at falr value at the date of acquisition, Changes in the Group's equity Interests in a subsidiary that do nat result in a loss of centrol are accounted for
as equity transactions,

[ill} Equity accounted investees

The Group's interests in equity accounted lnvestees comprise Interests In associates and joint ventures.

An assoclate 1s an entity In which the Group has significant influsnce, but not controal or jolnt contrel, over the financlal and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which
the Group has joint controt and has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to Its assats and obligations for its llabilitles.

Interests in associates and jolnt ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initially at cost which Includes transaction casts.

{iv} Transactlons sliminated on consolidation

intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized gains arlsing from transactions with equity
accounted investees are eliminated against the Investment to the extent of the Group's interest In the investee, Unrealised fosses are eliminated in the same way as ynrealized gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

[v} Anticipated Acquisition method:

The Group applies the anticipated acquisition methad where It has the right and the obligation to purchase any remalning non-controlling interest, Under the anticipated acquisition
method the interests of the non-controlling shareholder are derecognized when the Group's Habllity relating to the purchase of Its shares is recognized. The recognition of the financlal
Hability implies that the Intarests subject to the purchase are deemed to have been acquired already, Therefore, the corresponding interests are presented as already owned by the Group
even thaugh legally they are stit non-contralling interasts, The initial measurement of the falr value of the financlal liability recognized by the Group forms part of the conslderation payable
to selling sharehclders due to husiness combination for the acquisition,

{vl) Consideration payable to selling shareholders due to business combination :

The consideration payable to selling shareholders due to buslness corabination is measured at Its acquisition date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred In a
business combination. It is classified as an asset or Hability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IND AS 109 Financial Instruments or IND AS 37 Provislons,
Coptingent Uabllities and Contingent Assets, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised In consolidated statement of profit and loss.

{wll) Loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and Tiabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCi and other components of equity. Any interest retained In the
former subsidiary Is measured at falr value at the date the control is lost. Any resuiting gair or {oss Is recognised In profit or {oss,

{viii} Foreign operations

For the purpose of consolldation, the assets and labllitles of the Group’s foralgn operatlons are translated to Indlan rupees at the exchange rate pravailing on the balance sheet date, and
the income and expenses at the average rate of exchange for the respective months. Exchange differences arising on such translatien are recognised as foreign currency translation reserve
under equity. Exchange differences arlsing from the translatien of a foreign operation previcusly recognised In currency translation reserve in equity are not reclassifled from equity to profit
or loss untll the disposal of the operation.

E. Use of estimates and judgements

Assumptiens and estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment ta the
carrylng amounts of assets and liabllities within the next financlai year, are described below, The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters avallable when the Consolidated
tinancial statements were prepared, Existing circurnstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyand the contro of the Group, Such changes are reflected In the assumptions when they cccur.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are recoghised prospectively.
Informatiomaboyt.assumptions and estimatlon uncertaintles that have a significant rlsk of resulting in a material adjustment are included in the following notes:
,_t‘e*;(g)(i]}"{mgél‘ apt of goadwill and brand value: key assumptlons being discount rate and terminal growth rate.

e.‘Z-Réé&é’hﬂi&(& A, avallability of future taxable profit against which tax losses cartied forward can be used.




Bralnbees Solutions Limited [formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of thesa Consolldated Financlal Statement
{All amounts in Rupees million, enless otherwise stated)

2 Basls of preparation for financial statements {continued)
E. Use of estimates and judgements {contlnued)

Impalrment of non-findnclal assets

Impalrment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which Is the higher of Its falr value less costs of disposal and its vajue In use.
The fair value less casts of disposal calculation where performed, is based on available datz from binding sales transactlons, cenducted at arm's length, for simifar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based an a DCF model. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF mode! as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapofation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intanglbles with
indefinite useful livas racognised by the Group,

Provision for expected credit losses of trade recelvables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets, The provision rates ara based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar foss patterns,

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting pelicles, management has made the following Judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Consolidated Financlal statements:

Determlining the lease term of contracts — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, togather with any perlods covered by an option to extend the lease If it Is reascnably certain to be exercised,
or any perlods covered by an optian to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Revenue from contracts with customers
* Determining method to estimote varigble consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of praducts Include a right of return and volume rebates that glve rise to variable consideration, In estimating the varlable consideration, the Group is required
to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled.

The Group determined that the expected valug mathod Is the appropriate method to use In estimating the varlable cansideration for the sale of products with rights of return, given the
large number of custamer contracts that have similar characteristics, In estimating the varlable consideration for the sale of equipment with volume rebates, the Group determined that
using a combinaticn of the most likely amount method and expected value method is 2ppropriate. The selected method that better predicts the amount of varlable consideration was
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract, The most likely amount method is used for those coniracts with a single volume threshold, while the
expected value method is used for contracts with more than one volume threshold.

. Measurament of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures requira the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to selt an asset or pald ta transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to seft the asset ar transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or flabllity, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values wherein the overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements,
inciuding Leval 3 falr values is supervised by the Chief Financial Officer.

This includes reviews of significant unobservable Inputs and valuation adjustments. if third party infermation Is used to measure fair values, then the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including sthe level In the fair valua hlerarchy in which the valuatlons should ba classifled is
assessed. ’

Fair values are categorised into different leveis in a fair value hisrarchy based on the Inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for Identlcal assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly (l.e. as prices) or Indirectly {i.e. derlved from prices).

-{eval 3; inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not based on chservable market data {unohservable inputs).

When measuring the falr value of an asset or a liabifity, the Group uses cbservable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used ta measure the fair value of an asset or a Hability fall inte
diffarent levels of the falr value hlerarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorlsed In its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant ta the entire measurement,

The Group recognisas transfers between levels of the fair value hlerarchy at the end of the reporting perlod during which the change has cccurred.

G. Current / non-current classlfication
All assets and liabilitles are classified inte current and non-current -

Assets

An asset s classified as current when it satisfles any of the following criterta:

{a) it is expected to be realised in, or is Intended for szle or consumption in, the Group's narmai cperating cycle;

(b} it s hald primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{c) It Is expected to be realisec within 12 months after the reporting date; or

{d) It Is cash ar cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a jiability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classifled as non-current.

Liabliitles

A Jiability Is classiled as current when it satisfies any of the following criterla:

fa) It Is expected to be settfed In the Group's normal operating cycle;

|b}itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

[c) it Is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 maonths after the reporting date. Terms of a llabllity that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the Issue of equity instruments do nat affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial Habilities, All ather labllitles are classified as nen-current,

Deferred tax asset and liabiiity are classified as Non-current assats and liabliities.

Operating cycle
perating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash or cash equivalents, The operating cycle of the Group is less than 12 months,




Bralnbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)
Motes forming part of these Consclidated Flnanclal Statement
{All amounts In Rupzes million, unless otherwise stated)

3 Material accounting pollcy Informatlon
a. Financial instruments
A financlal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial labifity or equity instrument of another entity.
I. Recognitlon and initlal measurement
Trade receivables and debt Instruments {such as security deposits) issued are initlally recopnised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial llabliities are Initially
recognised when the Group bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability Is initially measured at falr value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or lssue,

1. Classification and subsequent measurement
Flpanclal assets

On Initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amoitised cost;

- Fair Yalue through Other Comprehensive Income {FYOCI} - debt investment;

- Falr Value through Other Comprehensive lacome {FVOCI) - equity investment; or

- Falr Value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

Flvanclal assets are not reclassifted subsequent to their Initlal recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business modet fer managing financal assets.

A financial asset s measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset Is held within a business medel whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractuaj cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

A debt Investment Is measured at FVOC! If it meets both of the following conditions and is not desfgnated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is hald within a business model whose objective Is achleved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principai amount outstanding,

On Initial recognition of an equity Investment that s not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI {deslgnated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- Investient basis,

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Grotip's continuing recognitien
of the assets,

Financlal assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basls are measured at FVTPL.

Al financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initlal recognition, the Group may Irrevocably deslgnate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortlsed cost or at FVOC! as at FVTPL If deing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
wtherwise arisa,

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and galns and fosses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, at F7PL Including any interest or dividend income, are recognised
in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at falr value, Interest income under the effective Interest method, foreign exchange galns and losses
and Impairment are recognised In profit or loss, Other net gains and losses are recognised In ©CL. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCl are reclassifled to profit or loss.

Equity investiments at FYOCH These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised as Income in profit or loss unless the dividend cleariy
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other nst galns and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit
of loss.

Hnanclal assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The amortised cost Is reduced by impairment

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and Impairment are recognised in profit or foss, Any gain or loss on derecognition Is
recognised In profit or loss.

b Flnanclal fiabilitles
Classification, subsequent measurement and galns and losses

Financiat Habilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financlal Habliity Is classified as at FYTPL If it is classifled as held- for- trading, or It is a derivative or it is
designated as such on Initlal recognition. Fiaanclal Habllities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net galns and losses, Including any interest expense, are recoghised in profit or loss.
Other financial iabllities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method. Interest expense and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recagnised in profit
or foss. Any gain or loss on derecognition s alsa recognised In profit of fuss.

iil. Derecognitlon
Financlal assets

The Group derecagnises a financial asset when the cantractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows Ina
transaction In which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financlal asset are transferred or In which the Group nelthar transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks 2nd rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the tinanctal assat,

If the Group entets into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially alf of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or explre.

The Group also derecognises a financlal Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different, In this case, 2 new financial llability
pased on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the financlel liability extinguished and the new financial liability with medified terms
is recognised in profit or loss.

v, Offselting

Flnanclai assets and financial liabilities are offsst and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a fegally enforceable right to set off the
4 ounts and it intends either to settie them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.




Bralnbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutlens Private Limited)
Nates forming part of these Consolidated Flnanclal Statement
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3 Materlal accounting policy informatlon
b. Property, plant and equipment

I, Recognltlon and measurement

Items of praperty, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowlng costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impatrment losses, if any.

Cost of an Item of property, plant 2nd equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly atiributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its Intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any galn or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or Joss,

H. Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent expanditure Is capitalised only IF it is probable that the future economlc benefits assoclated with the expenditure will flow to the Group,
ili. pepreciation

Depreciation Is calculated on costs of items of property, plant and equiprment less thelr estimated residual values aver their estimated useful lives using the written down vaiue method and
straight line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and aguipment for the current and comparative periods estimated by rmanagemant are also in line with those specifled in Schedule I} to the

Companles Act, 2013 and are as follows:

Asset Useful life {years)

Computers 3
Network and Servers {disciosad within Computers) 6

Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Furniture and fixtures - Bin Boxes 2
Leasehald Improvements & {over the period of the lease)
Plant and machinery i0-15
Building {other than factory buildings) other than RCC Frame Structure 30
Electrical Installaticns 10
Vehicles 10

Pepreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate,
Depreciation on additions {disposas) is provided on a pro-rata baslsi.e, from {upto) the date en which asset Is ready for use (disposed of}.
c. Intangible assets

I. Brands

Brands acquired on business combination is Inltially recognised at falr vajue, Subsequent to initiaf zecognition the Brands are assessed between those having Indefinite useful lives and those
having definite useful lives, Brands with indefinite useful lives are recognised at thelr carrying value less impairment fosses, Brands with definite useful lives, are amortised over their
estimated useful lives, Amortization method and amortization period Is reviewed by the management and changes in the estimated useful life are made If the same are expected to be
used for shorter perlod than the Initial estimated period.

k. Customer contracts

Customer contracts / relationships acquired on business combination is inltially recognised at falr valua, Subseguent to initial recognition the intangible asset's amortization method and
amortization period is reviewed by the management and changes in the estimated useful life are made if the same are expacted to be used for shorter perlod than the initlal estimated
period,

Til. Content writing
Intangible assets for content writing are initizlly recognised at cost of acquisition, Subsequent measurement is at cost Jess accumufated amertisation and impairment loss, if any.

lv. Other Intangible assets
Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost, Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accurnulated amortisation and any accumulated impalrment losses.

v. Internally generated Intangible Asset
Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss In the year in which they are incurred.

Platform Development

Platform development casts incurred are recognised as Intangible assets, when feasibility has been established, the Group has committed technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and it Is probable that asset will generata future eccnomic benefits, The costs capitallsed includes the salary cost of employees exclusively working on platform
develapment upte the date the asset is available for use, Platform costs Is amortised on a straight line basis over 2 period of 4 years.

Platform development is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accurnutated impairment, if any.

Product Development

Product development costs Incurred are recognised as intangible assets, when feasibility has been established, the Group has committed technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and it Is probable that asset will generate future economic benefits. The costs capitallsed Includes the materlal cost, service cost and salary cost of employees
exclusively working on product development upto the date the asset is available for use. Product development costs is amortised on & strsight line basis over a period of 7 years.

Product development Is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

vl Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure Is capitalised only when It increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All ather expenditure is recogalsed in profit or
loss as incurred.
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3 Materlal accounting policy Information
¢, Intangible assets
v, Amortlsation
Goodwii and brand value are not amertised and are tested for impairment annually,

Amontisation Is cakulated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residuat values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-iine methed for contract value and
written down value method for ather intangible assets is included In depreclation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as foliows:

Asset Useful life {years)
Computer software 1-5
Contract value 7.6
Content Writing 4
Dubal Platform 4
Brand - School 3.5
Product development 7
Customer Relatlonship 5
Brands 20

Amortisation method, useful fives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjustad if approptiate.

4. Inventorles

inventories are measured at the jower of cost and net reafisable valve. The cost of Inventorles Is based on welghted aversge method, and Includes expenditure incurred in acquirlng the
Inventories, and other costs lncurred in bringing them to thelr present location and conditien,

Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less tha estimated costs of completion and selling expenses and discounts.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is mada on an item-by-item basls,

Cost of work in progress and manufactured finished goods is determined on the weighted average basis and comprises direct material, cost of canversion and other costs incurred in
bringing these Inventorles to their present location and condition,

Raw materlals, packaging materials and stores and spare parts are valued at lower of cest and net realizable value. Cost Includes purchase prics, {exciuding those subsequently recoverable
by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventorles to their present location and conditien, tn
determining the cost, welghted average cast method is used.

e, Impalrment
I. Impairment of financial Instruments

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recogrition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposura;

i} Financial assets that 2re debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e g, loans, debt securities, deposits and bank balance;
iiy Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result fram transactions that are within the scope of lad AS 115,

The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognltion of impairment loss allowanee on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does nat require the group to track changes In credit rlsk, Rather, it recognizes Impairment loss allowance based on $ifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from Its Initial recognition, The Group recognises the provision for ECL based on its histerical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

in all cases, the maximum period considerad when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual patiod over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
i, Impatrment of non-financtal assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than inventorles and deferred tax assets, are raviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwiil and brand value are tested annually for Impairment,

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units {CGUs). Each CBU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash Inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination Is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergles of the combination.

The recaverable amount of a CGU {or an Individual asset) Is the higher of its value In use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use Is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGLJ (or the aszet),

The goodwill Impalrment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating unlts which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which
represents the lowest level at which goodwill is manitored for internal management purpeses, Market related Information and estimates are used to determine the recaverable amount.
Key assumptions an which management has based jts deterinination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, discount rates and terminal growth rates, Cash flow
projections take into account past experience and rapresent management's best estimata about future developments.

An impairment loss Is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impalrment fosses are recognised In the statement of profit and loss.
irmpairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwil ajlocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets of the CGU {or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of geodwiil Is not stibsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recagnised In prior pericds, the Group reviews at each
reporting date whether there is any Indisation that the loss has decreased of no longer exists, An impalrment loss is reversed if there has been a change In the estimatas used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made cnly to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreclation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had bean recognised,

f. Employee henefits

1. Short-term employee benefits

Short-térm employee benefit obligations aze measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service Is provided. A fizbility is recognised for the ameunt expected ta be
PR NI

paid &g, under shart-term cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount

“of obligation can ba kstimated relizbly.
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3 Materlal accounting policy Informatien
f. Employee benefits [continued)
1L Share-based payment transactlons

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees Is recognlsed as an expense, with a corresponding increase In equity, over the perlod that the
employees unconditionally hecome entitled to the awards, The amount recognised as expense s based on the astimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-
market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense Is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-
market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with aon-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment Is measured to reflect
such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actuat outcomes,

1ii, Defined contribution plans

A dafined contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions Inte 3 separate entity and wiil have no legal or constructive abligation to pay
further amaunts. The Group makes specified menthly contributions tawards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligatlons for contributions to defined cantribution plans
are recognised as an employee benefit expense In profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employess,

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction In future payments Is available.
1v. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than 2 defined contributicn plan. The Group's net abligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior pertods, discounting that amount and deducting the [air value of any plan assets,

The caleulation of definad benefit obligation Is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, When the caleulation results In a potential asset for the
Group, the recognised asset Is limited to the present vaiue of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions i future contributions to the plan
{'the asset celling"), In order to calculate the present valua of economic benefits, consideration is glven te any minimum funding requirements,

Remeasurements of the net defined bepefit liability, which comgprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognised In OCI, The Group determines the net interest expense {income) on the net defined benefit liability {asset) for the pericd by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit lizbility (asset}, taking lnto account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability {asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined beneflt plans are recognised in profit
or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain'} or the gain or less on
curtailment Is recognised immediately in profit or loss, The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

v. Other long term employee benefit

The Group's liability in respect of other long-term employee benefits (compensated absences is the amount of future benefic that employees have earned In return for thele service Tn the
current and prior perlods, that benefit Is discounted to determine Its present value, and the fair value of any telated assets s deducted. The cbligation is measured on the basis of an annual
independent actuartal valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method, Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised In profit or loss in the period In which they arise.

&, Provislans [other than for employee benefits), Contingent llabllities and contlngent assets

i\ Provisions [other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it Is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, Provislons are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows {representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the liability, The
unwinding of the discount Is recognised as finance cost, Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

li. Contingent lfabilitles and contingent assets
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable ebligation, or a present obligation that may, but probakbly will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present
obligation whose amount can not be estimated rellagly, Contingant liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

A contingent asset Is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized In the Consclidated Financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if itls
virtually certain that an inflow of aconomic benefit wii arlse, the asset and related Income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs. A contingent asset Is disclosed, where an
inflow of ecohomic benedlts is probable,

h. Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upan transfer of control of promised goods/ services to customers at ah amount that reflects the censideration to which the Group
expect to be entitled for those goods/ services,

To recognlze revenues, the Group applies the following five-step approach:

~ |dentify the contract with a customer;

- Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

- Petermine the transaction price;

- Allocate the transactien price to the performance obligations In the contract; and

- Recagnise revenues when a petformance obiigation Is satisfied.

l. Revenue from sale of traded gocds and finished gonds

Revenue towards satisfactlon of performance obllgation s measured at amount of consideration recelved or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates, taking
Into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties callected on behalf of the government,

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not recelved by the Group in its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commedity by the seller on behalf of the governrment,
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The Holding Company generally works on cash and carry model. However, other companiss in the Group have payment terms generally in the range of 30 to 90 days from the date of
delivery,

il Loyalty points programmes

For customer loyalty programmaes, the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated between the loyalty points and the other cornponents of
the sale. The amount allocated to loyalty polnts is deferred and Is recognised as revenue when the loyalty points are redeemed and the Group has fulfiiled its obligations to supply the
discounted products under the terms of the programme or when it is no longer probable that the award credits wil be redeerned,

1. lnteFnet dispfay charges
omé #fbm intérnet dispiay charges s recognised on an accrual hasis to the extent that itis probable that the economic benefits wilt flow to the Group and the revenue from such services
liably measured.:The performance obligation Is satisfied over a time and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days from satisfactlon of performance obligation.




Bralnhees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limlted}
Notes forming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
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3 Materlal accounting pollcy [nformation
h. Revenue [continued)

iv. Service Income
Service Incame arising from Brand & Platform (Website) License usag s recognised on an accrual basis and In accordance with the agreement, The performance obligation Is satlsfled over
a tirme and payment Is generally due within 45 days from satisfaction of performance obligatlon,

v, Preschool revenue
Reventie from royalty and sales of student kit to franchisee schools Is recognised on accrual basls during the academic year.

vl Contract balances
The Policy for Contract balances Le. contract assets, trade receivables and contract liabilities is as follows:

a. Contract assets and trade receivables

The Group classifies its right to conslderation in exchange for deliverables as elther a receivable or as unbifled revenue, A recelvable is a right to consideration that Is unconditionaj upon
passage of time. Revenues In excess of billings is recorded as unbilled revenue and is classifled as a financial asset where the right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time,
Unbilled revenue which is conditicnal is classified as other current asset, Trade recejvables and unbilled revenue Is presented net of impalrment, Refer to accounting policles of financlal
assets in financial Instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement,

b. Contract llabillties

A contract liability is the obligation to deliver services to a custemer for which the Group has received consideration or part thereof {or an amount of cansideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group deliver services to the customer, a cantract liabllity is recognised when the payment Is made or the payment is due (whichever
is @arller). Contract liabilitles are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract,

\. Other Income
1. Recognltlan of Interest Income or expense
Interest Income or expense Is recognised using the effective interest method,

The ‘effective Interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to!
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial Hability.

In calculating interest lncome and expense, the effective Interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset Is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of
the llability, However, for financlal assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognitlon, interest income is calculated by applying the effective Interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. IF the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the caleulatlon of interest income reverts to the gross basis,

il Rental Income
Rental lncome fram sub-leasing activities Is recognised on an accrual basis based on the underlylng sub-lease arrangements,

1il, Income from support services
Incorne from support services are recognised when the services are performed and recovery of the consideration Is certain,

j- Income tax

income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It Is racognised In profit or loss except to the extent that It relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or In
other comprehensive Income,

I Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recelvable on the taxable Income or loss for the yaar and any adjustment ta the tax payable or raceivable in respect of previous years,
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be pald or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It Is measured
using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assats and current tax liabililes are offset only If there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended ta realise the asset and settle the
llablfity on a net basis or simultaneously.

li. Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognised In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities for financial reporting purpeses and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred ta Is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits, Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temparary differences arising on the Initlal recognition of assets or liabilities in a transactlon that is not a business combination and that affects nelther accounting nor taxable profit or
less at the sime of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to Invastments in subsidlaries, associates and jeint arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to contral the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and It is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that It is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be used, The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset to
the extent that there is convincing other evidence that sufficlent taxable profit will be avallable against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or
recognlzed, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized / reduced ta the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respactively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax Is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset Is reallsed or the liabllity Is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurerment of deferrad tax refiects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover ar settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liahilities,

Deferred tax assets and llabilltles are offset if there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax Jiabilities and assets, and they refate to income taxes levied by the same tax autharity
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settls current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and Jiabilities will be realised
simultaneausly,

k. Borrowling cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs {including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to Interest costs)
Ineurred In connection with the berrowing of funds, Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial perfod of time to get
ready for thelr intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense In the period in which they are incurred,
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3  Materlal accounting policy information

|. Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there Is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the relevant conditlons and the grant will ke received,

Government grants are recognlsed In the statement of profit and lass, either on a systematic basis when the Group recognises, as expenses, the related costs that the grants are intended to
compensate or, immediately if the costs have already been Incurred. Government grants refated to assets are deferred and amortised over the useful life of the asset, Government grants
refated to Income are presented as an offset against the related expenditure, and gavernment grants that are awarded as incentives with no ongoing performance cbligations to the Greup
are recognised as Income In the perfod in which the grant is received.

. Business combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition
date falr value and the amaunt of any nan-controlling Interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-contraliing Interests In the
aequiree at falr value or at the proportlonate share of the acquiree’s dentifiable net assets, Acqulsition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets Include an input and a substantive procass that together slgnificantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The acquired process Is considered substantive If 1t is critical to the ability to continue producing cutputs, and the inputs acquired Include an organised werkforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or It significantly centributes to the ability to continue praducing outputs and Is considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, er delay In the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the ideatifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values, For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilities representing prasent obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that autflow of resources embodying economic benefits s
not probable. However, the following assets and liabifities acqulred in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated betow:

+ Deferred tax assets or liabifities, and the llabllitles or assets related to employee benetlt arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with [nd AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS
19 Employee Banefits respactively,

+ Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with
Ind AS 12,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financlal assets and liabilittes assumed for appropriate classification and designation In accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This Includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquires,

if the busiess combination Is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interast is re-measured at Its acquisition date falr value and any resulting gatn or loss Is recognised In profit or
loss or OC|, as approptiate.

Any contingent cansideration to be transferred by the acquirer Is recognlsed at falr value at the acquisition date, Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financlal
instrument and within the scope of ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in falr value recognised in profit o loss in accordance with Ind AS 109. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it Is measured In accordsnce with the appropriate (nd AS and shall ba recognised in profit or loss, Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity Is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequant its settlement Is accounted for within equity.

Goadwill Is Initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for nen-controtling Interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, If the falr value of the net assets acquired is in excass of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether It has correctly identifted all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisiticn date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gainls recognised in OCl and
accumulated in equity as capltal reserve. However, if there Is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the galn directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the
same through OCj,

After initial recognitlon, goadwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impalrment testing, goodwlil aequired in a business cambination Is, frem
the acquisition date, allocated ta each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expacted to benefit from the combination, irrespectlve of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been alfocated Is tested for Impalrment annually, or more frequently when there s an indication that the unit may be Impalred. If the
recaverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated fizst to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unlt pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset In the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill Is recognised In profit or lass. An impalrment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit Is disposed of, the goodwill assoclated with the disposed operation Is Included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill dispesed in these circumstances Is measurad based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

n. Forelgn currency

Monetary assets and liabllitles denominated In foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date, Non-monetary assets and iiabilities
that are measurad at falr value In a forelgn currency are transfated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
liabliities that are measured based on historical cost In a forelgn currency are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transactlon, Exchange difference ara recognised In profit
and loss, .

For the purpose of consclidation, the assets and iiahbilitles of the Group's forelgn operations are translated to Indian rupees at the exchange rate prevaliing on the balance sheet date, and
the income and expenses at the average rate of exchange for the respective months, Exchange differences arising on such translation are recognised as currency transiation reserve under
equity, Exchange differences arlsing from the translation of a forelgn operation previously recognised in currency translation reserve In equity are not reclassified from equity to profit or
loss until the disposal of the eperation,

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and an hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or fess, which are subject toan
inslgnificant risk of changes in value,

p. Leases Ind AS 116

The Group evaluates If an arrangement qualifies to be a fease as per the requirements ot Ind AS 116 Identification of a tease regulres significant Judgment, The Group uses significant
judgement in assassing the lease term {including anticipated renewals) and the applicable disrount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the nen-cancellable period of 2 leass, together with both periads covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group s reasonably certain to
gxerdsp'tﬁat-opglon, and perlads coverad by an option to terminate the lease if tha Group is reasonably certaln not to exerclse that option. in assessing whether the Group Is reasonably
- certfa-in‘t‘d e‘xlerclsé';_an optlon to extend a lease, or hot to exercise an option to terminate 2 lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
. Group te exeri:is;e thg.optien to extend the lease, or not to exarclse the option to terminate the lease. The Graup revises the lease term If there s a change in the non-cancellable period of 3
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Group as a lessee

The Group recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. As per ind AS 116, lease commencement
date Is the date on which a lessor makes an underlying asset avallable for use by a lessee. The Holding Company generally has two types of leases, one being lgases for holding cornpany
owned physical stores and other being the leases for warahouses of the holding company. In case of leases for holding cempany owned physical stores, the halding company recognizes
right of use asset on the lease commencement date. However, in case of leases for warehouses, lessar provides a rent-free period to facifitate fitting out and essentlal modifications to the
assets to make It avallable for use by the holdlng corpany. The assets cannot be used until the modifications are completed, hence the holding company recognizes right-of-use asset for
warehouse leases on completion of the Initlal rent free perlodi.e, the date on which asset is avaitable for use,

The cost of the right of use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the Initlal measurement of lease labflity adjusted for any fease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives recelved, plus any lnitial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be Incurred by the lessee In dismantiing and removing the
underlylng asset or restoring the undeclying asset or site on which It is located. The right-of use assets subsequently measured at cost less any accurnulated amortisation, accumulated
impalrment losses, If any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right of use asset Is depreciated In the straight line method from the commencement date over the
shorter of lease term or useful ife of right-of-use asset, Right-of use assets are tested for Impairment where there any indlcation that their carrying amaunts may not be recoverable.
Impalrment loss, If any, is recognized In the standalene statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease paymants that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease, The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses Incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reascnably
similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease by lease basls, may adopt either the Incremental borrawing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a
whole, The lease payments shall include fixed payments, varlable lease payments, residuat value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Group Is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of peralties for terminating the fease, if the lease term raflects the lessee exerclsing an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subseguently
re-measured by increasing the carrylng amount to reflect interest on the Jease fiability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and re-measurlng the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or fease modifications or to reflect revised In-substance fixed lease payments, Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there Is a further reduction In the measurement of the lease flability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss,

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (l.e., those Jeases that have a lease term of 12 months or Jess from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applles the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
Jeases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Where the Group Is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ewnership of an asset Is classified as an operating lease. Assets subject ta operating leases are included
in the property, plant and equipment. Rental income on an operating lease is recognised in she Consolidated Staterment of Profit and 10ss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs,
Including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

COVID 19 - Related Rent Concesslons
The amendments to Ind AS 116 provide a practical expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concesstons that are a direct consequence of the COVID 19 pandemic.

Many lessars have provided rent concessions to lessees as a result of the COVID 19 panderle. Rent concessions can include rent holidays or rent reductions for a pericd of time, Applying
the requlrerments In Ind AS 116 for changes to fease payments, particularly assessing whether the rent concessions are lease modifications and applying the required accaunting, could be
practically difficult In the current environment. The objectlve of the amendment is to provide |essees that have been granted COVID 19 refated rent concessions with practical relief, while
stifl providing usefu) Information about feases to users of the financial statements.

() The change in lease payments resuits in revised consideration for the Jease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately praceding the
change.

{il) Any reduction In [ease payments affects only payments criginally due on or befere june 38, 2021.

{ili) Thera Is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease,

Pursuant to the above amendment, the Group has applied the practlcai expedient with effect from Aprii 01, 2020. The Group has accounted the unconditlonal rent concessions in
“Miscellaneeus lncome” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

«. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reparted in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker, The board of directors of the Group are identified as
Chief operating declsien maker. Refer note 31 for segment Information. Subsequent to acquisitions of DARP and Globalbees subsidiaries and expanslon of International operations, for
management purposes, the Group Is recrganised Its segments, which provides relavant information for better understanding of the Group's financial performance and resource allkocation
decisions, Accordingly, the Group primarily operates in faur segments namely {i) India multi-channel, {1} International, (ii}) Globalbees and {iv} others.

5. Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Holding Company (after deducting preference dividends
and attributable taxes) by the welghted average number of equity and compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding during the perlod.

For the purpese of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit and loss for the perlad attributable to equity shareholders of the Holding Company and the welghted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of ali dilutive potential equity shares.

t. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the exlsting standards under Compantes {Indlan Accounting Standasds) Rules as Issued from time to time,
For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notifled any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Bralnbees Solutlons Private Limlted
Notes forming part of these Consclidated Financlal Statement
{AH amounts in Rupees millien, unless otherwlse stated)

Goodwill

Particulars Goodwlll
Gross Block
Balance asat April 1, 2022 6,417.80
Additions due to Buginess Combination* 1,340,641
Balance as st March 31, 2023 7,758.41
Balance as at April 1, 2023 7,758.41
Additions due to Business Comblnation* 23.13
Balance as at March 31, 2024 7,781.54
Carrying amounts {net}
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7,758.41
Balance as at March 31, 2024 7,781.54

*initial Accounting of these Business Combination has bean determined on Provisional Basis.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be daductible for income tax purposes.

Impatrment assessment for goodwlll and Intanglble assets with indefinite lifa

Goadwill and Intangible assets with Indefinite life are tested for Impalrment on an annual basls. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and Iatangible assets with indefinite life acqulred Ina
business comblnation are allocated ta the Group's Cash Generating Unit {CGU or groups of CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergles arising from the business combinatichs. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or greup of assats.

Goodwill and intanglble assets acquired through business combinations with adefinite lives has bean allocated to the followlng CGU's!

particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
india Multi-channel Segment
Bralnbeas Sclutions Private Umited 3,032.47 3,032.47
Swara Baby Products Private Limited 219.41 219.4%
Firmroots Private Limited . 17,76 17.76
Solis Hygiene Private Limited 47,44 47.44
Digitat Age Retail Private Limited 222.17 220217
Subtotal {A) 3,539.25 3,530,25
Glohalbees Brands Segments
Home Utiiities 1,161.42 1,161.42
Fashion [ Lifestyle 684,50 671.77
Appllances 1,481,07 1,481.07
Beauty & Personal Care / Home & Personal Care 202,34 902.34
Sub-total {a) 4,239.73 4,216.60
Others {C)
Edubees Educational Trust 2,56 2.56
7,781,54 7,758.41
Brand actjulred separately In:
Brainbees Solutions Private Limited 344.40 344.40
Swara Baby Products Private Limited 114.16 114.16
Sub-total (1) 458.56 458.56
Total {a+b} 8,240.10 8,216.97

impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU, including the goodwitl and Intangible assets with Indefinite life, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The recaverable
amount of CGU is higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use, Value-in-use Is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU, The recoverable amount
of goodwill 15 based on valus-In-use,

The carrying amount was computed by allocating the net assets to the CGU for the purpose of impairment testing,

Value-In-use is calculated using after tax assumptions, The use of after tax assumptions does not result In a value-in-use that is materlally different from the value-in-use that would result if the
calcufation was performed using before tax assumptlons.
The average range of kay assumptions used for calculation of value in use ara as follows;

As at March 31, [ As at March 31,
lculars ' '
Partleula 2024 2023
Discount rate 11.58-20.40% | 11.00-20.30%
Terminal growth rate 5,00% 5.00%

The discount rate Is a pre-tax measure based on the rate of 18 year government bonds issued by government in the relevant market and in the same eurrency as the cash flows, adjusted for risk
pramium to reflect both the Incraased risk of investing in equitles generally and the systemic 1isk of specified CGU.

The cash flow projection include specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal growth rate has been determined based on management’s estimate at which
company's free cash flow are expected to grow perpetually beyond the explicit period, consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would make,

The Group belleves that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which a recoverable amount Is hased would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the cash - generating unit.
Based on the above, no impairment was Identified as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 as the recoverable value of the CGUs exceedad the carrying valus.
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Bralnbees solutlans Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes formlng part of these Consolidated Financtal Statement :
(All amounts kn Rupeas million, unless otherwise stated)

5 Right-of-use assets

The changes in the carrylng value of Right-of-use assets {ROU) assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 & year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Partlculars Land Bulldings Vehicles Total
galance as on April 1, 2022 264,70 2,972.40 4.98 3,242.08
Additlons durlng the year - 4,243,21 - 4,243.23
Additions dug to Business Combination 49,73 743.69 - 793,42
Daletions during the year - (151.95) - {151.95}
Amortisation for the year {3.28) {1,010.22) {177 {1,015.27)
Changes on account of Remeasurement/ modification of lease - 8.87} 0.59) {9.46)
Effects of translation of Ferelgn Currency - 14.41 0,13 14.54
Balance as on March 31, 2023 31115 6,802.67 2,75 1,116.57
Balance as on April 1, 2023 311.15 6,802.67 275 7,116.57
Additions during the perlod 20721 3,597.51 - 3,617.72
Daletions during the perled {117.70) {156.42) - {274.12}
Amortisation for the perlod {2.53) {£,447.85} (1.84) 14,452.22}
Effects of translation of Ferelgn Currency - 0.84 0.03 0.87
Balance as on March 31, 2024 211,13 8,796.75 0.94 9,008.82
The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets Is included under depreciation and amortisation expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The break-up of current and not-current lease Jiabiiitles are as follows:
particul As At March 31, | As At March 31,
articutars 2024 2023
Current lease Habifitles 1,115.48 817.49
Nan-current lease liabllities 8,482.77 6,408.86
Total leasa llabllities 9,598.25 7,226.35
The movement in lease Habilitles during the years are as follows:
particul As At March 31, | As At March 31,
anars 2024 2023
Opening Batance 7,226.35 3,191.92
Additions during the year 3,461.21 4,316.18
Additions due to Business Combination - 568.16
interest Cost accrued during the year 878.78 560,06
Rent Concessions during tha year - {20.01)
Deletions durlng the year $195.27) {181.45)
Payments during the year {1,772.88) {1,200,92}
Changes on account of remeasuzement/ modification of lease (0.41) {21.79)
Effects of transiation of Forelgn Currency 0.48 14.20
Closlng Balance 9,598,25 7,226.35
Amounts recognlsed in the Statement of profit and loss
Particulars As At March 31, | As At March 33,
olar 2024 2023
Amortlsation expense on right-af-use assets i452.22 1,015.27
interest expense on jeasa llabilives 878,78 560.06
Expenses related to short-term leases or low value leases 800.51 562.24
Rent Concesslons during the year - 20,01
Loss on termination of lease contract 115.80 “
Galn on terminatlon of lease contract 37.97 29.50
Amounts recognised In Cash flow statement
particulars As At March 31, | As AtMarch 31,
i 2024 2023
Cash outflow for leases (1,772,89) (1,200.92)

Notes:

When measuring lease llabllities for cperating leases, the Group discounted lease payments using its Incremental borrowing rate at the date of Inception of the leases. The welghted average

pre tax rate applied approximates within the range 5% to 14% p.a. for all the years.
For maturity analysis of fease liabllities, refer note 3&{lil),

5{(a) Non-current Investments

particuls As at March 31, | As at March 31,
artlculars 2024 2023
Investments at amortised cost

Unquoted - equity instruments

6,380 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Ekhaya Braads Private Limited 50,00

Ungquoted - others

Investment in National Savings Certificate 0.08 0.08
Total 50.08 0.08
Aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
Apgregate market value of quoted Investrments - -
Aggregate value of unquoted Investments 50,08 0.08
Lrﬂegate amount of iImpairment in value of Iavestments - -




Brainbees Solutlons Limited (formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited}
Notes farming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
{All amounts In Rupees mililon, unless otherwise stated)

5{b) Current lnvestments

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Partlculars 2024 2023
Investments at falr value through profit or loss [FVTPL)
Unquoted Equity Instruments 0,06 0.04
Total 0,06 0.04
Aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate value of ungueted investments 0.06 .04
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
6fa} Other non-curvent financial assets
particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
4 2024 2023
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposits 557.18 375,04
Government grants receivables 262.84 178,50
Bank deposits (maturity more than 12 months) 11144 337,61
Others 15.07 0.07
Total 946.20 891.22
6{b) Other current flnanclal assets
partlcutars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
¢ 2024 2023
Unsecured consldered good unless otherwise stated
Securlty Deposits 1711 871
Governmant grants recelvables 157.83 34,55
Custom Disy Recejvable 0.66 2.78
Other financlal assets 605,31 83.58
Total 791,91 130.62
7 Deferred Tax Assets/(Llabllities)
The break-up of deferred tax assets/{#abilities) are as under:
partleulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Deferred Tax Asset
Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 52551 517.46
Employees’ benefits 63,56 48.73
On tease llabilites 2,337,05 1,735.56
On right-of-use asset (2,049.64) (1,570.8G)
Carry forward Josses 835.71 684,85
Unrealised Gain on Inventories arising out of Intragroup transactions 185.23 212,08
Total 1,897.42 1,627.88
Deferred Tax LiabHitles
Preperty, piant and equipment and Intangibles {2,860.27} (3,015.06}
Others 15,12 0.44
Total 12,845.15) [3,014.62
Total {947.73) {1,386.74)

8{a) Income tax assets [net)

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2024 2023
income tax assets (net}* 324.99 273.40
Total 324,99 273.40
*Net of provision for tax as at March 31, 2024: Rs, 112.93 million [March 31, 2023: Rs. 36.97 millien}
&[b) Current tax llabilities {net)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Partlculars
2024 2023
Income tay Habilities [net of advance tax)* 55,78 3113
Totak 55.78 31.13

* Net of Advance Tax paid as at March 31, 2024; Rs. 338.07 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 71.76 milllion}

#{c} Loans

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2024 2023
Unsecured consldered good unless otherwlse stated
Loan to KMP and directors {refer note 35)* 84.06 76.58
Loans to employees 276.76 314.08
Total 360.82 39027

+There are no loans or advances In the nature of foans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

-. {a) repayable on demand; or
+' {9} without specifying any terms or period of repayment




Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)
Nates forming part of these Consolldated Financial Statement
{All amousnts In Rupeas milllon, unless otherwlise stated)

g{a) Othernon current assets

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars

2024 2023
Unsecurea considered good unless otherwlse stated
Balance with Gavernment authoritles : .
GST recelvable 2,545.82 247175
Amount pald under protest 9.44 10.98
Capital advances 102,22 284.17
Advance to suppliers 4.84 -
Prepaid expenses 271 1.47
Total 2,665.03 2,780.37

9{b} Other current assets

March 31
Partlculars As at March 31, | As at h 31,

2024 2023
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to employees 29.05 20,26
Prepald expenses 132.82 125.14
Balance with Government autharities
GST recejvable 1,201.09 867,98
VAT recejvable 0.54 30,60
Advance to suppliers 2,044.37 852.50
Receivables from supgliers 744.48 695,01
Other receivables 13.45 10,57
‘Tatal 4,165,280 2,602.46

10 Inventorles

Asat March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars

2024 2023
Raw materfa{** 1,530.78 945,39
Work in progress 7.34 5,69
Fialshed goeds* 272,55 254,77
Traded goods* 14,429.20 11,507.07
Store and spares parts including packing materlat 54,75 4711
Total 16,294.62 12,860.03

Note: Durlng the year ended March 31, 2024 Rs, 44,91 million (March 31, 2023: 20.72 milllon) was recognised as expense for inventories carried at NRV.
_*Above Inventeries Includes Goods-in-Teansit amounting to Rs, 1,565.57 million {March 31, 2023; Rs. 733.47 million}
+*Above Inventories Includes Materlal-in-Transit amounting to Rs, 19,49 milllon {March 31, 2023; Rs. 93.58 miiflon}

11 Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Considarad good - Secured - -
Considered good — Unsecured 2,184.07 2,251,30
Trade Recelvables which have significant Increase In credit risk 8.49 10,74
Trade Recelvables — credit impaired 80,40 13.37
Total Trade Recelvables 2,272.96 2,275.41
Lessi Impalrment allowance {allowance for bad and doubtful debt}
Trade Receivables which have significant Increase in credit risk {8.49) {10,74}
Trade Recelvables - credit impaired {80.40) {13,37}
Total 2,184.07 2,251.30
Trade recelvahles ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
iled Less il -1
Partleulars Unblile Not Dus s than & & months 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 Total
Revenue manths year years
Undi d receivabl -
ndisputed  Trade  receivables 03,64 181,63 1519.63 204,67 86.54 3.10 476 2,184.07
consldered good
Undisputed Trade Recelvables — which - 0.07 251 1.4 3.92 0.85 - 8.49
have significant Increase In credit tisk
Undi bles ~
ndisputed Trade Receivables -~ credit _ . 6.49 8,23 47.24 1874 j 50.40
Impalred
Disputed Trade Recslvables— consldered j
good
Disputed Trade Recelvables — which have - - - - - - - -
slgnificant increase In credit risk
Disputed Trade Raceivables - credit j i i j
impaired




Brainbees Sokutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
{All amaunts In Rupees milllon, unless otherwise stated)

Trade recelvables agelng schedule as at March 31, 2023

u than & 6 -1 M han 3
Particulars nbliled Mot Due bess tha maaiths 1-2 years 2-3 years ore t Total
Revenue months year years
bl
Undlsputed  Trede  racelvables 107.34 137.83 1,795.33 187.64 1512 461 343 2,251.30
censidered gaod
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which - - .77 2,70 7.27 “ - 1074
have significant increase in credit risk
~ T
Undisputed Trade Recelvables ~ cradit . R 01 171 1.35 . ; 1337
impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables- considered j | j ) j ) N
good
Disputed Trade Recelvables — which have - - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Recelvables — credit j ] _ i
impaired
12{a} Cash and cash equivalents
particul As at March 31, [ As at March 31,
artlculars 2024 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash In hand 1.93 1.69
Fund in Transit 28.55 6,81
Balances with banks
|ry current accounts 1,314.71 1,253,21
Iy deposit accounts having origlnat maturlty less than 3 months 2,271.77 1,331,80
Total 3,616.96 2,583.51
12{b) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equlvalents
particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with remalning maturity of less than twelve months 3,12091 9,200.15
Total 3,120.91 9,200.15
13{a) Equlty share capital
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Autherised
Equity shazes of Rs, 2 each 55,24,55,000 1,104.91 45,24,55,000 904.91
Issued, subscribed and fuliy pald up equity shares
Equity shares of Rs. 2 each 44,81,65,500 B896.32 43,32,65,195 866,52
Less:
Shares Issued to Brainbees ESOP Trust . {4,08,06,340) {81.61) {2,59,05,635) (51.81)
40,73,59,560 814.71 40,73,59,560 814,71
Reconclflation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Nos Amount Nos Amount
A. Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year 43,32,65,195 866.52 9,99,71,547 495,85
Shares Jssued during the year on account of Exercise of Stock Opticns - - 1,27,544 0,64
Shares [ssued to Brainbees ESOP Trust 1,49,00,705 29.80 - -
Increase In shares on account of sub-division® - - 15,01,48,787 -
Reclassifiad from SeHes A £quity Shares and Serles £ Equity Shares . - - 18,30,17,218 366.03
At the end of the year 44,81,65,900 895,32 43,32,65,195 866.52
B. Series A Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year - - 40,232 0.20
Increase in shares on account of sub-division* - - 60,348 -
Reclassified as Equity Shares - - {1,00,580} {0.20)
At the end of the year - - - -
C. Serles E Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year B - 7,31,66,655 365,83
Increase in shares on account of sub-divistan* - - 16,97,49,983 -
Reclassifled as Equity Shares - - {18,29,16,638} {365.83)
At the end of the year M - N N
Less!
Shares issued to Brainbees ESCP Trust (4,08,06,340) (81.61) (2,59,05,635) {51.81)
Total Issued, subscribed and pald up share capital 40,73,59,560 814.71 40,73,59,560 814,71

*The Shareholders of the Holding Company, at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on April 25, 2622 have approved the subdivision of its existing authorlsed, Issued, subscribed and
pald-up share capltal of face value of Rs. 5 each to face value of Rs. 2 each with effect from April 25, 2022,

Investor shares shall include the following:

1 Serjes A Equity shares

2 Equity shares issued under the Business Transfer Agreement
3 Equity shares held by investors

4 Serles E Equity Shares




Brainhees Solutions Limited {formetly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Conseldated Financial Statement
{all amounts in Rupees miltion, unless otherwise stated}

13{a) Equity share capltal {Continued)
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equlty Shares, Serles A Equity Shares and Series E Equity Shares

Equlty Shares and Serles A Equity Shares
The Group has equity shares having a face value of Rs. 2 per share, Each holder of equity share is entltled to cne vote per share. The Group shall not declare dividend In respect of the
Equity Shares or ary other class of shares In excess of the dividend permissitle to be pald to the non-resident haolders of the lavestor Shares,

Serles E Equity Shares

The Group has lssued Serles E equity shares during the year ended March 31, 2019, having a face value of Rs, 2 per share, Fach Serles E Equity Share shall have one vote and carry voting

rights on the basis of, and to the extent of, the ameunts pald-up on each Serles E Equity Share, The halders of the Series £ Equity Shares shall be entitled to participate In the disteibution

of the prafits of the Company prior to the other Security Hotders but simultanagusly with the holders of Serles A CCPS, Serles B CCPS, Series C CCPS, Series C1 CLPS, Serles C2 CCPS, Series

D1 CCPS, Serles D2 CCPS, In proportion to theis holding of Series E Equity Shares. The holders of the Setles E Fquity Shares shall be eptitled to recelve any non-cash dividend by way of
" deemed bonus declared by the Board,

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars % of total % of total
Nos Nos
shares in class shares in class

Equity shares
SVF Frog {Cayman} Limited 12,4G,92,296 28% 13,83,08,813 32%
Mahindra Retall Limited* 4,11,16,885 9% 4,11,16,885 9%
Mr, Supam Maheshwari 2,88,93,347 6% 4,82,36,597 9%
Brainbees ESOP Trust 4,08,06,340 9% 2,59,05,635 5%
Pl Opportunities Fund — 1 Scheme I 2,64,57,268 6% 2,64,57,268 6%
NextGen Management Services 2,24,82,080 5% 2,24,82,090 5%

*Mahindra Retall mited (formerly Mahindra Retali Private Limited) has amalgamated with Mabindra & Mahindra Limited pursuant to an order datad April 29, 2022 passed by National
Company Law Tribunal {{NCLT')

Serles A Equity Shares and Series E Equity Shares are classified as Equity Shares, hence there are no shareholders holding these Categories of shares,

Particulars of Shareholding of promoters

As of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Holding Company does not have an Identifiable promoter in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly disclosures related to
promoter shareholding is not given. The Holding Company is a professlonally managed Company.

Equity shares movernent during 5 years preceding March 31, 2024
There were no equity shares issued as bonus or without consideration during last 5 years as on March 31, 2024 The Holding Company bought back 1,309,860 equity shares for an
aggregate amount of Rs. 307.57 million at Rs. 234.81 per equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on October 15, 2020

13{b) Equity Compenent of Compulsorily Canvertible Preference Shares

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorlsed
Serles A CCPS {Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 1,55,000 031 1,55,000 0.31
Series B CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 8,656,165 193 8,66,165 1.73
Serles C CCPS {Compuisorily Convertlble Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 2,18,56,650 43,71 2,18,56,650 43,71
sarles C1 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 4,38,100 0.88 4,38,100 .88
Series G2 CCPS (Compulsarily Convertibie Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 77,900 0.16 77,900 o.1s
Series D1 CCPS {Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 1,22,17,950 24.44 1,22,17,950 24.44
Series 02 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares} of Rs. 2 each 1,44,92,750 28,40 1,41,97,750 28.40
Option 1 CCPS {Campulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of fis. 2 each 30,500 0.06 30,500 0.06
Option 2 CCPS {Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares} of Rs, 2 each 70,000 0,14 70,000 0.14
£quity Component of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
serles A CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 72,315 0,14 72,315 014
Series B CCPS {Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares) of Ris, 2 each 36,758 0.07 36,755 0,07
Serles C CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 1,75,00,800 35.00 1,75,00,900 35.00
Serias C1 CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares} of Rs. 2 each 4,38,100 0,88 4,38,100 0.88
Serles €2 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertiole Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 77,900 0.16 77,900 0.16
serles D1 CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs, 2 each 1,22,17,950 24.44 1,22,17,950 24.44
Serles D2 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of Rs. 2 each 48,39,650 9,68 48,39,650 9,68
Option 1 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertiale Preference Shares} of Rs, 2 each - - - -
3,51,83,570 70.37 3,51,83,570 70.37
Reconcillation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Paritculars
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Series A CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 72,315 0.14 28,926 0,14
Increase In shares oh account of sub-division*® - - 43,389 -
At the end of the year 72,315 0.14 72,315 0.14
Serles 8 CCPS [Compulsarlly Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commancement of the year 36,755 0.07 14,702 0.07
Increase In shares on account of sub-division® - - 22,0583 -
At the end of the year 36,755 0.07 36,755 0.07
series C CCPS {Computsorlly Convertlble Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 1,75,00,900 35,00 70,00,350 35.00
Increase in shares on account of sub-division* - - 1,05,00,540 -
At the end of the year 1,75,00,900 35.00 1,75,00,900 35.00
Serfes C1 CCPS {Compuiserily Convertible Preference Shares}
At the commencement of the year 4,38,100 0.88 1,75,24% Q.88
Increase in shares on account of sub-diviston* - - 2,62,860 -
At the end of the yoar 4,318,100 (.88 4,3B,1.00 0.48
|series c2 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 77,500 0.18 31,160 0.16
) I{i;rg‘éi_s‘e in shares on account of sub-division* - - 46,740 -
At'the end of the year 71,900 0.16 77,900 14.16




Bralnbees Salutlens Limited {formerly known as Bralnbeas Sclutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Censolidated Financlal Statement

[Alk amounts in Rupees milllon, unless otherwise stated)

13{b} Equity Component of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares fcontinued)

Reconcillation of shares outstandlng at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

MNos Amaount Nos Amount
Series D1 CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 1,22,17,950 24.44 48,87,180 24,44
Increase In shares on account of sub-divisien* - - 73,30,770 -
At the end of the year 1,22,17,950 24.44 1,22,17,950 24.44
Serles D2 CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertlble Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 48,39,650 2,68 19,35 860 9.68
increase In shares on account of sub-divislon*® - - 29,03,790 -
At the end of the year 48,39,650 9.68 48,39,650 9.68
Total 3,51,83,570 7037 3,51,83,570 70.37

* The Shareholdars of the Holding Company, at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on April 25, 2022 have approved the subdivision of its existing authorised, ssued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of face value of Rs. 5 each to face value of Rs, 2 each with effect from April 25, 2022,

Investor shares shall include the following:
Serles A CCPS

Serles B CCPS

Series C CCPS

Series C1 CCPS

Series C2 CCPS

Serles 01 CCPS

Serles D2 CCPS

Optlon 1 CCPS

o~ oWk

Rights, preferences and restrictlens attached to Serles A, Series B, serles C, Series C1, Series C2, Serles D1 & D2 Compulsorlly Convertlble Preference Shares and Option 1
Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares

Serles A and Serles B CCPS

The Company has issued Series A and Series B CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) having a face value of Rs. 2 per share. Each shareholder of Serles A CCPS and Series B
€CPS shall be entitled to vote on Series A CCPS and Serles & CCPS respactively held by thern [as a single class and on a converted basis and not as a separate class) except as specifically
provided. The holders of Serles A CCPS shall be entitied to payment of 0.001% cumutative eoupan per annum on each Setles A CCPS by way of dividends from the Company in accordance
with applicable Laws and when the Board declares any dividend. The dividend would be cumulative and would be paid prior to payment of any dividend with respect to Equity Shares and
Serles A Equity Shares. The halders of the Series A CCPS and Series B CCPS shall have the right to convert all or any portion of the Series A CCPS and Saries B CCPS heid by them at any
time at the then applicable Serles A CCPS and Serles B CCPS conversion rato ranging of 1:1 Into Equity Shares of the Company, prior to expiry of 19 years from the allotment of shares,

Serles C, Serles C1 and Serles C2 CCPS

The Company has issued Series C, Series C1 and Serles C2 CCPS {Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares) having a face value of Rs. 2 per share, £ach shareholder of Series C, Series C1
and Series C2 CCPS shall be entitled to vote on Series C, Series C1 and series C2 CCPS respectively held by them (as a single class and on a converted basis nd not as a separate class)
except as specifically provided, The holders of Series C, Series C1 and Series C2 CCPS shall be entitled to payment of higher of 0.001% cumulative coupon per annum on the Face vatie of
each of Serles C, Serles C1 and Series C2 CEPS or the amount receivable by them in the dividend declared based on their shareholding in the Cornpany on an as is cenverted basls, as and
when the Board declares any dividend, The dividends would be cumulative and would e paid prior to payment of any dividend with respect to Equity Shares {save the Series A Equity
Shares as sat out herein}. The holders of the Serles C, Serles C1 and Series C2 CCPS shall have the right to convert all or any portion of the Series €, Series C1 and Serles C2 CCPS hald by
them at any time at the then applicable Series C, Series C1 and Series C2 CCPS converslon ratio of 1:1 Inte Equity Shares, pricr ta expiry of 19 years from the allotment of shares,

Setles D1 and Serles D2 CCPS

The Company has Series D1 and Serles D2 CCPS {Compuisorlly Convertible Preference shares) having a face value of Rs. 2 per share, Each shareholder of Serles B1 and Serles D2 CCPS
shall be entitled to vote on Sertes B1 and Serles D2 CCPS respactively held by thern {as a single classand on a cohverted basis and not as a separate class) except as specifically provided,
The holders of Serles D1 and Sertes D2 CCPS shall be entitled to payment of higher of 0.001% cumulative coupen per annum on the Face value of each of Serles D1 and Series 02 CCPSor
the amount receivable by them in the dividend declared based on their shareholding in the Company on an as is converted basis, as and when the Board declares any dividend, The
dividends would ba cumulative and would be pald prior to payment of aay dividend with respect to Equity Shares {save the Series A Equity Shares as set out herein). The holders of Serles
D1 and Serles D2 CCPS shall have the right to convert zll or any portion of the Series D1 and Series D2 CCPS held by them at any time at the then applicable Series D1 and Series D2 CCPS
converslon ratio of 111 Into Equity Shares, prior to expiry of 19 years from the allotment of shares.

Option 1 CCPS

The Campany has issied Option 1 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) during the year, having a face vaiue of Rs, 2 per share. Each sharehotder of Cption 1 CCPS shall be
antitled to vote on Option 1 CCPS held by them (as a single class and on a cenverted basis and not as a separate class) except as specifically provided. The holders of Optien 1 CCPS shait
have no pricrity with respact to payment of dividend or repayment of capital vis-a-vis equity shares and the same shall be pald/repaid as per Companles Act, 2043, The holders of Option
1, CCPS shall receive dividend on non-cumulative basts. The holders of Option 1 CCPS shall have the right to convert all or any portion of the Option 1 £CPS held by them at any time in
ratio of 1:380 into Equlty Shares, prior to expiry of 19 vears from the allotment of shares,

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars % of total % of total
Nos Nos
shares in class shares In class

Series A CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares}

P! Qpportunities Fund - 1 72,315 100% 72,315 100%

serles B CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares)

Pl Oppartunitles Fund —1 36,755 100% 36,755 100%

Series C CCPS {Compubsorlly Convertlble Preferente Shares)

Vallant Maurltius Partneis FDI Limited 1,07,38,987 61% 1,07,38,987 61%

TPG Growth V SF Markets Pte Ltd, . 42,79,925 24% 42,794,925 24%

P Opportunities Fund — 1 18,156,383 10% 18,16,383 10%

Serles C1 CCPS [Compulsorily Convertibie Preference Shares)

Pl Opportunities Fund ~ 1 4,38,100 100% 4,38,100 100%

Series C2 CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares) .

Ratan N Tata 77,900 100% 71,800 100%

serles D1 CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertlble Preference Shares}

Mahindra Engineering and Chemical Products Limited* 1,22,17,950 100% 1,22,17,950 100%
" Iseries b2 CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)

Vallant Mauritius Partners FDI Limited 38,47,105 79% 38,47,105 79%

Frat]_t_h'l Iﬁ\:eslment Trust 3,38,200 7% 3,38,200 7%

.?.'Ma't;ipdrg Enginsering and Chernical Preducts Limited has amalgamated with Mabindra & Mahindra Limited pursuant to an order dated April 29, 2022 passed by Natlonal Company Law
Tribuial {'NCLT")



Bralnbees Solutions Umited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement

{All amounts in Rupees million, uiless otherwise stated}

13(h) Equlty Component of Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares [continued)

Compulsorlly Convertlble Preference Shares movement during 5 years preceding March 31, 2024

There were no Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Issued as bonus or without consideration during last 5 years as on March 31, 2024, Also there were no Compulsorily

Convertible Preference Shares which were bought back or extinguished during last 5 year as on March 31, 2024

14 {a) Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Securities premium 28,832.21 28,832,21
Shares optichs outstanding account 6,429,48 4,648,51
Capital redemption resarve 6.59 6,59
Retalned earnings {4,450.87) 184.83
Forelgn Currency Transfation Reserve 4.87 5.35
Total 30,822.28 33,677.49
Non Controfiing interest ©,207.17 7,434.35
Total 6,207.17 7,434,35
{1} Securlties premium
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening balance 8,832.21 28,826,95
Premium an Issue of Equity Shares - 5.26
Closing balance 28,832,221 28,832.21
(i} Shares optlons outstanding account
particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening balance 4,648.51 1,038.93
Share based payment expense 1,780.97 3,614.37
£xercise of Optians vested - {4.79)
Closing balance 6,429.48 4,648,51
{lii} Capltal Redemptlon Reserve
Partlcutars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening balznce 6,59 6,59
(losing balance 6,59 6,59
{iv} Retained earnings
particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening balance 184.83 4,519.23
Net foss for the year (2,742.77} [4,410,81}
Adjustments due to change In Share of Holding Company (Refer Note 32(d})} (1,880.62) 77.39
Others {13.39) (21.28)
Remeasurement of post employment banefit obligations 1.08 20.30
Closlng balance {4,450.87} 184.83
(v) Favelgn Currency Translation Reserva
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening balance 5.35 313
Addition during the year (2.13) 4.31
Others 8.65 {2.19)
Closing balance 4.87 5,35

14 {a) Other Equity {continued)

Securltles premium

Securities premium Is used to recard the premium received on issue of shares, it is utilised In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Capital redemptlon reserve

‘fhe Indian Companies Act, 2013 {the “Companies Act") requires that where & company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium account, a sum equalto
the nominal value of the shares so purchased shall be transferred to a capital redemption reserve account and detalis of such transfer shali be disclosed in the balance sheet. The
capital redemption reserve acceunt may be applied by the corpany, in paying up unissued shares of the company to be issued to shareholders of the company as fully paid bonus

shares,

Shares optlons outstanding account

The Share Options Outstanding account s used to recognise the grant date fair value of options Issued to employees under the Bralnbees Employee Stock Option Flan 2011, BB ESOP

2022, BB ESOP 2023 and Globalbees ESOP,

Forelgn Currency Translation Reserve

The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised i OCL On disposal of a forelgn operation, the component of OCi relating to that particular forelgn

operation Is recognised in profit and loss,

Retalned earnings
Retainad earnings are the profits that the Company has earnad till date,

14(b) MNon-Controlling Interest

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
| 2024 2023
{Opening Balance 7,434,385 7,801,04
Addition/{Reduction) on account of business combination (Refer Note 32) (756.30) 282,96
Share of total Comprehensiva (foss)/income for the year (470.88) {449.59)
e 6,207.17 7,434.35

[Closing balan




Bralnbees Solutions Limlted [formerly known as Bralnbaes Solutions Private Limited)

Notes farming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
{All amounts In Rupees millton, unless otherwise stated)

14{b) Non-Controlling Interest {continued}

set aut below Is summarised financlal information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to tha group, The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are

before inter-company eliminations.

Below is the summarised financlal information of Globaibees Brands Private Limited.

As at March 31, As at March 31,
&
ummarized balance sheet 2024 2023
ownership interest held by non controlling interasts 48,15% 48,15%
Current assets 1,660.58 1,664.65
Current liabllities 770.70 815,47
Net current assets 889,88 849.1%
Non-current assets 20,892.44 19,831.18
Non-current liabilities 8,494.01 6,880.51
Net non-current assets 12,398.43 12,941.68
MNet assets 13,288.30 13,790.87
Accumulated NCL 5,723.82 6,008,88
As at March 31, As at March 31
Summarized statement of profit and loss ! '
tate P 2024 2023
Revenue 70.97 646,84
Profit fer the Year {592,92} {61.50}
Cther comprehensive Income 0.89 351
Total comprehensive Income {592.03) (57.99)
Profit allocated to NCI (285.49) {29.61)
Other comprehensive incoma allocated to NCI 043 1,69
Total cornprehensive income allocated to NCI (285,06) [27.92}
As at March 31, As at March 31,
b1
ummarlzed cash flow 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activitles {418.06) {506.42)
Cash flows from investing activities (792.68) {478.00)
Cash flows from financing activities 1,234,45 {123.48)
Mot Increase/[decrease} In cash & cash aquivalents 23,71 {1,107.91)
15{a) Borrowlngs
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Non-Current Borrowlngs
Secured
Term Loans from Banks 907,79 502.44
1400 Non-convertible debentures of Rs 1,000,000 each 1,386,81 -
200 13.50% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each - 47.96
Total 2,204.60 550.40
Current Borrowings
Secured
Working capltat facliities from banks 979,85 A55.51
Working Capital Loans from financial institutions 749.63 225,00
Current maturities of long term borrowings
{a} Term Loans from Banks 336.98 205,05
{b} 13.50% Mon- Convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each - 72,73
Unsecured
Working Capital Loans from financial institutions 2546 -
Berrowings by subsidiary company from its directors and their relatives 157.81 256.05
Credit facllities from others 82,89 -
Total 2,332,62 1,214.34
Notes:

Nature of Securlty

A, Secured Borrowings from Banks

1. Term Leans {including current maturities of fong term loans} amounting to Rs, 143.03 milllon {March 31, 2023 - Rs. 227.6% million} from HRFC Bank Ltd are exclusively sacured by
way of equitable mortgage of the Factory Land and Building at Indore along with an exclusive first charge on Plant and Machinery & including Current Assets Beth Present and Future
of the Swara Baby Products Private Limited, subsidiary of holding company, The Term Loans carries interest varies from 7.90% to 11.45% p.a., Term Loan will be repaid In 5 years from
the date of disbursement in equated menthly instalments starting from fanuary 2019 and ending in April 2026,

2. Batter and Brighter Homecare Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has cbtained vebicle lozn of Rs. 2,50 million from ICIC! Bank Limited. The loan carrles a
fixed interest rate of 10,50% and Is repayable in 36 equated monthly instalments starting from June 2021. The loan is secured against hypathecation of vehicle. The balance
outstanding as on March 31, 2024 Is Rs 0.16 million (March 31, 2023 - Rs 1.07 million).

3, Dynarnic T Solution Private Limited, step down subsidiary of helding cempany, had taken the loan for vehicle of Rs 1.5 millich, outstanding loan amount as on March 31, 2024. is Rs
Nil million { March 31, 2023 - Rs 0.32 million). The sakd loan carried a floating interest rate 7.4% p.a.
4, Salis Hygiene Private Limited, subsldiary of holding company, has taken term loans from HOFC bank smounting to Rs, 454,96 million {March 31, 2023 - Rs, 476.67 million) which are
secured by way of exclusive charge on Current Assets {Present & Future) of the company, Land and Building in name of company, Plant & Machinery {Present & future)of the company
and Fixed Deposit which needs to placed upfront as per 3 month of equal monthly instalment. The said borrowing Is to be repaid in five years with 1 year moratorium, Interest rata Is
12 Month MCLR + 30 bps.
5. Plantex E-Commerce Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has been provided a sanction limit of credit faciity of Rs 1.92 millien from Union Bank against the
vehicle purchased during the year, The sanction amount Is being of 78.69% of the purchase price of the vehicle. The credit facility carried a interest rate of 9.45% p.a, The outstanding
amount of loan as on March 31, 2024 Is of N{ { March 31, 2023 - Rs 1,75 million).
5. Term Loans (including current maturlties of long term loans) amounting to Rs. 645,77 million {March 3%, 2023 - NI} from HOFC Bank Ltd are exclusively secured by way of equitable
mertgage of the Factory Land and Buliding at Indore along with an exciusive first charge on Plant and Machinery & Including Current Assets Both Present and Future of the Swara
_Hygiene Products Private Limited, step subsidiary of holding company. The Term Loans carrles Interest varies from 8.00% to 11,45% p.a.. Term Loan will be repaid in 5 years from the
ate of disbursemment in equated menthly instalments starting from suly 2023 and ending in July 2026,
7. S'ol.ls‘Hiq:élgne Private Uimited, substdiary of holding company, has taken vehicle loan from Mahindra & Mahindra Financlal Services Umited amounting to Rs. 0.84 million (March 31,
2023 ~'N=|l)_gvh§ch are secured by way of exclusive charge on said vehicle Interest rate 15 9.75% p.a..




Bralnbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Brainbees Solutlons Private timited)
Notes forming part of these Consolldated Financlal Statement
{All amounts In Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

15(a} Borrowlngs {continued}

Nature of Securlty
A Secured Borrowlngs from Banks

B, Terms of non-convertible debentures

1. Globalbees Brands Private Limited ("Globalbees"}, subsidiary of the holding company had an autstanding debanture of Rs. Nil {March 31, 2023 - Rs. 120.69 milllon). Globalbees had
Issued during preceding previous financlal year 200 Serles A Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable, Non-cenvertiole debenture of face value of Rs, 10 fakhs each on private placement basls
for a period of 3 years from the date of allotment at a rate of interest of 13.50% per annum. The debentures are redeermable In 33 monthly instalments starting from March 2022,

The debentures are secured by pari passu charge on all baok-debts, receivables, outstanding meneys, clalms, demands, bills, contracts, engagement and securitias, inventories or good:
in-transit, movable plant and machinery, all intellectual property and intellectual property rights, company's books and records, any cash/non-cash proceeds and any asset acquired by
the Company.

2. Globalbees Brands Private Limited ["Globalbees"}, subsidiary of the holding company has lssued 14.50% secured, redeemable, unlisted and unrated Non convertible debentures
amounting to Rs. 500 Million to Avendus Finance Private Limited and 900 Mililon te Avendus structured Credit Fund for a period 3 years, There is 18 months of prinicipal moratorium
with prinicipal repayment in 6 equal quarterly installments payable from date of first subscriptlon under the issuance, The outstanding balance of debenture |s of Rs 1386,81 Millich as
on March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 - Nil}.

€, Cash Credit Facllity

1, HS Fitness Private Limited "HS Fitness", step down subsidiary of holding company, had obtained an Cash Credit facility of Rs. 100 millien from Axis Bank Limited, The sald faciiity
carried an Interest of 9.95% {MCLR + 1.20%) per annum with monthly rest, The sald facllity was secured primary agalnst hypothecation charge of inventery cum book debts and all
current assets and CGTMSE eoverage. Outstanding amount as on March 31, 2024 3 Rs 37,54 millian { March 31, 2023 - 74.49)

2. Dynamic IT Solution Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company has been provided a sanction limit of credit facility of Rs 50 miliion during the FY 2022-23 from Axis
Bank. It had an outstanding loan of Rs. 48.83 millich {March 31, 2023- 47.57 millicn} from Axis Bank Limited, The said loan carsied an Interest of 9.20% and was repayable on demand.
The said loan Is secured by pari-passu on the entlza current assets of the borrowing company and collateral security of cash margin of 15% by way of fixed deposits with lien. Also
corporate guarantea has been given by its parent company.

3, Candes Technologles Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has been sanctioned a credit faciiity of Rs 150 million on working capital from Axis Sank as on
March 31, 2023, The outstanding balance of credit facility as on March 31, 2024 Is Rs 142.68 million ( March 33, 2023 - Rs 141.83 miifion}.

4, Kitchenopedia Appliznces Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has been sanctioned a averdraft facility of Rs 15 million against the FD during the year. The
sutstanding amount of overdraft facility is Nil as on March 31, 2024 { March 31, 2023 - 8s. 10.64 million).

5. Swara Baby Products Private Umited, subsidiary of holding company, has taken Cash Credit Facllity from HDFC bank amounting te Rs. 11,40 {March 3%, 2023 - Rs. 83.52 miilion)
which are secured by way of exclusive charge on Current Assets (Present & Future) of the company, Land and Building in name of company, Plant & Machinery {Present & futurejof
the company, Iaterest rate is as rautually declded time to time,

6. Solis Hygiene Private Limited, subsidiary of holding company, has taken Cash Credit Facility from HDFC bank amounting to Rs. 119,51 million {March 31, 2623 - Rs. 97.47 million)
which are secured by way of exclusive charge on Current Assets (Present & Future} of the company, Land and Building in name of company, Plant & Machinery {Present & futurejof
the company. Interest rate Is 8.80 p.a, linked to 3 Month T-bill,

7. As on March 31, 2024 Frootie india Private Umited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has a credit facility of Rs 150 miltion from ICICI bank, outstanding balance as on March
31, 2024 is Rs 134.92 milllon { March 31, 2023 - Nil). The rate of interest stipulated by ICIC) Bank shalf be sum of - MCLR-6M and "Spread" per annum, subject to a minimum of - MCLR-
6M, plus applicable statutory levy, if any, on the principal, As on date of avaliment of credit facility the -MCLR-6M is 8,70% and spread Is 1.25% p.a. 1.e.9.5% p.a.

8. Swara Hyglene Private Limlted, step down subsidiary of hotding company, has taken Cash Credit Facliity from HDFC bank amounting to Rs, 233,67 millian {March 31, 2023 - Nil}
which are secured by way of exclusive charge on Current Assets {Present & Future) of the campany, Land and Bulding in name of company, Plant & Machinery {Present & future)of
the company. Interest rate is as mutually decided time to time.

9.DF Pharmacy Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has obtained an Overdraft facllity of Rs. 55 mifiien from indusind Bank Limited for working capital requirernent for
the tenor of 12 months from the sanction date, The said facllity carries an Interest of 0.5% over the Fixed Depasit with monthly rest, The said facility was secured primarily agalnst
Fixed Deposit of the DF Pharmacy Limited with the bank. The custanding balance of credit faclfity as on March 31, 2024 Is Rs 53.35 Million {March 31, 2023 - Nil}

10. Prayosha Expo Private tmited, step down subsldiary of holding company, has obtained an Overdraft facility of Rs. XXX million from 1B¥C Bank Uimited for working capital
requirement The oustanding balance of credit facility as an March 31, 2024 Is Rs 0.47million (March 31, 2023 - Nil}

11. Merhakl Foods and Nutrition Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has obtained an Overdraft facllity of Rs. 200,00 milion from Axis Bank Limited fer working
capital requirement The sald facllity Is secured against its Fixed Daposit with the bank. The oustanding batance of credit facility as on March 31, 2024 Is Rs 197.49 million {March 31,
2023 - Nil}

Detalls of quarterly returns for Borrowings secured agalnst current assets

Particulars of Amount as per Amount as reported in
Name of bank Quarter Securities P the quarterly return/ | Amiount of difference | Reason for Difference
books of account
Provided statement
HDFC Bank Limited Mar-24 Finished Goods 238,95 230,84 9,10 Matertal In transit
HDFC Bank Limited Mar-24 Raw matetial 863,02 963,60 {0.58) Goods n transit
HDFC Bank Limited Mar-24 Trade receivables 590.1% 619.85 29.67) Sales in transit
ICICI Bank Lirnited Mar-24 Stock-in-trade 778.86 777,16 170 Goods In transit
ICiC Bank Limited Mar-24 Trade Receivable 184,17 189,66 (5.49)]  Refer note (i) below
s Bank Umnited Mar-24 Stock-n-trade 208.44 222559 (14.10)] Frovision for NV and
Slow moving stock
Axds Bank Limited Mar-24 Trade Recelvable 189.15 211,72 {22.53}]  Refer note (i} below
Note - {i) 5ame customer having credit balances have not been kaocked off,
Particulars of Amount as per Amcunt as reported 1n
Name of bank Quarter Securities P the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for Difference
books of account
Provided statement
HDFC Bank Limited Dec-23 Finished Goods 258,34 260,55 (2.21) Materlal in transit
HEFC Bank Limited Dec-23 Raw material 928,57 849.14 79.43 Goods in transit
#IDFC Bank Limited Dec-23 Trade receivables 678.81 685,12 (6.31) Saies in transit
Axis Bank Limited Dec-23 Stock-In-trade 365.09 390,22 (2s.qay| Provision for NRV and
Slow moving steck
Axis Bank Limited Dec-23 Trade Recelvable 171,85 201.00 (29.15)]  Refer note (i) balow
Naote - (i) 5ame customer having credit balances have not been knocked off.
Particulars of Amaount as reported in
Amount as per
Name of bank Quarter Securitles the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for Difference
books of account
Provided statement
HDFC Bank Limited Sep-23 Finished Goods 199,82 199.82 - NA
HDFC Bank Limited Sep-23 Raw material 846,06 846.06 - NA
--{HDFE Bank Limited Sep-23 Trade recelvables 663,98 653.98 ; NA
prs Bak United Sep-23 Stock-In-trade 405.43 476,44 (z.01)| Frovision for NRV and

Slow moving stock
Sep-23 Trade Recelyable 256.04 244.88 11,16 Sales n transit




Brainbees Solutlons Umited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Consolidated Financtal Statement
[All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwlse stated)

15{a} Borrowlngs {continued)

Detalls of quarterly returas for Borrowings secured against current assets

Particulars of

Amount as per

Amount as reported In

Name of bank Quarter Securitles the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for Difference
books of account
Provided statement
HDFC Bank Limited Jun-23 Finlshed Goods 256.14 247,03 9,11 Material in transit
HDFC Barik Limited Jun-23 Raw materfal 837.14 768,62 70,55 Goods in transit
HDFC Bank Limited Jun-23 Trade receivables 421,23 427,22 (5.99) Sales In transit
s Bank Limited Jun-23 Finished Goods 433.43 538,57 (105.14y| Provisionfor NRV and
Slow moving stock
Axls Bank Limited jun-23 Trade Receivakble 276,34 264,91 5.42 Sales in frapsit
Partlculars of Amount as per Amount as reportedin
Name of bank Quarter Securities P the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for Diference
hooks of account
Provided statement
HDFC Bank Limited Mar-23 Finished Goads 254,13 238,01 15.13 Material In transit
HOFC Bank Limited Mar-23 Raw material 858,92 735,74 120.18 Goods in transit
HDFC Bank Limited Mar-23 Trade recelvables 404.46 421.99 {17.54) Sales In transit
Axls Bank Limited Mar-23 Stack-in-trade 425,81 460.44 (34.53)| Provislon for NRVand
Slow moving stock
Axis Bank Limited Mar-23 Trade recelvable 236,84 330.97 oa.1)| Refer Note i, (i & (i}

below

per ECL policy.

Nete - {I} Payment callection and TCS entry recarded post statement submissien to bank. {il) Same customner having credit balances have not been knacked

off. {iii) Provision taken as

Particulars of

Amount as per

Amount as reported In

Name of bank Quarter Securitles the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for Difference
books of account
Provided statement
HOFC Bank Limited Pec-22 Finlshed Goods 29.40 29.40 - NA
HDFC Baxk Limited Dec-22 Raw materiaf 289.60 240,80 48.80 Matevlal in transit
Reclassification done
HDFC Bank Limited Dec-22 Trade receivables 15.96 15.64 0.33 post submission of
statement
Axls Bank Limited Dec-22 Stock-In-trade 485,27 458,58 26.69 Goodsin transit
Same customer having
Axis Bank Limited Dec22 Trade receivable 226,25 275.70 (49.44)| credit balances have not
been knocked off,
Partlculars of Amount as reported n
Amount as per
Name of bank Quarter Securitles the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for DHference
books of account
Provided statement
HEFC Bank Limited Sep-22 Finished Goods i1.98 4198 - NA
HDFC Bank Limited Sep-22 Raw matersal 232,10 232,30 - NA
HOFC Bank Limited Sep-22 Trade receivables 2832 28,32 - NA
1
axis Bank Umited Sep-22 Stock-in-trade 417.41 420,51 {asg)| Frovision for NRV ard
Siow moving stock
Same customear having
Axls Bank Limited Sep-22 Trade receivabla 375.29 327.15 48.13 | credit balances have not
been knocked off,
Particulars of Amount as reported In
Amount as per
Name of bank Quarter Securitles the quarterly return/ | Amount of difference | Reason for Differenca
lrooks of account
Provided statement
HDFC Bank Limlted jun-22 Finished Goods - - - NA
HDFC Bank Limited Jun-22 Raw material 92,10 92,10 - NA
HDFC Bank Limited Jun-22 Trade receivables - - - NA
Axls Bank Limited Jun-22 NA - - - NA

D Borrowings by subsldiary company from Its directors and their relatives

This amount represents unsecured loan from directors of respective companies and thelr relatives amounting to Rs. 157.81 million as on March 31, 2024 { March 31, 2023 - 256.05
million}. Majority of these are interest free loans and tha loans are repayable on demand,

E, Secured Borrowings form financlal Institutions

1. The Subsidiary Companies of Globalbees 8rands Private Limited have taken a working capital demand loan from Capsave Finance Private Limited for an amount of Rs. 579.7 million
{March 31, 2023 - Rs, 225 million) at the rate of 13.50% per annum. Capsave Finance Limited has sanctioned the loan amount of Ris, 595 million as on March 31, 2024

2. Plantex E-Commeree Private Limited, step down subsidiary of halding compa ny, has taken a working capital facility from Stridecne during the year, outstanding balance a5 on March

31, 2024 is Rs 49.95 Million (March 31, 2023 Is NHl).

3. Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has taken a working capital facility from Strideone during the year,

on March 31, 2024 is Rs 100,08 Million (March 81, 2023 s Nil}.

autstanding balance as

4. Kitchenopedia Appliances Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has taken a revenue based facllity from GetGrowth Capital Private Limited and Incred Financlal
Services Lmited for an amount of Rs, 5.00 miltlon and Rs. 15.00 million respectively for short term workin

balances as on March 31, 2024 is Rs 19,98 Million (March 31, 2023 s Rs Nl

F. Unsecured Borrowlngs form financial institutlons

g capital purposes and direct revenue related expenses. The outstanding

Candes Technolegles Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has avalled short term credit facility for an amount not exceeding Rs 30 Milllon from Impressions
Portfolio Private Limited during the period ended Pecember 31, 2023. The oustanding balance of such credit facility &s on March 31, 2024 ts Rs 25.64 Million {March 31, 2023 - Nil} and
carries Interest rate of 12% per annum payable on monthly basis, The said credit facility s repayable on demand,

G, Credit factlities from others

1. Butternut Ventures Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has converted trade pavables to Pepper Health Private timited into unsecured short term loan of Rs.
8,20 million at the rate of 12.50% per annum during the current financlal year 2023-24 for the period of 12 months. The outstanding balance as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 8.2¢ million,

2, Candes Technologles Private Limited, step down subsidiary of holding company, has taken short term loan for 1 year from Vedanta at 12.5% during the current financiat year 2023-
24, The outstanding balance of the loan as on March 31, 2024 Is Rs 57,69 Million { March 31, 2023 « Nii),

o ;'3 Encasa Homes Private Limited, stap down subsidiary of helding company, has converted Its trade payables of Suraa| Linens Private Limited amounting te Rs. 17.00 million into short
term uns.ecu\rgd loan for a period of 1 year at the rate of Interest of 14% p.a. The outstanding bafance as on March 31, 2024 1s Rs, 17,00 milflon. { March 312023 - Rs Nii).




Bralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Consolldated FInanclal Statement
[All amounts in Rupees mlllion, unless otherwise stated}

15 (b} Other Non-cutrent Financlal kiabllities

Particulars As at March 31,2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
Consideration payable to seliing shareholders due to business combination {Refer Note 32) 7,078.48 5,819.48
Security deposits 7.04 -
Total 7,085.52 6,819.48
15 [c) Other Current Financlal Liablities
Partlculars As at March 31,2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
Accrued employee liabilities 248.36 140.36
interest accrued on borrowings 41,34 7.66
Security daposits received 4,61 4.27
Payables for property, plant and equipment 300,01 328,99
Deferred Consideration (Refer Note 32) 656,26 662,86
Other payable 17,65 15,72
Total 1,268.23 1,158.86
16{a} Non-current provisions
Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As atMarch 31, 2023
Provlslon for employee beneflts
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 31) 62,10 48,92
Provision for gratulty (Refer Note 31) 187.34 138.59
Total 249.44 187.51
16 (b} Current provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Proviston for employea benefits
Provision for compensated absences {Refer Note 31) 2545 19,04
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 31) 3143 30,92
Total 56,58 49.96
17 Trade payables
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 3%, 2023
Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises {Refer Note 30) 874.86 335.38
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre and small enterprises 8,204.60 7,039.33
Total 9,079.46 7,378.71
Trade payable agelng schedule as at March 31, 2024
Particulars Unbilted dues Not due Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
MSME 733.56 54.52 527.56 55,52 2.54 1.16 874.86
Others 4,563.66 1,270.12 2,238,51 88 05 28.64 15.62 8,204.60
Disputed dues- MSME - - - . - - -
Disputed dues- Others - - - - - - -
Trade payable agelng schedule as at March 31, 2023
Partlculars Unbilied dues Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - 24.50 313.66 0.36 .86 0.00 339.38
Others 2,009.19 2,072,64 2,873.41 62.96 12.68 8.45 7,038.33
Disputed dues- MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues- Others - - - - - - -
18(a} Other Non-current liabilitles
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Deferred Gavernment Incentives* 541,15 172,06
Total 541.15 172.06

18{b}

Other current Habllitles

* The Graup receives two kinds of subsidy, one from the Madhya Pradesh government under Madhya Pradesh {ndustrial Promation Policy 2014 and second
under Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS), The grants are related to Incotne and Is recognised in other Income.

from Central Government

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
Statutory Duas 223.08 90.43
Advance from customers 1,249,69 1,167.30
. [Uneafned Revenue 13.18 0.34
|Deferred Government Incentives 80.08 45.00
Other payable, 216.51 93,88
' 178252 1,396.95




Bralnhees Solutlons Limited {formerly kmown as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limitad)
Notes forming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
{All amounts In Rupees mitllen, unless otherwlse stated)

13  Revenue from operations

20  OtherIncome
Particulars For the year ended March | Fer the year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
interest Income :
On fned deposits with banks 412,22 560.58
Gn others 306,84 7811
Lease rentals 030 13.16
Miscellanecus income 422,89 335,52
Total 942.25 987.37
21{a) Cost of material consumed
Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Inventory at the baginning of the year 945,39 517.17
Inventeries acquired In the Business Combination [Refer Nete 32) - 9.95
Add: Purchases 6,160,04 5,213.46
Less: Inventory at the end of the year {1,530,78) (945.39)
Total 5,574.65 4,795.19
21{b} Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Far M
partictars or the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Purchase of Stock-In-trade 38,898,87 31,171.84
Total 38,898.87 31,171.84

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

Particulars 31,2024 31, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customer
Sale of prbducts

- Sale of traded goods 58,759.07 51,920.32

- Sale of finished gocds 4,496.04 3,274.08
Total (A} 63,255.11 55,194.40
Other operating revenue
Internet display charges 525.79 753,10
Other Operating Revenue 627,66 377.89
Total [B) 1,553.45 1,130,599
Revenue from aperations {A+B} 64,808.56 56,325.39

Reconcillatlon of revenue from contract with customer

Partlculars

For tha year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31, 2023
Contract Price 66,203,82 57,285.61
Loyalty Polnts 9,71 16.34
Discounts, Rebates, etc. {1,404.97} (986.56)
Revenue from operations for the year ended 64,808.56 56,325.39
Refer accounting policy 3{h) for satisfaction of performance cbligation and when the revenue Is recegnlsed.
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract labilities from customers
Particulars Far the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 3, 2023
Contract assets
Trade Recelvables 2,184.07 2,251.30
Unbliled Revenue - .
Contract llabllitles
Advance from customers 1,242.69 1,167,30
Movement In cantract llabliitles during the year:
particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,167.30 A460.68
Revenue recognised that was included In the contract liabllity balance at the beginning of the year (1,167.30) (460.68)
Advance received during the year 1,249.69 1,167.20
Balance as at end of the year 1,249,69 1,167.30

Refer note 33 for Segment reporting,

The Group does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goads are for a shorter duration. There are no contracts for sale of services wherein,
parformance obligation Is unsatisfled to which transactlon price has been allocated.




Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)

Notes formIng part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
{All amounts in Rupees mifion, unless otherwlse stated}

22  Changes In Inventorles of Stock-In-trade, finished goods and work-in-progress

23{a)

23}

24

25

26{a)

Partlcutars for the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Inventories at the beglnning of the year
-Finished goods 254,77 110.29
-Work-in-progress 5.69 4,23
-Stock-in-trade 11,607.07 9,144.76
Inventorles acquired In the Buslness Combination (Refer Note 32)
-Stock-in-trade - 5,994.40
Less: Inventarles at the end of the year
-Finished goods 272,55 284,77
-Work-in-progress 7.34 5,69
-Stock-in-trade 14,429.20 11,807.07
Total {2,841.55[ 3,386.15
Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March

31, 2024 31, 2023

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 4,568.20 3,617.41
salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances as per para B55 of Ind-AS 103* 259.00 263,04
Contributions to provident and other funds 173.82 127,08
Staff welfare expenses 83,18 76,40
Total 5,084.21 4,083.93

*This includes employment cost accounted for as per Paragraph BSS of Ind-AS 103 "Business Cembinations'

Employee share based payment expense

" upon acauisition of 4 step-down subsidiaries .

Partlculars

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31, 2024 31,2023
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 34} 1,780.58 3,614,37
Total 1,780.58 3,614.37
Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
interest an borrowings measured at amortised cost 212.14 102,22
Interest expense on lease Habllitles {refer note 5} 878.78 560,06
Interest on contractual chiigations® - 0.01
Cther borrowing costs 62,71 53,44
Total 1,153.63 715.73
¥Interest on consideration payable to selling shareholders due to business combination
Depreclation and amortisation expense
particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
Depraclation on properiy, plant and equipment 1,169.48 854,34
Amnortisation of right of use assets 1,452.22 1,015.27
Arnortisation of intangible assets 1,087,03 1,073.22
Total 3,708.73 2,942.83
Other expenses
For the year ended March { For the year ended March
Partlculars ¥
31, 2024 31,2023
Subcontractor expenses 865.81 580,23
Consumption of Stores 8 Spares 30.30 26,81
Packing expenses 128.64 131,04
Courler expenses 5,457.4% 4,292.70
Power and fuel 412,12 245,48
Rent 800,51 S62.24
Repairs and maintenance 139,33 97.04
Insurance 66,64 44.84
Rates and taxes 85,97 57.86
Travelling 2nd convayance 259,52 213,10
Legal and professional expenses 337.61 27150
Deal related cost - 45,13
Advertising and sales prormotion expenses 4,821.82 4,164.77
Telephone and internet charges 346.02 309.95
Printing and stationary 22.86 19.83
Payments to auditor {Refer Note (i) below) 31.43 32,43
Miscellaneous expenses 1,495.18 1,018.78
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} Expenditure {Refer Note ) betow) 12.68 851
Payments gateway expenses 292,97 220,39
Total 15,606.90 12,446.63




Bralnbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Bralnbees Solutlons Private Limlted)
Notes forming part of these Consaolidated Financlal Statement
{All antounts In Rupees millton, unless otherwise stated)

26(a} Other expenses

{t} Payments to auditors

particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023
As auditer
Statutory audit 22.80 19.18
Tax audit 0,90 1.70
Cther Audit Services 39,18 10.88
Reimbursement of expenses 0.24 0.67
Less - Amaunt transferred to other receivables - other current financial assets [31.69) -
Total 31.43 32.43

{li} Corporate Soclal Responsibllity [C5R) Expendliture
The detalls of Corporate Social Respansiblity as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 Is as follows:

For the year ended March

For tha year ended March

Partleulars 31, 7024 31, 2023
{A) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 12,27 10,36
(B} Amount spant during the year on:
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset il NIy
{il} For purposes other than {i) above 12,67 10.41
a} Paid In cash 12,67 8.7z
b} Yet to be paid in cash - 0.69
{C) Related party transactions In relation to Cerporata Soclal Responsibility - -
{D} Provision movement during the year - -
{E} Amount earmarked for ongaing project (in separate Unspent CSR A/C)
Cpening balance 0.69 -
Amaunt transferred during the year 037 .69
Amount paid towards the engoing project {0.69) -
Closing balance 037 0.69
{F) Shortfall at the end of the year 037 0.69
(G) Reason for shortfas Refer Note 1 below Refer Note 1 below
Education, eradicating]Education, eradicating
hunger, poverty  and|hunger, poverty and
malnutrition,  promoting[malnutrition,  promoting
{H} Nature of Corporate Soclal Responsibility health care  includinglhealth care  Including|

preventive health care andjpreventive health care and

sanitation and  socla

welfare

ljsanitation  and  soclal

welfare

Note 1: The Group has transferred the shortfall amounting to Rs. 0,37 million {March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.69 miliion] to the separate unspent CSR Account during the year ended March 31,
2024 amd March 31, 2023 respectively, The Group has an angeing project and has earmarked the unspent CSR amount towards the said project. The Group has utilised Rs, 0.68 millicn

{rom the said account towards ongoing project duting the year ended March 31, 2024 for shortfall of previous year,

26 (b} Exceptional items {net)

Particulars

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
Change In fair valua of consideration payable to selling shareholders due to business combination - 543,68
Total exceptional ltems {net} . - 543,68

Considaration payable to selling sharehofders dua to business combination

The Group has recognised for consideration payable to selling sharehalders on business combination in accordance with ind AS 109 Financial instruments. Basis the projections of the
turnover and EBITDA of the brands, the consideration payable to selling shareho!ders due to business combination is subject to revision on a yearly basls. Based on evaluation of relevant
factors including actual performance in financlal year 2022-23, updated profections relating to future performance, as at March 3%, 2023, the Group has recognised llability for

consideration to selling shareholders for business cambination of Rs. 7,476.41 miition

27  Income Tax Expense
A Amounts recopnised are as follows:

For the year ended March| For the year ended March

Particulars
o 31,2024 31,2023
Amount recognised during the year
Current tax expense 438.05 172,05
Deferred tax Income {438.18) (611.72)
Total {0.13} (439.67)
B Reconclliation of effective tax rate
For the year ended March| For the year ended March
Particulars
31, 2024 31, 2023
Loss before tax {3,215.20) {5,300.23)
Expected income tax expense at rates applicable to respective entities (688.44) {1,158.81)
Tox effect of adjustments to reconclle expected Income tax expense to reported income tax expense;
income not liable to tax {5.29) {10.89}
Tax pertaining to prior years 4,87 237.30
Expenses not allowable In tax 69,45 76,52
DTI, not recognised on temporary differences (81,42} {53.55)
DT4 not recognised on interest on contractual abligations - {136.83)
Deferred Tax Asset Recognlsed on previous year losses and unabsorbed depreclation {1.13) {25.86)
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised 691.04 618,24
.. |_Others (net} {19.21) 14,21
| [Total {0.13) {439.67)
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27 Income Tax Expense {continued)

C Significant components and movements In deferred tax assets and liablities :

2

2

o

e

For year ended March 31, 2024

Asat Recognised In Acquired In Asat
Partlculars in profit or buslness Others March 31,
April 1, 2023
s loss T | ombinations* 2024
Deferred Tax Asset
Property, plant and equlpment and intangibles 517.46 8,05 - - - 525,51
Empioyees’ benefits 48.73 15,39 {D.56} - - 63,56
On lease Habilites 1,735.56 601,49 - - - 2,337.05
On right-of-use asset {1,570.8G) {478.84) - - - (2,049,64)
Carry forward losses 684,85 150,86 - - - 835.71
Qthers 212.08 {28.68) 1.83 - - 185.23
Deferred Tax Liablitles
Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles {3,015.06) 154,79 - - - {2,860.27)
Others D.44 15.12 - - {0.43) 15.12
Tatal {1,386.74) A438.18 1.27 - {0.43) {847.73)
*refer note 30
For year ended March 31, 2023
Asat Recognised in Acquired In As at
Partlculars in profit or business Others March 31,
April 1, 2022 loss 0S| ombinations* 2023
Deferred Tax Asset
Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 561,28 (43.82) - - - 517.46
Employees’ benefits 37,26 18,03 [6.55) - - 48,73
On lease liabiites 730,61 1,004.95 - - - 1,735,56
On right-of-use asset (660.05) (510,75} - - - {1,570.80)
Carry forward losses 442,95 241,90 - - - 684,85
Others 17.97 198.47 {4.36) - - 212,08
Deferred Tax Liabillties
Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles [1,729.52) 73.40 - {1,358,94) - {3,015.08)
On right-of-use asset (24.17) 24.17 - - . -
Others 8,30 5.37 - - {12.23) 0.44
Total [615.37) 611.72 {10.92} {1,358.94} {13.23) {1,386.74)

*refer note 30
Earnings per share
Baslc earnings per share

Baslc EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/{loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Helding Company by the welghted average number of equity shares
outstanding durlng the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company by the welghted average number of equity shares sutstanding during

the year plus the welghted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares Into equity shares.

The following reflects the profit/{loss) and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EP5 computations:

Particulars For the year ended for the year ended March
March 31, 2024 31, 2023

Loss attributable to equity shareholders (A} {2,742.75) [4,410.81)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic EPS (B} 17,70,17,252 17,70,12,630
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year after split of shares into Rs. 2 each {C) 44,25,43,130 44,2531 526
Basle EPS {A/C) {6.20) [9.97)
Welghted average number of potential equity shares 1,31,91,751 1,16,90,899
Welghted average number of potentlal equity shares outstanding during the year after split of shares Into Rs. 2 each {D) 3,29,73,377 2,92,27,248
Welghted average number of equity shares for calculaticn of Diluted EPS {E = C+D) 47,55,22 507 47,17,58,774
Diluted EPS [A/E) {6.20} 19.97)

* Potentlal equity shares have not been consldared in the calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023 since these would
decrease the loss per share, hence considered "anti-dilutive”.

Note - For the calculation of Basic Earning Per Share and Diluted Earning per Shars, the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and weighted average
number of potential aquity shares outstanding during the year have been considered after split of shares of face value of Rs, 5 each to Face value of Rs. 2 each,

Contingent Habllitles and commitments
Contingent lfabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Claims agalnst the company not acknowtedged as debt

Indirect Tax matters (See Note [Ii) below) 40,82 8.33

Legal and other matters 13.15 2.50
Total 53,98 10.83
Notes

a) For the assessment year 2015-15, the Holding Company has received tax demand against penalty notlce under section 27:{1){c) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of Rs, 40,92 million, The
Halding Cornpany has filed an appeal before Commissioner of income Tax against the penalty demand passed by Assessing Officer by paylng an amount of Rs, 8,18 million as protest money.

b} For the assessment year 2016-17, the Assessing Offlcer has made the addition of Rs. 42.71 million and had reduced the brought forward lesses, however, even after such addition there is

" notax Ilabllj}v. The Helding Company has filed appeals against such additions made to Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals),

) Fcrkthg'aséé‘sgment year 2016-17, the Holding Company has received a penalty notice under Section 274 w.r.s 271C, The Holding Company does not anticipate any financial llability as the

proceadings U/s

01 which was filed with CIT{A) has been allowed in faver of the Holding Company.
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29 Contingent Habilities and commitments {continued)
A Contingent (labilltles {continued)

), d) For the assessment year 2016-17, re-assessment proceedlngs in refatlon to abova same transaction {i.e. peint [c} above) was initlated by the income Tax departmant under section 148,
The Faceless Assessing Officer has passed the order under sectlon 147 read with sectlon 1448 of the (ncome-tax Act, 1961 {'the Act’} for AY 2016-17 by disallowing Rs. 96,8 mikion i.e. the
payment made to Facebook Ireland under section 40{a){i} of the Act. The Helding Company has filed appeals agalnst such additions made to Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

e} For the assessment year 2017-518, the Assessing Officer has made the addition of Rs, 82,04 milllons and had reduced the brought forward losses, however, even after such addition thereis
1o tax flability, The Holding Company has filed appeals against such additions made to Comemissicner of Income Tax {Appeats).

f} For the assessment year 2017-18, the Holding Company has recelved a penalty notice under Section 274 w.r.s 271C. The Halding Company has submitted to the Department that since the
above case Is fited with CIT (A} and Is stil opgoing, the proceadings for penalty shall be kept o abeyance until conclusion of the said case.

3) For FY 2017-18, the Holding Company has received Goods & Services tax demand of Rs. 5.09 millions from Maharashtra State GST authorities. The said demand is Inclusive of interest of Rs.
2,45 milllons. Against this tax demand, tha Holding Company has paid amount of Rs. 0.26 miliiens as protest money and has filed an appeal to Deputy Commissioner of State Tax,

b} For FY 2017-18, Digital Age Retall Private le%ted, subsidlary of helding company, has received Goods & Services tax demand of Rs, 5.7% millions from Delhi State GST authorities. The sald
demand is inclusive of Interest of Rs, 2,01 millions. Agalinst this tax demand, the subsidiary Company has filled an appeal with GST appeiiate authority and pald protest money of Rs. 0.27
millton .

¢) For FY 2017-18, the Holding Company has recaived Goods & Services tax demand of Rs. 2.03 milliens from Defhl State GST authoritles. The sald demand is Inclusive of interest of fs. 1,06
millicns, Against this tax demand, the holding Company has fllled an appeal with GST appellate authority and paid protest maney of Rs. 0,10 mitfion.

d) For kY 2017-18, the Holding Company has received Goods & Services tax demand of Rs, 13.99 miilions from Karnataka State GST authorities. The said demand Is Inclusive of Interest of
Rs. 11.00 milllons. Against this tax demand, the Company has filled an appeal with GST appellate authority and paid protest monay of Rs, 0,90 mitiion.

e) For FY 2017-18, Dlgital Age Retali Private Limited, subsidiary of holding company, has received Goods & Services tax demand af Rs. 0,22 millions from Madhya Pradesh $tate GST
authorities, Agalnst this tax demand, the subsidiary Company has made partlal payment of Rs. 0,21 millien.

f} For FY 2017-18, Digital Age Retall Private timited, subsidiary of holding company, has recelved Gaods & Services tax demand of Rs. 0,91 millions from Telangana State GST authoritles.
Against this tax demand, the subsidiary Company has filled an appeal with GST appellate authority and paid protest money of Rs, 0,10 mllllon.

a} The Holding Company has received a demand hotice from Custom Commissianerate, Chennal en 7th April 2021 for an amaunt of Rs, 0.53 millions towards duty for re-classification of

iii  Breast Pump under a different HSN code, The Holding Company has responded to the damand notice on 11th May 2021 taking a position of no further tax payable by the Holding Company

b) Swara Baby Products Private Limited, subsidiary of holding company, @ demand naotice from Commisoner of Customs, Indore op 26th July 2023 for an amount of RS, 10,62 Million
{2quivalent amount of penaity plus Interest) for recovery Of custom duty, Agatnst this tax demand, the subsidlary Company has flled an appeat in Appellate Tribunal,

B Commitments

The estimated amount of contracts remalning to be executed on capital account and other long-term commitments and not provided for:

30

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Capital Commitments 376.29 972.24
Other Commitments 2,750.93 780,30
Tota) 3,1271.22 1,761.55

The Grodp has imported certain machinery under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme and accordingly has an export abligation of Rs,2,750.93 millicn {March 31, 2023 : Rs.
571,75 million). In this respect the Group has glven Bond of Rs.101.66 million {March 31, 2023 :Rs.201.66 million} to the Commlssioner of Custems and Bank Guarantee amounting to Rs.

45,18 million {March 31, 2023: Nil}.

Dues to mlcro and small enterprises

Thea Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {‘MSMED Act’}, The disclosures pursuant to the sald MSMED Act are

as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023
a) Principal amount payable to suppllers as at year #nd 874.86 339,38
b} Interest due theraon asat yearend * - -
¢} Interest amount for defayed payments to suppliers pursuant to provislons of MSMED Act actually pald during the year, irraspective of
the year to which interest relates ° N
d) Amount of delayed payments actually made to suppllers during the year 1,659,52 259.42
a) Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment {which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 16,19 201
during the year) but without adding interest specified under the MSMED Act * . )
f} Interest accrued and remaining unpatd at the end of the year* 16.19 2.01
2) The amaunt of further interest remalnlag due and payable even in the succeeding years, untll such date when the interest dues as
above are actually pald to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expanditura under the MSMED Act, 2006 22.57 6.38
-

* Abova interest amounts have not been provided in the bocks

The Group has camplied this information based on intimatians recelved from the suppliers of thelr status as Micro or Small Enterprises and/ or its reglstration with the appropriate authority

under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2008
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31 Assets and llabilitles relating to emplovee benefits

a}

b}

As at March 31, | As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Gratulty 218.47 169.51
Non-current 187.34 138.59
Current 3113 30,92

For detalls about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 23,

pefined contrlbution plans

The Group has a defined contribution plan in form of provident fund. Contributions
contributions are made to reglstered provident fund administered by the government. T
nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised durlng the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs.

Dafined benefit plans

The Group operates the foliowing post-employment defined benefit plans,

‘The Group has a defined benefit gratulty plan in Indla, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
to gratulty at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in exgess of six months,

These defined benefit plans expose the Group ta actuarlal risks, such as lnvestment risk, Interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

are made to the fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
he obllgation of the company Is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractuat
173,82 mittion (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 127.08 million).

1972. Plan entitles an employee, wha has rendered at least five years of continuous service,
hased an the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

Investmaent risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan Hability Is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting perlod

on government bands,

Interest rlsk - A decrease in the bond Interest rata will increase the plan llability;

L.angevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan llabiiity Is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after thelr

employment, An Ingrease In the ife expectancy of the plan particlpants wi increase the plan's lability.

Salary risk - Fhe present value of the defined banefit plan liabllity is calculated by referan

partlclpants will increase the plan's liability.
Funding

Group's defined benefit plan is unfunded.,
Reconclliation of the net defined benefit llabitity

al Reconciliation of present value of deflned benefit obligation

ce to the future salarles of plan particlpants, As such, an increase In the salary of the plan

AsatMarch 31, | AsatMarch3l
i . -
Particulars 2024 2823
Balance at the beginning of the year 169.51 1i5.52
Additiens Pursuant to Business Combination - 10.15
Benefits paid (4,63} (4.23}
Current service cost 47.50 68.80
Interest cost 10,50 741
Past service cost 0.58 0.13
Actuarlal {gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive Income
- changes in demographlc assumptions 0.09 {0.63)
- changes In financtal assumptlons 1.48 {6.84)
|- expetienca adjustments {5.42) {20.51)
Balance at the end of the year 219,61 169,51
b) Amounts to be recognised In Balance Sheet
As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Present value of cbilgation at the end of year 219.61 169.5%
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of year {114 -
surplus / {Defieit) [218.47} [169.51)
Current labllity {31,13) {30.92}
Nen-current Hability (187.34) {13B.53)
Amount not recognised due to asset celling - -
Net llabHity recognised n Balance Sheet {218.47) (169,51}
¢} Expenses to he recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Asat March 31, | As at March 31,
i 3 "
Particulars 2024 2023
Service cost 47.50 68.80
Net Interest expense 10,50 7.11
Past service cost 0.58 043
Expense to be recognised [n Statement of Profit and Loss 58,58 76.04
d} Actuarlal galns/(fosses) recognised In Other Comprehensive Incame
As at March 31, { Asat March 31,
P
articulars 2024 2023
Remeasurement for the year - obligation gain [3.85} {27.98)
Tats] Remeasyrements Credit for the year recognised Tn OC| [3.85) {27.98}]
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Assets and Tlablfities relating to employee henefits (continued)

e) Changes in the Falr Value of Plan Assets

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

tleul
Partlculars 3024 2033
Falr Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning N _
tnvestment Income c.0l -
Employer's Contribution 1.14 -
|Return an plan asset, excluding amount recognised Ia net Interest expense 0.04} -
!Falr Value of Plan Assets as at the end 1.14 -
Deflned benefit obligation
1. Actuarlal assumptlons
" Princlpal actuariai assumptions at the reporting date:
As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particulars 1024 2023
Discount rate 7.15% - 7.20% 7.30%
Future salary growth 8.00% - 15.00% | 600% - 15.00%
Attrition rate 12,00% - 25.00% | 20.00% - 34.00%

Mortality rates have been censidered In accordance with the Indian Assured Uves Mortality {2012-14) uitimate {1ALM ult).

ii, Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, helding other assumptions constant, woutd have affected the defined benefit obligation by

the amaunts shown below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Increase Dedrease Increaze Decrease

Plan A

Discount rate 1% movement) 192.56 209.13 142,51 154,96

Future salary growth (1% movement) 206,36 195.02 152,83 144.35

Attrition rate {1% movemant) 198,76 200,39 147.66 149.34

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptiens shown,

The welghted average duration of the defined benefit obligation ranged between 3.80 - 10.10 years (March 31, 2023: 3.77 - 10.58 years 1 The expected maturity analysis of gratulty is as

follows:

Maturity pmlflle of defined benefit obligations

I parteutars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023
less than % Year 31,19 24.00
between 1-5 years 154.04 i14.04
over 5 years 242,90 191,81
Compensated Absences

‘The Group has recogrilsed expense towards compensated absences amounting to Rs, 19.59 millien {March 31, 2023 Rs, 9.94 millien},
Bustness Comblnation
Acquisition of Digital Age Retall frivate Limlted "DARP')

On May 02, 2022, the Holding Company had entered Into Share Purchase & Subscription Agreement ("SSA") to acquire 100,00% stake In Digital Age Retail Private Limlted through acquisition

of shares. The business combination has been effectad to banefit from our anline distribution network, our marketing and sourcing capabllities,

Details of the purchase consideratlon, net assets acqulred and goodwill recognlsed
A, Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date falr value of each malor class of conslderation transferred:

Particutars Amount
Cash Conslderation Transferred 2,405,285
Total conslderation transferred 2,406,25
B. Acquisition-related costs
Acquisition related cost incurred by the Group have bean charged to profit and loss account,
C. Identifiable assets acquired and llablitles assumed
The fn!lowiné tabla summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liablIties assumed at the date of acquisitlon.

Partlculars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 46.56
Intangible Assets 496,17
Right of use assets 538,21
Non-currant tax assets 21,74
Other non-cutrent assets 1,133.76
Other non-current financtal assets 51,57
Inventories 5,552,.37
Trade receivables 7.48
Cash and cash equivalents 2,432.47
Other financlal assets 1.10

252,85

..|Other current assets
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32 Business Comblnation {continued)
a . Acquisition of Digltal Age Retall Private Limited 'DARP')
C. Identifiable assets acqulrad and liabilitles assumed {continued)

The following tabla summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and ilabilitles assurned at the date of acquisition.

Particulars Amount
Other current assets 252,89
Trade payables (7,253.90}
Lease liabllity (568.16)
Other financial llabilities {5.44)
Other currant Habilitles {506.22)
Provisions {17.16}
Total net identlfiahle assets acguired 2,183,494
D, Goodwlli
Goodwlll arising from the acquisition has been determined as follows:

Particulars Amount
Total consideratlon transfarred {A} 2,406.25
Fair value of net identifiable assets (B) 2,183.44
Goodwill (A-B) 222.81

The assets and Jizbiiities acquired on the acquisition date have been recogaised at their falr values. The fair value of the trade recelvables is equivalent to the gross amount of trade
receivables. However, none of the trade recelvables is credit impaired and it s expected that the full contractual amounts can be coliected.

DARP has contributed Rs. 27,948.48 milllon of revenue and Rs. 137.12 million of loss to the loss befare tax from the operations of the Group from the date of acquisition.

If the acqulsition had taken place at the beginning of the financlal year 2022-23, reveniia from continuing operations of Digital Age Retall Private Limited for preacqulsition period amounting
to Rs. 2,154.34 million would have been added, adjusted by Intercompany transactien betwesn Bralnbees and DARP of pre-acquisition peried amounting to Rs, 5,854.83 millien [March 31,
* 2022; Intercompany transactions: sales and purchase -Rs, 12,137.57 Milllon}. The loss bafore tax from cantinuing operations fer the Group would have bean lower by Rs. 7.08 millien (March

31, 2022: loss would have heen higher by Rs. 52.31 Million)

b Acqulsition made by Globalbees Brands Private Limlted

Globalbees Brands Private Limited has entered Into various Share Subscription Agreement {"SSA"), Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA") and Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA"} to acqulre
various brands/companles, The business comblnations have been effected to benefit from our abllity to create and scale brands, leverage our sourclng czpabiiitles, our retall distribution

network, our marketing and sourcing capabllities, and aur supply chaln infrastructure,

A. Consideration transferred

Details of the purchase conslderation, net assets acquired and Roodwill recopnised

The fallowing table summarises the acqulsition date fair vaiue of each major class of canslderation transferred:

Sofarlsta Encasa Homes Frootle Indla
Particulars Savya Homes Cheston Renewables
Private Limlted Private Limited
Private Limlted
share Subscription | Share Subscription| Share Subseription
Businass Transfer | Business Transfer
Type of Acquisition and Share Purchase|and Share Purchase{and Share Purchase
Agreement Agreement
Agreament Agreement Agreement
Date of Acquisitlon 12-Apr-22 i2-May-22 07-Apr-22 19-Apr-22 27-Apr-22
Percentage stake acquired NA NA 53% 519 51%
Business of Subsldiary Home Utifitles Appliances Fashlon / Lifestyle | Home Utiities Appliances
Cash Consideration Transferred 44500 76,13 249,95 283,00 1,570,80
Deferred Conslderation 126,62 37.65 - - -
Total consideratlon transferred 571.62 113,78 249.95 288,00 1,570.40
. B, Acquisition-refated costs
Acquisition related cost incurred by the Group hava been charged to profit and foss account.
C. Identifiable assets acqulred and liabliities assumed
The folfowing table summarisas the recognised amounts of assets acquired and Nabiiities assumed at the date of acquisition,
Solarlsta
Encasa Homes Frootle india
Particulars 5
avya Homes Chestan Ranewables Private Limited Private Urnited
Private Limited
Tangible Fixed assets 748 0.28 2,57 021 0.52
Intangible assets 544,51 72,26 410,78 563.64 2,783.99
Deferred Tax Assets / {Ulabllities} - - {63.15) {141.87} {700,78)
Other current and non-current assets - - 8.48 179 42,83
fnventories 10,25 20.00 54,62 44,50 276,02
Trade recelvables 37.04 26,61 2,57 10.84 130,54
Cash and cash squivalents - - 43.58 49,19 93.72
Gther financial assets - - - 0.22 -
Trade payables {46.95) (18.48) 39,70} {5.13} {153.36)
Consideration payable to selling shareholders due to buslness cornbination - - {274,38) {344.59) {713,09}
Other financial llabllities - - - . {9.05}
Other current Habilities - - u {49.60) (99.45}
Current tax liabliities {net} - - - - {11.34)
Total net Identifiable assets acquived 552.33] 100.67 151,74 120,19 1,640.56




32 Business Comblinatian {continued)
b Acqulsltlen made by Globalbees Brands Private trited {rontinued)
D. Geodwll!

Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been determined as follaws!

Fair value of non-centrolling interest |s measured using discounted cash flow {DCF) technlgue,

The fair value of the trade recelvables is equivalent 1o the grass amount of trade receivables. However, none of the trade recelvables Is credit Impaired and It is ex

contractual amounts can be collected.

(i} Detalls of thé purchase conslderation, nek assets acquired and goodwill recognised

A, Consideration transferred

The followlng table summarlses the acqulsition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred:

Solarlsta
Encasa Homes Frootle India
Particulars
. Savya Homes Chaston Henewables Private Limlted Private Limited
Private Lmited
Total cansideration transferred {A) 571.62 113,79 243.95 282.00 1,570.80
Amount of Non-Controlling Interest {B} - - - - 800.8C
Falr value of net Idantiflable assets (C) 552.33 100.67 151.74 129,19 1,640,56
Goothwlil {A+8-C) 19,29 13.12 98.21 159.81 731.04

pected that the full

Plantex E~ Kitchenopedia
Particulars Wwellspire Indla Prayosha Expo | JW Brands Private| . o oate Appliances Private
Private Limited Private Limited Limited
Limited Limited
share Subscriptlon | Share Subscription| Share Subscription | Share Subscription Share Subscrlption
Type of Acgulsition and Share Purchasefand Share Purchase|and Share Purchase|and Share Purchase |and Share Purchase
Agreement Agreament Agreement Agreament Agreement
Date of Acquisition 27-Apr-22 02-May-22 28-Jul-22 Q3-Sep-22 15-Sep-22
Percentage stake acquired 51% 70% 53% 60% 51%

il of Subsidiary Appliances Home Utllities Fashlon / Lifestyle Home Utlilties Appliances
Cash Constderation Transferred 510 489,10 40507 500.00 95.00
Deferred Consideration - 20.02 - - B
Total consideration transferred 5.10 509,12 405,07 500.00 95.00
B, Acquisition-related costs
Acquisition refated cost Incurred by the Group have been charged to profit and |oss account,
¢, Identifiable assets nequired and liahilities assumed
The followlng table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and llabifities assumed at the date of acqulsition,

Plantex E- Kitchenopedia
Particulars Wallspire india Prayosha Expo | JW Brands Private Commerce Private | Appliances Private
Private Limlted Private Limited Limited
Limited timited
Tanglble Fiked assets - 30.02 2.80 17.63 1.60
Intanglble assets 8,51 564.88 777,20 938,99 110.58
Ceferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) {1.78} {142.07} [192.90) {97.69) {18.73)
Nan-current tax assets - - - 0,01 -
Other cusrent and hon-currant assets 1.36 36,23 8,08 2548 1,99
Inventories 511 59.64 32.62 78.23 11.75
Frade receivables 0.21 11,71 20,24 16.02 -
Cash and cash equivalents Q.32 33.81 62,74 ©¢.05 50,08
Other finantlal assets - .04 0.80 1.87 -
Trade payables (.20} {15.23) {17.19) {104.39) {14.08)
Cansideration payable to selling shareholders due to business combination {2.30) {250.84) (478,13} {513.70} (34,12)
Non-controlling Interest 12.60) - . - {44.70}
Other financlai liabliities {o.08} {0.18) (2.74) - -
Other current fiabifities - {0.02} {3.77) {0.06) -
Short term provistons “ {0.21} . {0.47) - -
Current tax liabilities (nat) - {577 {8.21} - -
Loan from director - . - (2,50} "
toan from others {9.35} - - {1.92) {0.05)
Total et identiflable assets acquired 2.62 311.93 201,07 358.02 165,03
o Geodwll
Goodwill arising from the acqulsition has been determined as follows:
Plantex E- Kitchenopedi
particulars Wellsplre India Prayosha Expo | JW Brands Private Commerce Private | Appllances Prlvate
Private Umlted Private Limited Lirmited
Limfted Limited

Tatal conslderation transferred (A} 510 509.12 405.07 600,00 95,00
Amount of Non-Controlling (nterest {B) 2,60 - “ - 44,70
Fair valua of net identifizble assats (C) 2.62 311,98 201.07 358,02 109.03
GoodwiiE {A+B-C) 5.08 197.14 204.00 241,98 30.67

Fair value of non-controlling Interest Is measured using discounted cash flow {DCF) technique.

The falr value of the trade receivables is equivalent to the gross amount of trade recelvables. However, none of the trade receivables 1s credit impaired and it is expectad that the full

centractual amounts ean be collected.

If the acquisktioné had taken place at the beglnning of the previcus yaar, revenue from continuing operations would have beea higher by Rs. 252,32 milllons and the Joss before tax from
continulng operations for the Group from the acqulsitions made by Glohalbees Brands Private Limited would have been lower by Rs. 17.54 milllons.




Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private timited}

Notes farming part of these Consolldated Financlal Statement
{All amounts In Rupees milflon, unless otherwise stated)

32 Buslness Combination

b Acquisitlon made by Globaibees Brands Private Uimited {Continued)

Globatbees Brands Private Umited has entered Into Business Transfer Agreement
benefit from our ability to create and scale brands, leverage our sourcing capabiiities,

infrastructure,

Detalls of the purchase constderation, net assets acquired and goadwlll racognlsed

A. Consideration transferred
The following table surnimarises the acquisltion date falr value o

{"BTA"} to acquire B2
our retail distribution netwerk, our marketing and sourcing capabilities,

f each major class of conslderation transferred:

B business of vellow chimes. The business combinations have been effected to
and eur sapply chain

Particulars Yellow Chimes {B2B}
Type of Acquisition Business Transfer Agreement
Date of Acquisition 07-Dec-23
Business of Subsidlary Fashion / Lifestyle
Cash Consideration Transferred 32,25
Total consideration transfgired 32,25
B, Acquisition-related costs
Acquisition related cost incurred by the Company have been charged to profit and loss account.
C. Identifiable assets acquired and liahllities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisiticn.
Particulars Amount
Tangible Fixed assets 025
Other current and non-current assets 8.87
Total net identifiable assets acqulred 9,12
D. Goodwlll
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been determined as follows:
Particulars. Amount
Consideration transferrad (A) 32.25
Falr valua of net identifiable assets (8} 9,12
Goodwlll {A-B) 23.13
Notes:

Goodwill comprises of acquired workforce and expected synergies arising from the material and other acquisition,

{nitial Accounting of these Business Combinatian has been determined provisianaily,
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for Incorne tax purposes.

33 Segment reporting

The Board of Directors Is the Chief Operating Declsion Maker {CODM) and monitors the operating results of its business uni

resource allocaticn and performance assessment, Segment perfor

statements,

mance is evaluated based on profit or loss and Is measured consistent

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third partles.

For management purposes, the Group Is organised inta business units based on its products and setvices a
i} Inchia multl-channe - This segment Includes business of manufacturing, buying, selling, advertising, promo
11} International segment - This includes business of buying, selling, advertising, promoting baby and kids products outside Ind

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

iil) Globalbees segment - This Is a direct-to-consumer {D2€C) venture that aggregates and invests in &-

Iv} Others - This includes other businesses which are not material to the Group,

{f} Year ended March 31, 2024

nd has following reportable segments, as follows:
ting baby and kids products In India,

la, which primarily includes United Arab Emirates and

ts separately for the purpase of making decislons about
iy with profit or loss in the consofidated financlal

commerce brands and helps the brands scale and transform their digital impressicn,

India multi+ inter Campany
1 G

Partlculars channel Internationa lobalhees GOthers Adlustments Total
Revenue from Operations 45,794.84 7,537.16 12,093.46 333,55 {950.45) 64,808.56
Segrent Results before depreciation and amortisation expense 4,039,82 (1,395.96) 23,08 58.41 19.14 2,744,493
Segment Results 1,666,18 {1,653.77) (963.77} 47.03 (159,91} {964.24)
Add / {Less) ¢
Finance cost {1,153.63)
Employee share based payment expense {1,780.58)
COther incomea 942,25
Salatles, wages, bonus and other allowances as per para B5S5 of Ind-AS 103 {Refer Note 23(a)) (259.00)
{Loss)/Profit before tax and before exceptional ltems {3,215.20)
Segment Assets 76,394,560 3,702.45 24,850,31 40.25 (31,883.75) 75,103.83
Segment Liabilitles 29,561.04 1,821.1% 14,868,21 54,93 {9,156,08) 37,189.30
Capital Expenditura 3,318.51 28,12 80,71 2.04 - 3.429.45




Bralnbees Sclutlens Limited {formerly known as Bratnbees Solutlons Private Limited)

Notes forming part of these Consolidated Financlal Statement
(A1l amaunts In Rupees miltien, unless otherwlse stated)

{li} Year ended March 31, 2023

1tl- r Compa

Partlculars tndia mult International Globalbees QOthers Inte pany Total
channel Adjustments

Revenue from Operations 42,808.65 4,874,83 8,971.79 229,61 {559.49} 56,325.39
Segment Results before depreciation and amortisation expense 2,413.52 {1,200.59) (447.29} {30.,52) 14,70 149.82
Segment Results 740.42 (1,329.32} {1,407.49) {42.07} {154.55} {2,193.01)
Add / {Less) :
Flnance cost (715.73}
Employee share based payment expense {3,614.37)
Cther income 987.37
salaries, wages, bonus and ather allowances as per para BSS of Ind-AS 103 (Refer Note 23(a)) [263.04}
Deal related cost (Refer Note 26{a}) {45,13)
Loss hefore tax and before exceptional ltems and Income tax {5,843.91)
Segment Assets 63,544,50 2,837.22 26,286,17 4497 {19,514.57) 71,198.29
Segment Liabilitles 20,066,45 1,341.73 12.688.46 91.24 {5,286.50) 29,201.37
Capital Expanditure 217818 51.82 138.36 14,77 - 2,383.13

{i) As referred to In Note 32 {d}, on May 02, 2022, the Holding Company acquired 100.00% stake in Digital Age Retall Private Limited. For management reporting purposes, the Group has
included the segment results from April 1, 2022 below. The Graup has also presented segment rasults from the acquisition date of May 02, 2022 above
. Indla multl- inter Compaay
leulars International Global Others Total
Partlcula channel nierna ohalbees Adjustments
Revenue from Operations 39,105,17 4,874.83 8,971.79 229,61 (559.49} 52,621.91
Segment Results before depreciation and amortisation expense 243541 (1,200.59) [447.29) {30.52} 14.70 77171
segment Results 741,65 {1,329,32} (1,407.49) {42.07} {154.55} {2,191.78}
Add / (Less) :
Fnance cost {715,73)
Employee share based payment expense {3,614.37)
Other income 987.37
Salarles, wages, banus and other allowances as per para BSS of Ind-AS 103 {Refer Note 23(a)} (263.04)
Deal related cost (Refer Note 26(a)} {45.13)
Adjustments pertaining to pre-acquisition of Digital Age Retall Private Limited (Refer below Reconclliation) {1.22)
Loss before tax and before exceptional ftems and income tax [5,843.91)
Segment Assats 61,544.50 2,837.22 26,286,17 44,97 {19,514.57) 71,198.29
Sezment Liablilities 20,066.45 4,341.73 12,988.46 91,24 5,286.50] 29,201.37
{iv} Reconciiiation
Pre-acquisition
Amount as per
Amounts as per numbers of
Particulars Statement of
{li} above Digltal Age Retall Profit & Loss
Private Limited*
Revenue frem Cperations 52,621.91 3,703.48 56,325.39
Cost of Goqu Scld 35,297.26 4,055.92 39,353.18
Employee Benefit Expenses 3,844,57 {23.68) 3,820.89
Other Expenses 12,708.28 (306,87} 12,401,541
- llmpact on Segment Results before Depreclation and amortlsation expense I7L.71 {21.89) 749.80
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,963.49 (20.66} 2,942.83
Impact on Segment Results {2,191.79} {1.22} {2,193.03)

*Net of inter-company transactions

Nota

Note - Up ta pravious year ended 31 March 2022, the Group operated In trading and manufacturing of baby and kids products segment, which was the only single reportable segment.
During the year ended, 31 March 2023, subsequent to acquisitions of DARP and Globatbees subsidiaries and expansion of International operations, for management reporting purposes,
the Group has reorganised its segments, which provides relevant information for better understanding of the Group's financlal performance and resource allocation decisions.
Accardingly, the following operating segments are reported from the current year and the comparative Information in the corresponding previous year s not relevant,

v} Information concerning principal geographic areas is as follows:

Partlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within Indla Qutside india Total Within India Qutside India Total
Net sales to external customer by geographic area by locatlon of §7,123.12 7,685,44 64,808.56 50,260.43 6,064,956 56,325.39
customer
Non Current assets by geographicat area* 42,463,81 207.45 42,674.26 39.362.63 178.90 39.541.53
{vl) Major Customers:

The Group has no external customer which accounts for more than 10% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024 and year endad March 31, 2023,




Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)

Notes forming part of these Consolldated Flnancial Statement

{AHl amounts in Rupees mililon, unless otherwise stated)

34 share based payments

See accounting policy in Note 3{f)(ii).
A. Description of share-based payment arrangements
The Group has the following share-based payment arrangements:
Share optlon plans {equity-settled)
On March 31, 2011 the Holding Company estabfished share option plans (8rainbees Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) that entitle the employees to purchase shares In the Holding
Company. Under this plan, halders of vested options are entitled to purchase shares at 10% of the market price of the shares determined at the immediately preceding round of

equity raised by the Holding Company. All the optians have a vesting condition of 25% every year over a perlod of 4 years and have an exercise life of 10 years.

On April 1, 2018 the Holding Company estabiished another share option plans {2019 Flan) that entitle the employees to purchase shares in the Holding Company. Under this plan,
holders of vested options are entitled to purchase shares at Rs. 2 (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 5} per share price, The options have z vesting condition of 25% every year over a period of 4
years

On October 15, 2021, Globalbees Brands Private Limited, the subsidiary of the Holding Company, established Globalbees Emplayee Stock Option Plan 2021{"Globalbees ESOP"} that
entitles the employees to purchase shares In the said subsidiary. Under this plan, holders of vestad options are entitled to purchase shares at Rs. 5 per share price. The optioas have a
vesting condition of 25% every year over a period of 4 years

On January 21, 2022 the Company established share option plans {BB ESOP 2022} that entitle the employees to purchase shares in the Company. Under this plan, halders of vested
options are entitled to purchase shares at Rs. 2 {March 31, 2022 - Rs, 5) per share price. The vesting of these options Is linked ta certain market based conditions.

On December 16, 2023 the Holding Company established share option plans (B8 £S0P 2023) that entitls the employees to purchase shares In the Holding Company. Under this plan,
holders of vested options are entitled to purchase shares at Rs. 243.72 per share price, All the options have a vesting condition over a period of 4 years and have an exercise life of 3
years.

The number of {nstruments related 10 all the grants are as follows:

Grant Number of Instruments
Grant 1 {Brainbees Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) -
Grant 2 {Brainbees Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) -
Grant 3 (Bralnbees Erployee Stock Option Plan 2011} 85,153
Grant 4 (Brainbees Ermployee Stock Option Plan 2011} 1,49,073
Grant 5 (Brainbees Employee Stock Opticn Plan 2011} 2,825
GSrant 6 (Bralnbees Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) 3,465
Grant 7 {Brainbeas Employee Stock Optlon Plan 2011) 65,800
Grant 8 {Brainbees Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) 1,627,570
Grant 9 {Brainbeas Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) 95,699
Grant 10 {Brainbees Employee Stock Option Plan 2011) 8,55,965
Grant 11 {2019 Plan) -
Grant 12 {Brainbees Employee Stock Opticn Plan 2611} 1,12,9¢2
Grant 13 (BB ESCP 2022) ! 1,81,53,410
Grant 14 (BB ESOP 2022) 15,680,370
Grant 15 (BB ESOP 2022) 36,20,250
Grant 16 {Globalbees ESOP}* 2,75,53,675
Grant 17 (BB ESOP 2022) 4,63,959
Grant 18 {BB ESOP 2022} 50,750
Grant 19 {BB FSOP 2022} 2,856,042
Grant 20 {BB ESOP 2022} 12,875
Grant 21 (BB ESOP 2022} 1,82,695
Total share options 5,34,22,478
*in above case, ermployee has been granted 10,000 options for exercising one share as per the plan.
8. Measurement of fair values
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
The fair valua of employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The fair value of the aptions and the Inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date falr values of the equity-settied share based payment plansare as follows:
March 31,2024
Particulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Gragt 5
Falr value at grant date 9.2% 25.08 33,47 74.37 74.37
Share price at grant date 9.29 25.08 33,47 74.4% 74.40
Exercise price 2.32 5.27 8,386 7.44 7.44
Expected volatiiity {weighted average volatility) 251.00% 251,00% 251.00% 251.00% 251.00%
Expected Iife {expected weighted average Life} 7.50 8.05 8,07 6.25 6.25
Expected dividends - - . - -
Risk-free Interest rata (based on goverament bonds) 8.30%; 8.81% 8.81% 8.81% 8,81%
Particulars Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 8 Grant 10
Fair value at grant date 92,40 94.00 94,00 157,19 157.19
Share price at grant date 93,75 94,00 54.00 161.06 161.06
Exercise price 9.37 9.40 2.40 15.44 15,44
Expected volatility {welghted average volatility) 251.00% 251,00% 251.00% 112,25% 112,25%
Expected life [expected welghted average Life) 7.53 6,53 6.53 7.25 1.25
Expected dividends - - - - -
-|Risk-free Interest rate (based on government bonds) 8.81%, 8.81% 8.81% 5.60% 6.60%
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34 Share based payments {continued)

March 31, 2024
Particulars Grant 11 Grant 12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
fair value at grant date 157,19 257.48 279.71- 258,78 279.90 279,90
Share price at grant date 161.06 280.87 281,58 281.58 281.58
Exercise price 2.00 28.09 2,00 200 2,00
Expected volatility {welghted average volatility) 112.25% 71.58% 68,38% 72.36% 72,36%
Expected life {expected welghted average Life) 7.25 3.00 1,50 3,00 3,00
Expectad dividends - - - - -
Risk-free Interest rate (based on government bonds} 6,60% 4.99% 4.44% 5.71% 5.71%
Partlculars Grant 16 Grant 17 Grant 18 Grant 19 Grant 20
Fair value at grant date 0.16-0,51 441.07 441.20 | 485.91 ~ 485,92 485,91
Share price at grant date 0.00 442,81 442,81 487,53 487.53
Exercise price 000 2,00 2,00 2,00 2,00
Expected volatiity (weighted average volatifity) 45.00% 57.45%. 57.74% 51.64% ~ 52,19% 50,01%
Expected life [expected welghted average Life) 2,86t 4.36 2,25 3.00 3,00 3.00
Expected dividends - - - - -
Risk-free Interest rate (based oh government bonds) 6.72t06.74 6.20% 7.06% 6,99% - 7.16% 7.05%
Particulars Grant 21
Fair value at grant date 485,92
Share price at grant date 487,53
Exercise price 2.00
Expactad valatility (weighted average volatility} 49,21%,
Expected life (expected weighted average Life) 3.00
Expected dividends .
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds} 7.16%
March 31, 2023
Partlculars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant4 Grant s
Fair vajue at grant date 9,29 25.08 33.47 74.37 7437
Share price at grant date 9.29 25.08 33.47 74.40 74.40
Exercise price 2,32 6.27 8.36 7.44 7.44
Expected volatility {welghted average volatility) 251.00% 251.00% 251.00% 251.00% 251.00%
Expected life {expected welghted average Life} 2.50 8.05 8.07 6,25 6,25
Expected dividends v - - - -
Risk-free interest rate {based on government bonds) 8.30% 8.81% B.81% 8,81% B.81%
Particulars Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 8 Grant 10
Fair value at grant date 92.40 94,00 94,00 157,19 157,29
Share price at grant date 93.75 94,00 94,00 161.06 161,086
Exerclse price 9.37 9.40 2.40 15.44 15.44
Expected volatliity (weighted average volatility) 251.00%| 251,00% 251.00% 112,25% 112.25%
Expected life {expected welghted average Life} 7.53 6,53 6,53 7.25 7.25
Expected dividends . - - - -
Risk-frea Interest rate [based on government bonds) 8.81% 8,81% 8.81% 6,60% B.60%
Particulars Grant 11 Grant 12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Falr value at grant date 157.19 257.48 | 279.71-258.78 279.80 279.90
Share price at grant date 161,08 280.87 281,58 281.58 281,58
£xerclse price 2.00 28.09 2.00 2.00 2.00
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 112.25% 71.58% 62.38% 72.36% 72.36%
Expected ife {expected weighted average Life} 7.25 3,00 1.50 3.00 3.00
Expected dividends - - - - -
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 6.60%! 4,99% 4,44% 5.71%: 5.71%
Particufars Grant 16 Grant 17 Grant 18
Fair value at grant date 0,16 - 0,51 441,07 441.20
share price at grant date 0.00 442,81 442,81
Exercise price 0.00 2.00 2.00
Expected volatility (welghted average volatility) 33.48 - 38,56 57.45% 57.74%
Expected life {expected weighted avarage Life) 410 5.5 years 2.25 3.00
Expected dividends - - -
Risk-free Interest rate (based on government bonds) 5.3 t0 6,39 6.20%! 7.06%
€. Reconclllation of outstanding share optlons
The number and welghted-average exercise prices of share option under the share option plans are as follows:
March 31, 2024
Particulars Grant 1 Grant2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5
Qutstanding at April 1, 2023 " - 85,153 149,073 2,825
Granted during the perlod ~ - - - -
forfeited during the pericd - - - - -

: Canc_élléd.qqring the pericd - - - - -
Exerclsed during the peried - - - - -
Outstanding at Margh 31, 2024 - - 85,153 149073 2,825
Exerclcable at Marchi 31, 2024 - - 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
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34 Share based payments {contlnued)

March 31, 2024
Partlculars Grant & Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 10
Outstanding at April 1, 2023 8,465 65,800 1,67,570 95,699 8,74,950
Granted during the perlod - - - - .
forfeited during the perlod - - - - (18,985)
Cancelled during the perlod - - - - -
Exercised during the period - - - - -
Ouistanding at March 31, 2024 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 85,699 8,55,965
Exerclsable at March 31, 2024 3,465 65,800 1,672,570 95,699 8,4%,366
Particulars Grant 11 Grant 12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Outstanding at Aprll 1, 2023 - 1,17,902 1,81,53,410 16,02,925 36,95,225
Granted during the perlod - - - - -
Farfeited during the perlod - {5,000} - {42,555) {74,975}
Cancelled during the period - - - . -
Exercised durlng the period - - - . -
Cutstanding at March 31, 2024 - 1,12,902 1,81,53,410 15,60,370 36,20,250
Exerclsable at March 31, 2024 - 87,736 - 11,74,013 23,99,956
Partleulars Grant 16 Grant 17 Grant 18 Grant 19 Grant 20
Outstanding at April 1, 2023 3,19,75,975 4,64,898 53,750 “ -
Granted during the period 18,71,400 3,19,766 18,875
Forfelted during the period {62,93,700} {939) {3,000) (33,725) (3,000}
Cancelled during the period - - - - -
Exercised during the period - - - - .
Outstanding at March 31, 2024 2,75,53,675 4,63,859 50,750 2,86,042 12,875
Exercisahle at March 31, 2024 1,28,15,242 2,21,261 12,688 71,260 -
Particulars Grant 21
Outstanding at April 1, 2023 -
Granted during the period 1,92,583
Forfeited during the period {9,888)
cancelled during the peried -
Exercised during the period -
Outstanding at Marzh 31, 2024 182,695
Exercisable at March 31, 2024 -
March 31, 2023
Particulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5
Outstanding at April 1, 2022 2,585,765 - 1,35,180 1,62,390 2,825
Granted during the year - - - - -
Forfelted during the year - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - - - - -
Exercised during the year {2,55,765) - (50,028) (13,318) -
Outstanding at March 31, 2023 - " 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
Exerclsable at March 31, 2023 - - 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
Particulars Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 10
Outstanding at Aprll 1, 2022 3465 65,800 1,67,570 95,699 8,97,700
Granted during the year - B - - -
Forfeited during the year - - - - {22,750)
Cancelled during the year - - - - -
Exercised durlng the year - - - B B
Outstanding at March 3%, 2023 3,465 55,800 1,67,570 95,689 8,74,950
Exerclsable at March 31, 2023 3,465 65,800 1,627,570 56,568 6,08,773
Particulars Grant 11 Grant 12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Outstanding at April 1, 2022 - 1,22,590 1,81,53,410 17,23,870 37,83,353
Grapted diring the year - - - - -
Forfeited during the year - {4,688) - {1,20,945) {88,128}
Cancelied during the year - - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - - -
Qutstanding at March 31, 2023 - 1,17,902 1,81,53,410 16,02,925 36,95,225
Exercisable at March 31, 2023 - 62,571 - 16,34,221 8,32,122
Partlculars Grant 16 Grant 17 Grant 18
Cutstanding at April 1,2022 2,80,82,900 - -
Granted during the year 52,07,000 4,656,148 53,750
Ferfeited during the year (13,13,925) (1,250} -
Cancelled during the year - - -
Exercised during the year - - -
Qutstanding at March 31, 2023 3,19,75,975 4,64,898 53,750
Exerclsable at March 31, 2023 69,582,400 - -
Welghted average exerclse price for:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
t 31, 202 31,2023
Partlculars March 31, 2024 (Grant 16) March 31, 20. {Grant 18]
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 2,75 0,00 279 0.00
" |Granted during the year 2,00 0.00 2.00 0.00
‘|Forfeited during the year 1,01 Q.00 3,80 0.00
Cancelied during the year - - - .
Exercised durlg the year - - 3.48 -
-, |outstanding at ;the end of the year 273 0.00 2.75 0.00
Exercisable at‘¢nd of the year 5.36 0.00 6.46 0.00
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35 Related party transactions
A) Name of the related parties and nature of relationship
{i} where control exists:

Wholly owned subsldlzries

intellibees Solutions Private Lmited
Firstery Management DWC - LIC
Shenzhen Starbees Sarvices Lid
Joybees Private Limited

Digital Age Retall Private Limited

‘WM

Other Direct Subsldiaries
1 Swara Baby Products Private Limited
2 Firmroots Private Limited
3 Sclls Hygiene Private Limited
4 Globaibees Brands Private Limited

Step down subsldiarles
1 Firstery Retall DWC - {4C
Firstery Trading Company
Flrstery General Trading LLC
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Maxinlguas Solutions Private Lirnited
Better and Brighter Homecare Private Limited
Eyezen Technologies Private Limited
Cloud Lifestyle Private Limlted
9 HealthyHey Feods LLP
10 Butternut Ventures Private Limited
13 Dynamic IT Solution Private 1imited
12 Kubermart Private Limited
13 Mush Textlles Private Limited
14 Globalbees Brands DWC LLC
15 HS Fltness Private Limited
16 DF Pharmacy Limited
17 Candes Technology Private Limlted
18 Solarlsta Renewables Private Limited
15 Encasa Homes Private Limited
20 Frootle Indla Prlvate Limited
21 Prayosha Expo Private Limited
22 Wellspire india Private Limlted
23 Plantex £-Commerce Private Uimited
24 JW Brands Private Limlted
25 Kitchenopedla Appliances Private Limited
26 Swara Hyglene Private Limited

[-- BRI T RN T X

-~

=]

Other Entities where controk exlsts
1 Edubees Educational Trust
2 Bralnbees ESOP Trust

B

Other Related Parties

§, Entltles having significant Influence
1 SVF Frog {Cayman) Limited

Mahindra Retail Limited [formerly Mahindra Retail Private Limited) which has amalgamated with Mahlndra & Mabindra Limited pursuant to an order dated
Aprit 29, 2022 passed by Natlonal Company Law Tribunal {'NCLT'}

Il. Key management personnel
1 Mr. Supam Maheshwari - CEQ & Managing Director
2 Mr, Amltava Saha - Director
3 Mr. Zhooben Dossabhay Bhiwandiwala - Director (il Aprif 12, 2023)
5 Mr. Paul Alexander Davisan - Director
6 Mr. Amit Gupta - Director
7 Mr. Akshay Tanaa - Director (t# May 24, 2023)
8 Mr. Atul Gupta - Director

Mr. Vikas Agnihetrl - Director {Alternate Directer to Munish Ravindar Varma w.e.f December 10, 2021, re-designated as Additional Directer w.e.f January 12,
2022, re-designated as Director w.e.f Augtst 29,2022}

Mrs. Bala C Deshpande - Non executive & Independent Director {Additional Director w.ef. May 2, 2022, re - appointed as Non executive & Independant
Director w.e.f August 29, 2022) .

Mr. Gopalakrishnan Jagadseswaran - Non executive & Independent Director (Additional Blrector w.ef. May 2, 2022, re - appointed as Non executive &

11 independent Director w.e.f August 29, 2022)

Mr. Nearai Sagar - Non executive & Independent Director {Addltional Diractor wee.f. April 22, 2022, re - appointed as Non executive & independent Director
w.ef August 29, 2022)

13 Mr, Sanket Hattimattur - Director (Additional Director w.e.f. May S, 2022, re - appeinted as Director w.e.f August 29, 2022)

14 Mrs. Sujata Vilas Bogawat - Non executive & Independent Director (Additlonal Director w.e.f. May 2, 2022, re - appeinted as Non executive & Iadependent
Director w.e.f August 29, 2022)

15 Mr. Puneet Renjhen - Clrectar [w.e.f Apsl 24, 2023}

16 Mr. Similt Batra - Director {w.e.f May 25, 2023)

17 Mr. Gautam Sharma - Chlef Financlal Gificer

18 Mis. Samantha Rega - Company Secretary (w.e.f August 28, 2019 tii October 3, 2022}

19 Ms. Neelam lethani- Company Secretary { w.e.f. December 16, 2022}




Brainbees Solutions Umited (fermerfy known as Brainbees Solutlens Private Limited)

Notes forming patt of these Consolldated Financial Statement
{all amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

3% Related party transactlons fcontinued)

I Transactions with related parties

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2024 2023

Remuneration to Key management personnel*
short-term employee benefits and share-hased payment
Mr. Supam Maheshwari 1,038.54 2,007.31
Mr. Sanket Hatimattur (w.e.f May 5, 2023) 113.22 185.72
Mr. Gautam Sharma 21.60 47.54
Ms, Samantha Rego {till October 3, 2022) - 1.30
Ms. Neetam Jethani {w.e.f December 16, 2022) 3.77 0.99
Remuneration and Sitting Fees te Independent Blrectars
Mr. Gopalakrishnan Jagadeeswaran 0.67 -
Mrs. Bala C Deshpande 051 -
Mr. Neeraj Sagar 0.62 -
Mrs. Sujata Vilas Bogawat 0,40 -
Transactions with Key management gersonnel
Loan to Mr. Gautam Sharma - 75.58
Intevest Income on loan to Mr. Gautam Sharma 7.39 109

*Remuneration to key management personnel Includes short term employment benefits, Share based payments acceual and excludes provislons for gratuity,
compensated absences and other long term employment benefit which have been actuarially determined and the amounts pertaining to the KMP are not material.

Il Qutstanding balances with related partles

Particulars As At March 31, | As At March 31,
2024 2023
Balances outstanding with Key Management Personnel
Loan to Mr. Gautam Sharma 84,06 76.68
Mahindra Retail Limited {formerly Mahindra Retail Private Limited} which has amalgamated with Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
pursuant to an order dated Aprll 29, 2022 passed by National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT'}
Receivable/(Payable) for sale of poods 3.45 345

All transactions with these related partles are priced an an arm's length basis.

36 Fair value measurements

A Accounting classifications and falr values

Fair vatue of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term recelvables, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximates thelr carrying amounts

largely due to short term maturities of these instruments, The carrying amount borrowings is a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The following table shows carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financlal liabilitles, including their levels n the falr value hierarchy:

As at March 31, 2024

i Fair value

Particulars Carrying amount{ Amortised Cost Tovel1 evel 2 Tovel 3
Financlal assets
Security deposlts 557.15 557.15 “ - -
Bank deposits 111,14 111,14 - - -
Investments 50.14 50.07 .07 - -
Trade receivables 2,184,607 2,184.07 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,616.96 3,616.96 - - -
Other bank balances 3,120.91 3,120.9% - - B
Loans 360.82 360.82 - - -
Other financlal assets 1,069,82 1,069.82 “ - -
Total financlal assats 11,071.01 11,070,94 .07 - -
Financial Habilities
Borrowings 4,627.22 4,627.22 - . -
Lease fability 9,598.25 9,598.25 - - -
Trade payables 9,079.46 9,079.46 - - -
Other non-current financial liabilities 7,085.52 7,085,52 - " -
Other current financial liabilitles 1,268.23 1,268.23 - - -
Total financial liabllitles 31,658.68 31,658.68 - - -




Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Salutlons Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Consolldated Fnancial Statement
|All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

36 Falr value measurements [continued)

As at March 31, 2023
Fair vafue
teul,
Particulars Carrylng amount Amortised Cost Tevel1 Tovel 2 Toval3
Financial assets
Secuity deposits 375.04 375,04 - -
Bank deposits 337,61 337,61 - -
Investments 0.12 - 0.04 0,08
Trade raceivables 2,251.30 2,251.30 - -
Cash and cash squivalents 2,593,51 2,593.51 - -
Other hank balances 9,200.15 9,200.15 B -
Loans 390,77 350,77 - -
Other financlal assets 309.19 309,19 - -
Total financlal assets 15,457.69 15,487,57 0,04 0.08
flnancial llabliitles
Borrowings 1,764.74 1,764.74 B -
Lease lability 7,226.35 7,226,35 - “
Trade payables 7,318.11 731871 - -
Cther non-current financial liabilitles 6,819.48 6,819.48 - -
Other current financial Habilitles 1,159.86 1,155.86 - -
Total financial llabllltigs 24,349,194 24,349.14 - -

The fair value of finatclal Instrurnents as referred to In nots above have been classified Into three categorles depending on the inputs used In the valuation technique, The hlerarchy gives
the highest prlarity to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiiities {Leve! 1 measurements} and jowest priority to uncbservable Inputs (Levei 3 measurements),

{The space below has been left blank intentionally)
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Bralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutlons Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Consolldated fInancial Statement
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38 Flnanclal instr
Financial risk management

Tha Group has expostire to the following risks arlsing from financial instruments:
1} credit risk;

Ti) Hquidity risk; and

iti) market risk.

I, Risk management framework

The Holding Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framawork, The senlor management is for
developing and monitaring the Group's risk management policles, The management reports regularly to the Board of Directors on jts activities.

Tha Group's risk management policles are established to identity and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk imits and contrals and to moniter risks and adherence to
limlts. Risk management pellcles and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes In market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, alms to maintaln 3 discipiined and constructive control enviranment i which all employees understand thelr roles and abligations.

il. Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financlal loss to the Group if a customer or counter party te a financlal Instrument falls to meet Its contractual obligations, and arlses principally from the Group's
receivables from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk Is influenced malnly by the Individual characteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the factors that may Infiuence the credit risk
of its customer base, Including the default risk assaclated with the industry and country In which customers operate.

- The Group conslders a financlal asset In default when contractual payments are 90 days past due adjusted for forward-locking factors specific to the debtors and the economic envlrenment,
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external Infarmation Indicates that the Group is unfikely to receive the outstanding
contractital amounts In full before taking Into account any credit enhancements held by the Group, A inanclal asset Is written off when there is no reascnable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows. The Group considers that there has been a slgnificant increase In credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Credlt risk exposure

Provision for expected credit fosses

In respect 1o other financial assets, the Group fallows a 12-months expected credit foss approach. The management daes not foresee a materlal loss an account of credit risk due to the
nature and credlt worthiness of these financlal assets. Fusther, the Group has not cbserved any material defaults In recovering such financlai assets excapt trade recelvables and hence the
Group has not provided for credit impairment of these financial assets, The Group has provided for expected credit loss on trade recelvables as follows.

March 31, 2024

Particulars Estimated gross Expectad Expected tredit Carrylng ameunt net
tarrying amount at default{  probability of losses of Impairment

Trade and other recelvables 2,272.96 3.91% {88.89) 2,184.07

March 31, 2023

Partlculars Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying amount net
carrying amount at default|{ probability of losses of Impairmant

. default
Trade and other racelvables 2,275.41 1.05% (24,11} 2,251,30

Expected credit loss for trade recefvables under simplified approach

As at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Group has certain trade recelvables that have not been settled by the contractual due date but are not consldered to be impaired. The
amounts as at March 33, 2024 and March 31, 2023 analysed by the length of time past due, are:

- March 34, 2024

Partlculars Estimated gross| Expected Expected credit] Carrying amount het
carrying amount at default probabliity of losses; of Impairment
default
Not due 275.34 0.03% {e.07) 275.27
Not mare than 6 months 1,528.33 0.57% {8.70) 1,519.63
More than 6 months_ 469.29 17.07% {80.12) 389,17
March 31, 2023
Particulars Estlmated gross Expected Expected credit| Carrying amount net
carrying amount at default prohability of losses of impairment
default
Not due 24517 0,00% . 245,17
Not rmore than 6 menths 1,796.4% 0.06% {1.08) 1,785.33
More than & months 233,83 9.85% {23 63) 210,80

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is lmlted as the Group generally Invasts In deposlts with banks and #Hinanclat institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit ratlng

agencies,

ili. Hguidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the rlsk that the Group wifi encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with Its financlal Hablities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset,
The Group's approach to managing fiquidity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that It will have sufficlent liguldity to meet Its llabllities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
canditions, without incurring unacceptable lossas or risking damage to the Group's reputation, The management monltars rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position on the basis of
expected cash flows.




PBralnbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)
Naotes forming part of these Consolldated Financial Statement
(Al amounts In Rupeas milon, unless othenwise stated)

Exposure to llquldity sisk

The following are the remalning contractual maturities of flnanclal lizbilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments.

March 31, 2024

Particulars Carryln N Contractual cash flows
Ty Less than 1 year 1.3 years More than 3 years
Borrowings - 4,627.22 2,400,25 1,945.68 324.48
Lease tlabilitles 9,598.25 2,027.72 3,839.04 7,702.67
_{Trade payables 9,079.46 9,079.46 - -
Other financlal Habilities B,253,75 5,398.57 3,158.66 749,26
March 31, 2023
Contractual cash flows
Partlculars [« t
’ arrying amaun Less than 1 year 1-3years More than 3 years
Borrowings 1,764,714 1,214.34 431,76 118,17
Lease Ltabllltes 7,226.35 1,498,30 2,818.75 6,009.63
Trade payables ' 737871 7,378.71 - -
Other financlal liabilitles 7.979.34 1,159.89 3,767.78 5,819.97

v, Market risk

Market risk is the 7isk that changes in market prices such as foralgn exchange rates, Interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financlal
instruments, The objective of market risk management is te manage and control market risk exposures within accaptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Currency rlsk

The Group's exposure to forelgn currency risk is limited as majority of the transactions are In Its functional currency. As at the balance-sheet date, the Group had folfowing forelgn currency
exposures which have not been hedged by any derlvative financial instrurmnents as they are not material.

particulats March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Forelgn currency R Foreign currency Rupess

Payable - EUR {0.04} {3.41) {0.04} {3.31)
Payable - SAR - - {0,02) {0.48)
Payable - SGD - . (£.00) {0.02)
Payabla - USD {4.32) {360.44) (2.56) {169.84)
Recelvable - AED - - 0,00 0.08

" |Recelvable - GBP - - 0.00 0.06
Receivable - CNY 0.34 3.94 - -
Recelvable - USD 0.64 54.35 0,58 47.54
Total {305,565 {125.96)
Sensitivity:
Particulars Impact on profit before tax and equity

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

U5D sensitivity
USDH/INR «Increase by 5% {15.30) {6.11)
USB/INR -Decrease by 5% 15.30 611
EURC sensitivity
EURCY/INR -Increase by 5% {0.17) {0.17)
EURO/INR -Decrease by 5% 017 0417
CNY sensltivity
CNY/INR -Increase by 5% 0.20 -
CNY/INR -Decrease by 5% 0.20) -
GBP sensltivity
GBP/INR -Increase by 5% - c.00
GBP/INR -Decrease by 5% - {0.00)
SAR sensitivity
SARMNR -Increase by 5% . {0.02)
SAR/INR -Decrease by 5% - 0.02
AED sensitivity

-JAED/INR -Increase by 5% - 0.00
AED/NR -Decrease by 5% - [0.00)
SGD sensitivity
SGD/INR -Increase by 5% - {0.00}
SGD/INR -Decrease by 5% - 000

Forelgn Currency Sensitivity analysis:
The following tabie detalls the Group's sensitivity to a 5% Increase and decrease In the Rupees agalnst the relevant foreign currencies, 5% Is the sensitivity rate used when reposting foreign

currency tlsk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasenably pessible change in forelgn exchange rates, The sensitivity analysls Includes
only cutstandirg forelgn currency denominated monetary items and adjusts thelr traaslation at the perlod end for a 5% change in forelgn currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an Increase in profit and equity where the Rupee strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the Rupee against the relevant currency, there would be a compatable
impact on the profit & equity and the balances below would be negative.
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Notes formlng part of these Consolldated Financlal Statement
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. Interest rate risk

Tha Group's borrowings carry a fixed rate of interest and are measured at amortised cost. They are, therefore, not subject to Interest rate risk as dafined in IND AS 107, since neither the
carrying amaunt nor the future cash flows will fluctuate due to change in market Interest rates.

39 Capltal Management

40

41

41

The Group's palicy Is to maintain a strong capital base sa as to maintaln investor, creditor and other stakehalders' confidence and to sustain future development of the business. in order ta
maintaln or adfust the capltal structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends patd to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new share or sell assets to reduce debt,

Consistent with others In the Industry, the Graup menltors capital using a ratio of 'net debt’ 'equity'. For this purpose, net debt Is defined as totat liabilitles, comprising Interest-bearing loans
and borrewings less cash and cash equivatents and other balances with Banks. Equity comprises all compenents of equity attributable te the owners of Holding Company,

The Group strategy Is to maintaln a gearing ratio less than 1.50x, The gearing ratlo at year end Is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net Debt (as defined above) {2,110.,65) 110,028,92}
Equity attrlbutable to the owners 31,707.36 34,562,57
Gearlng ratlo {0,07) {0.29)

Suthsequent Events

a) Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2024, one of the warehouse where Inventary of the Group was stocked, Hooghly, West Bengal, caught flre and the Inventory and property, plant and
equipment’s therein were completely destroyed. The Incldent tock place oh May 20, 2024 before finallsation of the financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2024, At the date of
Incident, there was Inventory of iNR 752,10 milllan {including GST} in approximate value and carrying value of property, plant and equipment’s of INR 77.49 roilllon {historlcal cost Including
GST- Rs 269.37 milllon}. The Group's Insurance policy adequately covers the losses incurred. As on the date of finalisation of financlal statements, the Company Is In the process of filing the
insurance chaim,

In apinlon of the Management, since, the event taok place post the reporting date of March 31, 2024, itis a non-adjusting event In these financial statements and hence, no corresponding
financlal impact is considered in the financial statements. Further, based on the facts mentioned above and as per the Judgement of Management, there Is no threat ta the Going Concern of

" the business and hence docs not warrants any adjustment to the financial assertions made in the financlal statements in this regard.

b) Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2024, ane of the warehouse where Inventory of the Group was lying, Harihar Complex, Mumbal Nashik Highway, Bhiwand, Maharashtra, caught fire
and the inventory lying thereln was completely destroyed. The incldent tack place on Aprl 27, 2024 but before finalisation of the financial statements for the year ended March 21, 2024, At
the date of incident, there was Inventory of INR 345,62 illion In approximate value, The Group has filed a provisional insurance claim In the month of May 2024, before the date of
finalisation of the Financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2624. The clzim Is still under process to get finalised from the Insurance company, The Group had already avalled/
claimed unutifised GST {TC of INR 73.47 million on such stock lost by fire. In opinicn of the Management, since, the avent took place post the reporting date of March 31, 2024, It 15 a non-
adjusting event in these financlal stataments and hence, no carresponding financlal impact 15 considerad In the {inancial statements, Further, in the judgement of Management, other than
business loss for a temparary perlod there is ho threat to the Golng Cancern of the business and hence dees nat warrants any adjustment to the financial assertlons made In the finan<lal
statements in this regard, '

c) Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, and In accordance with the resolution passed by circulation by the Helding Company’s board of directars on July 5, 2024, all compulserily
canvertible prefarence shares (CCPS) e, Serles A CCPS, Serles B CCPS, Serles C CCPS, Series C1 CCPS, Serles C2 CCPS, Serles D1 CCPS and Serles D2 CCPS, have been converted to equity shares
ata 1:1 ratio

Management Note on Audit trail
The Ministry of Corporate Affsirs {MCA} has prescribed a new requlrement for companies under the provisc to Rule 3({1) of the Campanies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies
{Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accatinting software for maintaining Its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trall of each and every transactlon, creating an edit fog of each changa made In the bocks of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that
the audit trall cannat be disabled,

The Hotding Company and Its subsidlary companies Incorporated In Indla have used accounting software for malntalnlng thelr respective baaks of account, which have a featura of recording
audIt trail {edit log) facility and the same have operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software, except for the Instances mentloned below:

1. In case of the Holding Company and one subsidlary -
a. The audit trall faature in the accounting software used for malntenance of accounting records was not enabled throughout the year, and
b, The audit trall featura was not enabled at the database level for another accounting software to log any direct data changes, used for malntenance of bllling recards.

. 2. in case of two subsidiarles - The accounting software used for maintenance of all accounting secords and payroll records are operated hy third-party service provider. The audit trall
feature was not enabled at the application level for the period 1 April 2023 to 14 August 2023 for the payroll software, In the absence of any Information on exlstence of audit trail {edit logs)
for any direct changes made at the database level In the ‘independent Service Auditor’s Repart on a Description of the Sarvice Organlzation’s System and the Sultabliity of the Design and
Operating Effectiveness of Controls' {'Type 2 report’, issuad i accordance with AICPA Description criteriz), we are unable to demonstrate whether audit trai! feature with respect to the
database was enabled and operated throughout the year used for both the accounting software,

3,1n case of one subsidiary -
a, The audit trail featurs for accounting software used for malntenance of accounting records was not enabled from 1 April 2023 to 13 Apri 2023, and
b, The sald accounting software did not capiure the detalis of who made the changes l.e,, User Id for one location from 13 Aprii 2023 to 31 March 2024,

4, In case of one subsidiary - The audit trail feature for accounting software used for malntenance of accounting records was not enabled from 1 April 2023 to 3 April 2023,
5, iy case of one subsidiary - The audit trail feature for accaunting software used for maintenance of accotnting records was not enabled from 1 Aprif 2023 ta 7 April 2023,
6. In case of two subsidiarles - The audlt trall feature for accounting software used for malntenance of accounting recards was not enabled throughout the yaar,

7. n case of one subsldiary - In the absence of the ‘Independent Service Auditar's Assurance Repart on the Description of Controls, thelr Design and Operating Effectivenass’ {Type 2 report’
tssued In accordance with SAE 3402, Assurance Reports on Cantrols at a Service Organisation), we are unabla to demanstrate whether audit trall feature at the database of the sald software
was enabled and operated throughout the year,

8. in case of sixteen subsidlaries - In the absence of any Information on existance of audlt trail (edit togs) for any direct changes made at the database level in the Independent Service
Auditor's Report on a Description of the Service Organlzation’s System aad the Suitabllity of the Dasign and Operating Effectiveness of Controls’ (*Type 2 report’, Issued in accordance with
ACPA Description criteria), we are tnable to demonstrate whether audit trall feature with respect to the database of the sald software was enabled and operated throughout the year.

The Code on Sacial Security, 2020 {Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits recelved Presidentiat assent in September 2020, The Code has
been published In the Gazette of Indla, However, the date on which the Code will come Into effect has not been notifled. The Company will assess the Impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related mpact in the perlod when the Code becomas effective.
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Notes forming part of these Consolldated Financial Statement
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43  Other Statutory Information required by schedile I to the Companies Act, 2013

a} The Group does aot have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been Inktiated an or are pending against the Group for hokiing benami preperty under the Banaml
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and Rules made thareunder.

b) The Group doas not have any charges or satlsfaction which is yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.
) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the current financiet year.

d} The Group daes nct have any transaction which Is not recorded In the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or dlsclosed asIncame during the year In the tax assessment under the
Incame Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961, 3

e} The Group has not heen declared wiiful defauiter by any bank or financial lnstitution or government or any government autherlty,
f) The Group has not entered Into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting Impact on current o previous financial year.

g} The Group has net advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity {ies}, Including forelgn entitles (intermediasies) with the understanding that the intermedlary
- shalt:

1} Directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other person {s} or entities identified In any manner whatsoaver on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries}

II} Provide any guarantee, any securitles or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate baneficiarles,

h) The Group has nat recelved any fund from any person (s) or entity (les), insluding forelgn entitles {Funding party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the group shall :

a} Directly or Indirectly fend or iavest In other persen (s) or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever on behalf of the Group (ultimate beneficlarles)

b} Provide any guarantee, any securities or the Hlke to or on behalf of the ultimate benaficlarles.

1) The Group has not revalued any of Its praperty, plants and equipments Including Right of Use asset and intanglble assets during the year,
J) The Group has no transactions with any struck off company during the year.

k) The Group doas not have any immaovable propearty whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Group except thosa held under lease arrangements for which fease agreements are
duly executed in the favour of the Group.

1) The Group Is In compliance with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act read with the Compantes (Restriction an number of tayers} Rules,
2017

Nolte:
Previous year's figures have been regrouped whera necessary to conform with the current year's classification. The Impact of such regrouping is not materiai to financial statements.

As per our report of even date attachad for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Bralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Prlvate lell
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
3rd floor, Unit No, 310 to 312,
West Wing, Nyati Unitree
Nagar Road, Yerwada,

Pune - 411 006
Maharashtra, India

T +01 20 6744 8888
Independent Auditor’'s Report F +91 20 6744 8899

To the Members of Brainbees Solutions Limited {(formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly
known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI") together
with the ethical requirements that are retevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. .

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

N RO
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with fimited liability with identification
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The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assels
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users faken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; s
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« Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(18) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V o the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure B, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account,

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fi  The adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended),

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure A wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial pesition as at 31 March 2624,

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
ware any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

i, There were no amounts which were required to be fransferred tfo the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,

Page 3of 11




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

iv.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 48(g) fo the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 48 (h) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person{s) or entity(jes), including foreign entities {the Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

vi. As stated in note 50 to the standalone financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been
operated for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than
the consequential impact of the exceptions given below:

a) The audit trail feature in the accounting software used for maintenance of accounting records

was not enabled throughout the year.

b) The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for another accounting software to

log any direst data changes, used for maintenance of billing records by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Shashi Tadwalkar
Partner
Membership No.; 101797

UDIN: 24101797BKCPDW3020

Place: Pune

Date; 05 July 2024
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Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{(‘the Act))

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as
Brainbees Solutions Private Limited) (the Company’) as at and for the year ended
31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
pased on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference fo
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the
Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financlal statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detalil, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that jihave a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the rigk thai the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0601076N/N500013

e

Shashi Tadwalkar
Partner
Membership No.: 101797

UDIN: 24101797BKCPDW3020

Place: Pune
Date: 05 July 2024
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Annexure B

Annexure B referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

{i) (a)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and refevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibie assets.

The property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-
use assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical
verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (cother than properties where the

Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost mode! for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-

of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

during the year, except for goods-in-transit . In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and ne discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) The Company has not been sancticned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on

the hasis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Campany.

(This space has been left blank intentfonaﬁy)
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(iii)

{a) The Company has provided {loans or advances in the nature of loans, or guarantee, or

(b)

security} to Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associates/Others during the year as per details
given below:

Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances
{Tin {Fin (Fin in the
Millions) Millions) | Millions) | nature of
loans (¥
in
Millions)

Aggregate amount  provided/granted
during the year (Rs.):

- Subsidiaries - - 418160 | -
- Joint Ventures - _ _ .
- Associates . . . _
- Others _ ) 30 26 .

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases Rs.).

- Subsidiaries - - 4633.41 | -
- Joint Ventures - - _ .
- Associates _ . . -
- Others - - 35277 | -

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and conditions of the
grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guaraniees provided are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
principal amount is not due for repayment currently, however, the receipt of the interest
is regular.

There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted
to such companies, firms, LLPs or ather parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which has
fallen due during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the
overdue loans/advances in nature of loan that existed as at the beginning of the year.

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of ioans which are repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, as per details below:

Particulars All  Parties | Promoters (¥ | Related
(% Million) Million) Parties (¥
Million)

Aggregate of loans/advances in
nature of loan

- Repayable on demand (A) . . 4181.60
" - Agreement does not specify any terms ‘ -

or period of repayment (B) - -

Total (A+B) - - 4181.60

Percentage of loans/advances in 83.86%

nature of loan to the total loans - -

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments
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made and guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has
not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.

(v} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section {1}
of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business acfivities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{vi} of the Order is nat applicable.

(vi}{a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end
for a periad of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
in sub-clause {a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except for the following:

{Amount Rs. In million)

Name of the | Nature of dues | Gross | Amount | Period to | Forum where | Remarks
statute Amou | paid which the | dispute is | , ifany
nt under amount pending
(Rs.) Protest | relates
(Rs.}

Income tax Act, | Income tax 40.92 8.18 | AY 2015-16 | Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax
{Appeals)

Income fax Act, | Income tax 42,71 - | AY 2016-17 | Commissioner of

1661 Income Tax
{Appeals)

Income tax Act, | Income tax - - | AY 2016-17 | Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income tax Act, | Income tax 82.01 - | AY 2017-18 | Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax
{Appeals)

State Goods & | Maharashtra 5.09 0.26 | FY 2017-18 | Deputy

Services Tax, | Goods & Commissioner of

2017 services tax State Tax

State Goods & | Dethi Goods & 2.03 0.10 | FY 2017-18 | GST  Appeliate

Services Tax, : services tax Tribunal

2017

State Goods & | Karnataka 19.99 0.90 | FY 2017-18 | GST  Appellate

Services Tax, | Goods & Tribunat

2017 services tax

Customs  Act, | Customs duty 0.53 - |'FY 2024-22 | Custom

1952 Commissicnerate

{vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
toans or cother borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company,
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initiat public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x){(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x){b} of the Order is not applicahle to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made {o us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reparting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xifi) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act.

{xiv) {a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required
under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but had incurred cash losses
amounting to Rs. 516.72 Million in the immediately preceding financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under

(xix)

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information in the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance shest as and when they fall due within a pericd of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viahility
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all Habilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards

{xxi)

Corporate Social Respansibility pertaining to other than ongeing projects as at end of the current
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Crder is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Carporate Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as at end of the current
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx){b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said

clause under this report,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charteraed Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Shashi Tadwalkar
Parther
Membership No.: 101797

UDIN: 24101797BKCPDW3020

Place: Pune
Date: 05 July 2024
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Bralnbees Salutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No, As at March 331, 2029 As at March 3%, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,526.15 1,769.23
Capital work-in-progress 4 3.73 134,64
Right of use assets 5 4,735.01 4,203.22
Goodwill 6 3,032.47 3,032.47
Gther intangible assets 7 374,88 308,14
Intangibie assets under development 7 - 0.67
Financlal assets
{a} investments 8 18,417.26 14,724.51
{b} Cther financial assets 9(a} 316,82 456.09
Deferred tax assets {net} 10 1,561.23 1,349.06
Income tax assets (net) 11 201,35 167.54
Other non-current assets 12(a} 450,24 584,63
Total non-current assets 31,619,14 26,820.20
Current assets,
Inventories 13 4,809.48 4,321.43
Financial assets
{a} Trace receivables 14 6,755.73 4,675.92
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 15 663.04 1,117.88
{c) Bank balances other than [b) above 16 1,609.25 7,009.44
(d) Loans 17 4,986.18 774,38
(e} Other financial assets 9({b} 691.70 50.24
Cther current assets 12{b) 344.63 450.09
Total current assets 139,860.01 18,399.38
Total Assets 51,479,15 45,215,58
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 18 896,32 866,52
Instruments entirely equity In nature 19 70.37 70.37
Other equity 20 41,180.67 36,509.46
Total equity 42,147.36 37,446.35
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liahilities
{a) Lease [abilitles 4,673.52 4,050.86
{b} Other financial liabilities 21(a) 2.73 2,73
Provislons 22(a) 168.13 133.32
Total non-current liabllitles 4,844.78 4,186.91
Current liabilltles
Financial labilities
{a) Lease liabilities 614.62 463.94
{b} Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 317.98 3732
Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3 2,814.61 227544
(c} Cther financial #abilities 21(b} 112,46 366.84
Other current liabilitles 24 580.85 406.39
Provisicns 22{b) 16,49 36,39
Total current [labilities 4,487.01 3,586.32
Total equity and liabillties 51,479.15 45,218.54
Summary of material accounting policy information 2-3 T
See accompanying notes forming integral part of Standalone financial statements 4-51

As per our report of even date attached
For Walker Charidiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fir?i- eglstration Number : 001076N/N00013
Ky

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Brainbeas Solutions bimited {formerly known as Brainboes

Salutlons Private Limited})
i )‘——é W

CiN : US1100PN201CPLC136340
A

Shashi Tadwalkar Supam Maheshwari Sanket Hattimattur
Partner Managing Director Directar
Membership Number - 101797 DEN : 01730685 DIN : 09593712
Place ! Pune Place : Pune Place | Pune ,
Date Lo s Date : Date: /\/‘”/
05 Jub 204 C—" && W

Gautam&ﬁﬁr:/ N;]e!am Jethanl

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Pune Place : Pune

Date:

.
Smsant
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Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts In Rupees milllon, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended for the year ended
March31,2024 |  March31,2023 |
Income
Revernue from operations 25 21,632,190 2541892
Other income 26 1,032.48 587.27
Total Income 22,664.58 26,406.19
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 27 14,570,92 14,193.55
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade 28 (488.05) 3,375.27
Employee benefits expense
(i) Employee benefits expense 29 2,286.66 2,012.54
{it} Employee share based payment expense 30 1,563.44 3,232.01
Finance costs 31 518,91 400,49
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 32 1,500,19 1,292.29
QOther expenses 33 3,546.57 3,709.01
Total expenses 23,498,649 28,215.20
Loss before tax [834.06) {1,809.01)
Tax expense
Current tax 34 - -
Deferred tax 34 212,12 245.10
Total tax expense 212,12 245,10
Loss for the year (621.94) (1,563.91)
Other comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations 39 {0.20} 16.87
Inceme tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss 0.05 {4.25)
Total other comprehensive {loss)fincome for the year {8.15) 12,62
Total comprehensive loss for the year (622.09) {1,551.28)
Earning per equity share
Basic earning per share [INR} 35 1.32) {3.34)
Dituted earning per share {INR} {1.32) {3.34}
Summary of material accounting policy information 23
See accampanying notes forming integral part of Standalone financial statements 4.51

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0010760/N00013

: BLOWU’/’“ '

Shashi Tadwalkar

Partner

Mambership Number - 101797
Place : Pune

Date:

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Bralnbees
Solutlons Private Limited)

CIN ; 1J51100PN2010P1C136340 ‘)‘@
Al \V
&‘—_‘“—«r'j /
Supam Maheshwarl Sanket Hattimattur
Managing Director Director
DIN : 01730685 DIN : 09553712
Place | Pune Place : Pune
Date : Date : :
7

e o

Ne; m Jethani

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Pung Piace : Pune

Date : Date :




Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)
standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts In Rupees rllilon, untess atherwlse stated}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activitles
Net Loss Before Tax {834,06) [1,80%9,01}
Adjustments for:
Depreciatlon on property, plant and equipment 670.67 589,50
Arortisation of intangible assets 36.88 33,12
Amortisation of right of use assats 792.64 6649.69
Employee share based payment expense 1,563.44 3,232,01
Trade recelvables written off {125} 4,32
Unrealised forelgn currency gain (1.47) {2.16)
Galn on termination of leases {29.77) {28.18)
Rent Concession - [19.59}
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks {279.19) {452,32)
Interest iIncome on security deposits {27.13) [23.99)
Finance costs 518,91 400.49
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 2,409.63 2,593.77
Working capital changes

Increase In trade receivables {2,077.05) {3,231.60)

{Increase)/Decrease in inventories {488.05} 3,375.27

Increase in other financlal assets {67215} {111.36}

Dagrease/{increasa} in other non-current assets 134,39 |237.91}

Decraase in other current assets 105.46 1,482.52

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 819.83 {1,541.67)

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 174.46 {146.08)

Increase in provisions 44,71 41,21

(Decrease}/Increase in current and non-cureent financial liabilities [254,38) 94,82
Cash generated from operating activities 196.85 2,318.97
fncome tax paid {net of refund received) (33.81) {65,19)
Net cash generated from operating activities {A) 163.04 2,253.78
Cash flow from Investing activitles
Acqulsition of property, plant and equipment {296.68) {1,108,11)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 2,13
Acquisition of intargible assets {12.95) [25.61)
investments in bank deposits {5,909.55} {18,960.90)
Proceeds from bank deposits 11,361.70 22,398,591
Investments in subsidiaries and ather entities {4,564.69) {4,425.92)
Loans given ta Subsidiaries {4,211.80) {686,34)
Interest received 370.46 456.95
Net cashflow used In Investing activitles {B) (3,263.51) 12,348,859}
Cash fiow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 29.80 D.64
Proceeds from securities premium 3,601.80 0.47
Repayment of lease liabtiities (including Interest) {Refer Note 5} (976.50) (753.60)
Interest paid {9.07) {1,65}
Net cash generated from / {used) in financing actlvities {C) 2,645.63 (754,14}
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {454.84} {849.25)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1117.88 1,967.13
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year £563.04 1,117.88
Naotes:
1,Components of tash and cash equivalents:

For the year ended For the year ended

Partlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 0.44 0.33
Balances with banks
in current accounts 100.36 337.55
in deposit accounts having original maturity less than 3 months 562.24 780,00
Total 663.04 1,117.881




Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts In Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

2.Movement in financial liabifities

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

et March 31, 2024 March 3%, 2023
Opening halance of lease liabilities 241377 2,854.63
Movement

Cash flows {Refer Note 5) {976.90} (753.60)
Nan cash changes 3,851.67 2,413.77
Closing balance of lease fiabilities 5,288,549 4,514.80
Non-cash movement represents:

- With respect to leases, accrual of interest on lease liabilitles, rent concessions, new additlons and deletions to the leases.
summary of material accounting policy information 2-3

See accompanying notes forming integral part of Standalone financial statements 451

For Walker Chandlok & CoLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Brainbees Solutions
Firm Reglstration Number : 001076N/N00013 Private Limited)

CIN : US1100PN2010PLC136340

p

e

Supam Maheshwari Sanket Hattimattur
Shashi Tadwalkar Managing Director Director
Partner DIN : 01730685 DIN: 09593712
Membership Number - 101797 Place : Pune Place : Pune
Place : Pune Date: Date: /\/“}"i/
Date : . b
peer : g N
i, :
Gautdm Sharma Neelam Jethani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Pune Place ! Pune
Date ! Date:
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Bralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Salutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
{All amounts In Rupees million, unless otherwlse stated)

1 Nature of Operations
Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited) (the ‘Company'] Is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated in Pune, The
Company Is engaged in the business of buying, selling, advertising, promoting baby and kids products and Fast Moving Consumer Goods {'FMCG") goods on a whalesale basis through
various business partners. The Company also runs pre-school business for kids through variaus franchisee partners in India.

2 Basis of preparation for Standalone Financlal Statements

B, Staterent of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as per the Companles {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, {the 'Act'} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for Issue by the Company's Board of Directors an 05 July 2024

Detalls of the Company's accounting policles are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR.), which is also the Company's functlonal currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
mifllon, unless otherwise indicated,

C., Basis of measurement

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following [tems:

items Measurement basis
Certain financlal assets and Habilitles Fair value
£quity-settled share-based payment arrangements fair value

D. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptians

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and llabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liahilities, Uncertalaty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a matertal adjustment to the carrying asmount of assets or liabllities affectad in future periods

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting pollcies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised In the standalene financlal statements Is
Included in the following notes:

- Note 19 ; Classification of Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS) and certaln equity shares.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
Standatone Financial Statements weve prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions ahout future developments, however, may change due to market changes o circumstances
arislng that are Yeyend the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting In a material adjustment are Included in the following notes:
- Note 3{e){ii} Impairment of goodwill and brand value: key assumptions being discount rate and terminal growth rate.

- Note 10 Recagnition of DTA, avallabliity of future taxable profit against which tax losses carrled forward can be used.

- Note 39 measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 44 Falr Value of ESOPs,

Impairment of non-financlal assets

Impairment exists when the carrylng value of an asset or cash generating unlt exceeds Its recoverable amount, which Is the higher of its falr value less costs of disposal and its value [n
use, The fair value less costs of disposal calculation where performed, s based on availabte data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation Is based on a DCF model. The recoverable amount Is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes, These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and ether
intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade recelvables and contract assets. The provisian rates are based on days past due for graupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

ludgements

in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following Judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the Standalone Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancelfable term of the lease, together with any periads covered by an option to extend the lease If it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it Is reasonably certain not to he exercised.




Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Selutlons Private Lirrited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts in Rupees million, unlass otherwlse stated)

2 Basls of preparation for Standalone Financial Statements {continued)
D, Slgnificant accounting jJudgements, estimates and assumptions
Revenue from contracts with custormers

« Determining method to estimate varioble consideration and assessing the constraint
Certain cantracts for the sale of products include a right of return and volume rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company Is
required to use either the expected value method or the mast ltkely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it witl be entltled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration for the sale of preducts with rights of return,
given the large number of customer contracis that have similar characteristics. In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of equipment with volume rebates, the Company
determined that using a combination of the most likely amount method and expected value method is appropriate. The selected method that better predicts the amount of variable
consideration was primarily driven by the number of volume threshalds contained In the contract. The most likely amount method 13 used for those contracks with a single volume
threshold, while the expected value method is used for contracts with more than one volume threshold.

E, Measurement of falr values
A number of the Company's accounting policles and disclosures require the measurement of falr values, for both financial and non-financlal assets and liabilities,

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair
value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place elther:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principa! market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values wherein the overall responsibility for overseeing alk significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 falr vaiues is supervised by the chief financlal officer,

This includes reviews signlficant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information Is used to measure falr values, then the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conglusion that these valuations meet the requirements of ind AS, Including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified is
assessed.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabititles.
- Level 2: inputs other than quated prices Included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or llability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data {unobservable inputs).

Wheﬁ measuring the falr value of an asset or a llability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a
Nlabiiity fall into different tevels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised In its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between jevels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring falr values 1 included in the following notes:
- Mote 44 - Share based payment arrangements

- Note 45 - Fair value measurements

- Note 46 - Financial instruments

F. Current / non-current ¢lassification

‘The Company presents assets and liabilitles in the Balance Sheet based on the current and non-current classification.

Assets

An asset Is classified as current when It satisfles any of the following criterla:

{a) it Is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale o consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

{b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{c) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

{d} it Is cash or cash equivalent uniess it is restricted from belng exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Current assets inciude the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liabliity Is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

{a} itTs expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(b} it Is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{c] it is due to be settled within 12 manths after the reporting date; or

(d} the Company does not have an unconditional right ta defer settiement of the Habllity for atleast 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current pertion of non-current financial liabilities. All other Hiabiiities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax asset and liabifity are classified as Non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr reafisation in cash or cash equivalents, The aperating cycle of the Company 15 less than 12
months,




Bralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbaes Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
{All amounts In Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

3 Material accounting policy information
a. Financlal Instruments
A financial instrument Is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financlal liability or eguity Instrument of another entity,
1, Recognition and initial measurement

Trade recelvables and debt Instruments {such as security deposits) issued are Initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilitles are initiaily
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provislons of the instrument.

A financlal asset or financial Hability is inltially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at falr value through profit and loss (FYTPL), transaction casts that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classlfication and subsequent measurement
Flnancial assets

On initial recagnition, a financlal asset s classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt lnvestment;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or
- Falr Value through profit and loss {FVTPL}

Financlal assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except If and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financlal assets.

A financial asset |s measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and Is not designated as at FVTPL:
. the asset is heid within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets to colfect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financlal asset giva rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding, This
assessment is referred to as the SPP! test and is performed at an Instrument level.

A debt investment is measured at FVOC i it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset 1s held within a buslness model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and seliing financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the princlpal amount outstanding. This
ascessment Is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

On Initial recognition of an equity investment that Is not held for trading, the Company may irrevacably elect to preseat subsequent changes in the Investment's fair value In OCI
(designated as FVOC! - equity investment), This election is made on an instrument- by- instrument basis,

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not quatify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing
recognition of the assets,

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whase perfarmance Is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL,

Al financial assets not classified as measurad at amortised cost or FVOC! as descrined above are measured at FYTPL. On Initial recognition, the Company may Irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVIPL I daing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise,

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at falr value, Net gains and losses, at FVTPL including any
interast or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCH These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, forelgn exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss, Other nat
gains and losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, galns and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOC| These assets are subsequently measured at falr value, Dividends are recognised as income In profit or
toss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the Investment. Cther net
galns and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassifled to profit or koss.

Flnanclal assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange galns and losses:
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss, Any galn or 1oss on derecognition is recognised In
profit or loss.

Financlal liabilitles

Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financlal labilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial Hability is classifled as at FVTPL If it is classified as held- for- trading, or it Is a derlvative or it is
destgnated as such on Initial recogaition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair vajue and net gains and tosses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or
toss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any galn or loss on derecognition is also recognised In profit or Joss.

itl. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financtal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financiat asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
Ina transaqijnf\\;]ﬁj \ ;li’,gub\sgqntlallv all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred of In which the company nelther transfers nor retains substantially

p) G

alt of they Isl?s’;ahﬂ rewards of. 6w§1ershlp and does not ¢etain control of the financial asset.




Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limlted)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts In Rupees milllon, unless otherwise stated)

3 Material accounting policy information (continued}
a. Financial instruments {continued)

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantiatly all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in fransactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing
recognition of the assets,

Financlal liabilitles
The Company derecognises a financial liabllity when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantlally different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms Is recognised at falr value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extingulshed and the new financlal llability with
modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Einanclal assets and financial llabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and It intends elther to settle them on a net basls or o reallse the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b. Property, plant and equipment

1. Recognition and measurement
items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cast, which includes capitallsed borrowing costs, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impalrment losses, if any.
Capital work-in-progress Is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, If any.

Cast of an item of property, plant and eguipment comprises its purchase price, including import dutles and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deductlng trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributabte cost of bringing the Item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located.

Cost of replacing part of the PPE, borrowing costs where recognition criteria Is met, cost of major Inspection and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it Is located is recognised In the carrying amount of PPE Afl other repairs and malntenance are recognised In statement of Profit & Loss.

i slgnificant parts of an Item of property, plant and equlpment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Ay gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognlsed in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance sheet date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-cursent assets,

il. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure refated to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its boak value only if it Increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond it
previously assessed standard performance, All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day to day repairs and malntenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred.

iil, Depreciation

Depreciation Is calculated an costs of items of property, plant and equipment less thelr estimated resldual values over their estimated useful lives using the written down value
methad, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative perlods estimated by management are also inline with those specified in Schedule i to the
Companies Act, 2013 and are as follows:

Asset Useful life (years)
Computers 3
Network and Servers {disclosed within Computers)

Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Furniture and fixtures - Bin Boxes 2
Leasehold improvements 5
Plant and machinery 15

Depreclation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted If appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (dispesals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upta) the date on which asset Is ready for use {disposed of).




Erainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial $tatements
{All amounts in Rupees miliion, unless atherwlse stated}

3 Material accounting pollcy information {continued)
¢. Intangible assets
1. Brands

Brands acquired on business combination is initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to Initial recognition the Brands are sssessed between those having Indefinite useful lives and
those having definite useful lives. Brands with indefinite useful lives are vecognised at thelr carrying value less impairment losses. Brands with definite useful lives, are amortised over
their estimated useful lives. Amortization method and amortization period Is reviewed by the management and changes in the estimated useful life are made i the same are
expected to be used for shorter perfod than the Initial estimated period.

Ii. Customer contracts

Custamer contracts / relationships acquired on business combination is Initially recognised at fair value, Subsequent to initlal recognition the intanglble asset's amortization method
and amartization period is reviewed by the management and changes In the estimated useful life are made If the same are expected to be used far shorter period than the Initial
estimated period.

iii, Cantent writing
Intangible assets for content writing are initially recognised at cost of acquisition, Subsequent measurement is at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

iv. Other intanglble assets

Other intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intanglble assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated lmpalrment
losses.

v. Internally generated Intangible Asset

flesearch costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss In the year in which they are incurred. Platform development costs Incuired are recognised as Intangible assets, when
feasibility has been established, the Company has committed technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and it Is probable that asset will generate futura
econamlc benefits, The costs capitalised includes the salary cost of employees excluslvely working on platform development upto the date the asset Is available for use, Platform
costs Is amortised on a stralght line basls over a perlod of 4 years.

Platform development is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated Impalrmeant, if any

vi. Subsegquent expanditure
Subsequent expenditure Is capitalised only when it Increases the future economic benefits embodied In the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure 1s recognised in
profit or Joss as incurred.

v. Amortisation

Goodwiil and brand with indefinite useful lives are not amortised and are tested for impairment annualy.
Amortisation |s calculated to write off the cost of Intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the stralght-line method for contract
value and written dowr vatue method for other intangible assets Is included in amortisation and amaortisation In Statement of Profit and Loss,

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful life (years)
Computer software 1-5
Contract value 7.6
Content Writing 4
Dubai Platform 4
Brand - School : 5

Amortisation methed, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financiat year and adjusted If appropriate.
d. Inventorles

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventories is based on weighted average method, and Includes expenditure incursed ln acquiring
the inventories, and other costs incurred in bringing them to thelr present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses and discounts,
The comparisen of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

e, Impairment

I. lmpairment of financial Instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.

Lass allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, Lifetime axpected credit josses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument,

In afl cases, the maximumn period considered when estimating expected credit losses Is the maximum contractual perlod aver which the Campany Is exposed to credit risk,




Brainbees Solutions Limited [formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Nates forming part of these Standalone Financlal Statements
{All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

3 Material accounting policy information {continued}
e. Impairment {continued}
il Impairment of non-financlal assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there Is any indication of lImpairment, If
any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated, Goodwill and brand value are tested annually for impairment.

for Impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units {CGUs). ach CGU represents the smallest group of
assels that generates cash inflows that are largely Independent of the cash Inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Go'odwill arlsing from a husiness combination is altocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) Is the higher of its value in use and its falr value less costs to sell, Value In use Is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current rmarket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU {or the asset).

An Impairment loss Is recognised If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recogaised in the statement of profit
and loss, Impairment Joss recognised in respect of a CGU Is allocated first to reduce the carrylng amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basls.

An impairment loss In respect of goodwilt is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impalrment loss has been recognlsed in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there Is any Indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exlsts, An impairment loss s reversed if there has been a change In the
estlmates used to determine the recoverable amount, Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrylng amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of amortisation or amortisation, If no Impairment loss had been recognised.

f, Employee benefits
1 Short-term employee beneflts

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided, A liabillty Is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, If the Company has a present legal or constrictive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with & corresponding increase In equity, over the
perlod that the employees unconditionally become entltied to the awards, The amount recognlsed as expense Is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the refated
service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognlsed as an expense Is based on the number of awards that do meet the
related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date, For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date falr value of the share-based
payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is na true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

il. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions Into a separate entity and will have no lega or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts, The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligatians for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss In the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments Is avallable.
Iv. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-empioyment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan, The Company's net chligation in respect of defined benefit plans is catculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value
of any plan assets,

The catculation of defined benefit obligation Is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, When the calculation results in a potentlal asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic henefits avallable in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions In future contributions
to the plan (‘thé asset ceiling'}. in order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial galns and fosses, the return on plan assets {excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling {if any,
excluding interest), are recognised in OCL. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liabllity {asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit abligation at the beginning of the annual peried to the then-net defiried benefit liabllity {asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit fiabllity {asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net Interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in profit or loss.

Whan the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change In benefit that relates to past service {'past service cost’ or 'past service gain'} or the gain or
loss on curtallment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on tha settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

v, Other long term employee beneflt

The Company's liability In respect of other long-term employee benefits {compensated absences is the amount of future benefit that employees have earaed In return for their service
in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted te determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obllgations measured on the basis
of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the periad in which they arise,




Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financlal Statements
(Al amounts In Rupees milllon, unless otherwlse stated}

3 Material accounting policy information {continued)
g. Provisions {other than for employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

I, Provistons {other than for employee benefits)

A provision Is recognised If, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive abllgation that can be estimated reliably, and It is probable that an eutflow of
economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation. Provislons are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows {representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obiigation at the balance sheet date} at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the llabltity. The unwinding of the discount Is recagnised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

il. Contingent liahilities and contingent assets
A contingent liabliity exists when there 1s a possible but not probable obligation, or a present ohfigation that may, but probably wilt not, require an outflow of resources, or a present
obligation whose amount can not be estimated reliably, Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisians, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote,

A contingent asset Is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized In the Standalone Financlal Statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually
and if it is virtually certatn that an infiow of economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the perlod in which the change occurs. A contingent asset is
disclosed, where an inflow of econamic benefits Is probable,

h. Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers Is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expect to be entitled for those goods/ services.

To.recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:

- Identify the contract with a customer;

- identify the performance obligations in the contract;

- Deterrnine the transaction price;

- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

- Recognise revenues when a performance obligation Is satisfled.

i. Revenue from sale of products

Revenue towards satisfaction of performance obligation Is measured at amount of consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates,
taking Into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Goods and Service Tax {GST} Is not received by the Company in its awn account, Rather, it Is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seiler on behalf of the government,
Accordingly, it Is excluded from revenue,

The Cempany generally works on cash and carry model.

il. Loyalty points programmes

For customer loyalty programmes, the falr value of the consideration received or receivable In respect of the initial sale Is allocated between the lovalty points and the other
components of the sale. The amount allocated to foyalty points Is deferved and Is recognised as revenue when the loyalty points are redeemed and the Company has fulfilled its
obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the programme or when it is no longer probable that the award credits will be redeemed.

lil, Internet display charges

tncome from Internet display charges Is recognised on an accrual basis to the extent that It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue from such
services can be reliably measured. The performance obligation is satisfied over a time and payment is generally due withln 30 to 60 days from satisfaction of performance obligation.

iv. Service income

Service income arising from Brand & Platform {Website} License usage is recognised on an accrual basis and in accordance with the agreement. The performance obligation is satisfied
over a time and payment is generally due within 45 days from satisfaction of performance obligation.

V. Preschool revenue
Revenue from royalty and sales of student kit to franchisee schools is recognised en accrual basis during the academic year.

vl, Contract balances
The Policy for Contract balances l.e, contract assets, trade recelvables and contract liabilities is as follows:

a, Contract assets and trade recelvables

Tha Company classifles its right to consideration In exchange for deliveraliles as either a receivable or as unbllled revenue, A recelvable is a right to consideration that Is unconditional
upon passage of time., Revenues in excess of billings Is recorded as unbilled revenue and Is classifled as a financial asset where the right to conslderation is uncanditional tpon passage
of time. Unbilled revenue which Is conditional Is classified as other current asset. Trade receivables and unbilled revenue Is presented net of impairment, Refer to accounting policies
of financial assets in financlal instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement,

b. Contract liabilities

A cantract fiabllity Is the obligation to deliver services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration or part thereof (or an amount of canslderation is due} from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company deliver services to the customer, a contract flability is recognised when the payment Is made or the payment is due
{whichever Is earlier), Contract labifities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.




Brainbees Solutions Limlted {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financlal $tatements
{All amounts In Rupees millian, unless otherwise stated)

3 Material accounting policy information {tontinued)
1 Other Income
i« Recognition of Interest incame or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The "effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected {ife of the financial instrument to:
- the gross carrylng amount of the financial asset; or
- the amertised cost of the financlal lability.

In calculating interest Income and expense, the affective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset {(when the asset Is not credit-impaired} or to the amortlsed
cost of the llabillty, However, for financlal assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no Jonger credit-impalred, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis,

H. Rental income
Rental income from sub-leasing activitles is recognised on an accrual basis based on the underlying sub-lease arrangements.
] Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It Is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly In equity
ar in other comprehensive income.

i, Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recelved after considering the uncertainty, if any, refated to Income taxes. itis
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabifittes are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it Is intended to reallse the asset and settle the
liability on a net basls or simultaneously.

i, Deferred tax

Defarred tax Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recagnised in respect of carried forward tax fosses and tax credits. Deferred tax Is not recagnised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initlal recognition of assets or lahilities in a transaction that is not a business combinatlon and that affects nelther accounting nor taxable profit
of loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to Investments in subsidiaries, assoclates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporaty differences and It is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arislng on the initial recognition of goadwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It Is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable agalnst which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses Is
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available, Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it
has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there ls convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that It is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will ba realised.

peferred tax Is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability Is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and labllities are offset if there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, hut they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and fabilities will be
realised simultanaously,

k. Berrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs {including exchange differences retating to forelgn currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs) Incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantlal period of
time to get ready for thelr intended use are capitalised as past of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense In the perlod in which they are incurred.

I, Forelgn currency transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date, Non-monetary assets and
liabilitles that are measured at fair value in a forelgn currency are translated Into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost In a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange difference are
recognised in profit and foss.

m, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents In the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shart-term deposits with an orlginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of chianges,\ii Value



Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these S$tandalone Financial Statements
{All amounts In Rupees million, unless atherwise stated)

3 Materlal accounting policy information (continued)
n, Leases

‘The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifles to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses
significant Judgement In assessing the lease term {Including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both perlods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company Is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and periods covered by an optlon to terminate the lease If the Company Is reasonably certain not to exerclse that option in assessing whether the
Company Is reasonably certaln to exercise an optian to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers ali refevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exerclse the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a
change In the non-cancellable period of a lease,

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing lts right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. As per Ind AS 116, lease
commencement date is the date on which a lessor makes an underlying asset availahle for use by a lessee, The Company generally has two types of leases, one being leases for
company owned physical stores and other belng the leases for warehouses of the Company. In case of leases for company owned physical stores, the company recognizes right of use
asset on the lease commencement date, However, In case of leases for warehouses, lessor provides a rent-free period to facilitate fitting out and essentlal modifications to the assets
to make it avalfable for use by the Company. The assets cannot be used untll the modifications are completed, hence the Company recognizes right-of-use asset for warehouse leases
on completion of the initlal rent free period Le., the date on which asset Is avaltable for use.

The cost of the right of use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the Initlal measurement of kease lability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date Jess any lease Incentives received, plus any Initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be Incurred by the lessee In dlsmantling and removing the
underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it Is located. The right-of use assets subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation, accumulated
impalrment losses, If any and adjusted for any re-meastirement of the lease llability. The right of use asset Is depreciated in the straight line method from the commencement date
over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. Right-of use assets are tested for impairment where there any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized In the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the fease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate Implicit in the lease, If that rate can be readily determined. if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, For leases
with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the Incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing
rate for the portfolio as a whole, The lease payments shall Include fixed payments, varlable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exerclse price of a purchase optlon where the
Company Is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an optlon to terminate the
tease. The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect Interest on the lease llabllity, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modificatlens or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. Where the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset Is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liabitity, the Company recagnises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in statement of profit and loss.

Transitlon to ind AS 116

The Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA) notified IND AS 116, the new lease accounting standard on 30 March 2019 and came Into force with effect from 01 Aprit 2015, IND AS 116 has
replaced the guidance in IND AS 17 "Leases”. The effect of initially applying this standard Is recognised at date of initial application {i.e. O1 April 2019). ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognition measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting moded for
lessees,

The Company has applied IND AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term [eases (i.e,, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option), It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are cansidered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense an a straight-line basis over the ease term,

Where the Company Is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset Is classified as an operating lease. Assets subJect to operating leases are
incfuded in the property, plant and equipment. Rental income on an opevating lease s recognised In the Statement of Proflt and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Costs, includiag depreciation, are recognised as an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

COVID 19 - Related Rent Concessions
The amendments to Ind AS 116 provide a practical expedient to tessees In accounting for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of the COVID 19 pandemic.

Many lessors have provided rent cancessions to jessees as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic. Rent concesslons can inciude rent holidays or rent reductions for a period of time.
Applying the requirements in Ind AS 116 for changes to lease payments, particularly assessing whether the rent concesstons are lease modifications and applying the required
accounting, could be practicatly difficult In the current enviranment, The objective of the amendment Is to provide lessees that have been granted COVID 19 related rent concessions
with practical relief, while still providing useful infarmation about leases to users of the Standalone financial Statements.

{I) The change in Jease payments results in revised conslderation for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease Immediately preceding the
change,

{ii) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments orlginally due on or before June 30, 2021,

{li) There Is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Pursuant te the above amendment, the Group has applied the practical expedient with effect frem April 01, 2020, The Group has accounted the unconditional rent concessions in
“Miscellaneous Income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

o. Earning per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and toss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the welghted average number of equity and compuiserily convertible preference sharas outstanding during the year,

For the purpose o calculatlng duuted earnings per share, the net profit and loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the welighted average number of
shares outstanding during the vear are adjusted for the effects of all ditutive potential equity shares.




Brainbees Solutions Limited {(formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)
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3 Material accounting policy information {continued)

p. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors of the Company are
identifled as Chlef operating decision maker. Refer note 43 for segment informaticn.

q. Business comblination and Goodwiil

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the conslderation transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controfling Interests In the acquiree, For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests In the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets. Acqulsition-related cests are expensed as incurred,

The Company determines that it has acgulred a business when the acquired set of activitles and assets include an input and a substantive process that together significantly cantribute
to the ability to create outputs, The acqulred process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to contlaue producing outputs, and the Inputs acquired include an organised
workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experlence to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing cutputs and is considered
unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without signiflcant cest, effort, or delay In the abllity to continue producing cutputs,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the Habllities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair vatues. For this purpose, the Habllities assumed include
contingent Habilitles representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition falr values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits Is not probable. However, the following assets and liahilities acquired in a business comblnation are measured at the basis indicated below:

+ Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Beneflts respectively.

« Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance
with Ind AS 12.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financlal assets and liabliitles assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent condittons as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the buslness combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity Interest Is re-measured at its acguisition date fair value and any resulting galn or loss s recognised in
profit or loss or OCl, as appropriate,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acqulrer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classifled as an asset or liability that Is a
flnanclal instrument and within the scope of ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, Is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss In accordance with Ind AS
108, If the contingent considaratton is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the approprlate Ind AS and shall be recognised In profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reportlag dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is nitlally measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and llabilitles assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified alt of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, If there Is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the galn directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill i measurad at cost less any accumulated limpalrment Josses. For the purpose of impalrment testing, goodwill acquired in a buslness combination is,
from the acqulisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilittes of the acquiree are assigned to those units,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amaunt of the cash generatlng unit Is Jess than its carrying amount, the impalrment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrving amount of any goodwlll allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit, Any impairment Joss for goodwlll Is recognised In profit or loss. An
impalrment loss recognised for goodwlll is not reversed in subsequent periods,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill assoclated with the disposed operation is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the

disposed operation and the porticn of the cash-generating unit retained.

1. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Carporate Affalrs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

-
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Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalane Financial Statements
{All amounts n Rupees millien, unless otherwise stated)

5  Right-of-use assets {ROU}

The changes in the carrying vatue of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows;

Partleulars Buildings
Balance as on April 1, 2022 2,695.23
Additions during the year 2,300,05
Deletions during the year {122.37)
Amortisation for the vear [669.69)
Balance as on March 31, 2023 4,203.22
Balance as on April 1, 2023 4,203.22
Additions during the year 1,417.48
Deletions during the year {93.05)
Amortisation for the year (792.64)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 4,735.01
The aggregate amortlsation expenses on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 614.62 463.94
Non-current lease liabilitles 4,673.92 4,050.86
Total lease liabilitles 5,288.54 4,514.80
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 Is as follows:
Particulars For the yearended | For the vear ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 4,514,80 2,854.63
Additions during the year 1,363.61 2,185,19
interest Cost accrued during the year 509.84 398.83
Rent Concessions during the year [Refer Note 3n) . (19.69)
Deletions during the year [122,81) {150.56)
Payments made during the year [976.90) {753.60)
Closing Balance 5,288,594 4,514.80
Amounts recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortisation expanse on right-of-use assets [Refer Note 32} 792.64 669.69
Interest expense on lease liabifitles {Refer Note 31) 509.84 398.83
Expenses related to short-term leases or low value leases {included in other expenses) 67.31 56,71
Rent Concessions during the year [Refer Note 3n} - {19.69)
Galn on termination of lease contract (included In other income) {Refer Note 26) {29.76) {28,19)
Amounts recognised in the Statement of cashflows

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash outflow for leases 976.50 753.60

Notes:

When measuring lease labilities for operating [eases, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at the date of inception of the

leases, The weighted average pre tax rate applied is 10% p.a. for all the years.

For maturity analysis of lease lfabllities, refer note 46(iii).

6 ' Goodwill
Partlculars Amount

Gross Block

Balance as at April 1, 2022 3,032.47
Additions for the year .
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,032.47
Balance as at April 1, 2023 3,032.47
Additions for the year “
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,032.47

Impalrment assassment for Goodwill and Assets with Indefinite Life

Goodwilt is tested for impairment on an annual basis, For the puspose of impairment testing, goodwitl acquired In a business combination Is allocated to the Company's
Cash Generatlng Unit .{_QGU or groups of CGUs expected to benefit from the synergles arising from the business combinatlons. A CGU is the smallest Identifiable group of

assets that gen

ash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets,




6 Goodwill {continued)

Impairment assessment for Goodwill and Assets with Indeflnite Life {¢continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and intangible assets with indefinite lives are allocated to a single CGU as follows :

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Goodwill 3,032.47 3,032.47
Brand 3f4.41 344,41
Total 3,376.88 3,376.88

Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU, including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The recoverable amount of CGU
Is higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use, Value-In-use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. The
recoverable amount of goodwill s based on value-in-use,

The carrying amount was computed by atlocating the net assets to the CGU for the purpose of impairment testing.

Value-in-use is calculated using after tax assumptions, The use of after tax assumptlons does not result In a vatue-In-use that Is materially different from the value-in-use
that would result if the calculation was performed using before tax assumptions.

The average range of key assumptlons used far calculation of value In use are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Discount rate 11.58% 11,00%
Terminal growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rate is a pre-tax measure based on the rate of 10 year government bonds issued by government In the relevant market and in the same currency as the cash
flows, adjusted for risk premium to reflect both the increased risk of investing in equitles generally and the systemic risk of specified CGU.

The cash flow projection Include specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal growth rate has been determined hased on
management's astimate at which company's free cash flow are expected to grow perpetually beyond the explicit perlod, consistent with the assumptions that a market
participant would make.

The Company believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which a recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash - generating unit. Based on the above, na Impairment was identified as of March 31, 2024 and March
31, 2023 as the recoverable vaiue of the CGUs exceeded the carrying value.

{This space hos been left blank Intentionatly}
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Brainbees Solutions Limited (formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited}
Notes forming part of these Standalane Financial Statements
{All amounts in Rupees mitlion, unless otherwlise stated)

8

9 {a)

9 {b}

Non-current Investments

Aggregate amount of impalrment In value of investments

Particulars AsatMarch | Asat March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Investment in equity instruments
Unguoted - Carrled at cost
Investment in equity Instruments of subsidlaries {fully pald up)*
Firstery Management DWC LLC: 30,00,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 21,50,00,000) equity shares of face value of AED 1 per share, 6,551.07 4,549,89
Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd: Reglstered Capital Contribution of LISD 2,00,000 {March 31, 2023: USD 2,00,000) 14,21 14,21
Intellibees Solutions Private Limited: 9,399 {March 31, 2023 9,999) equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share 0.10 0.10:
Joybees Private Limited: 9,999 {March 31, 2023: 9,959) equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share 0.10 0.10
Swara Baby Products Private Limited : 92,56,500 {March 31,2023 6,14,130) equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share 2,674,56 32.49
Firmroots Private Limited: 22,752 {March 31, 2023: 22,752} equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share 33.20 33,20
Solis Hygiene Private Limited: 52,890 {March 31, 2023: 52,820) Series A equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share 373.35 373.35
Globatbees Brands Private Limited 75,259 {March 31, 2023; 75,259) Equity shares of INR 5 each and 7,806 {March 31, 2022: 7,906) Series 6,202,22 6,202.22
C Equity Shares of INR 5 each
Digital Age Retall Private Limited 10,49,979 (March 31, 2023: 10,49,979} Equity shares of INR 10 each** 2,589.34 2,539.84
lnvestment in preference shares
Unguoted - Carrled at cost
Investment In preference shares of subsidiaries {fully paid up)
Swara Baby Products Private Limited: 1,28,48,221 (March 31, 2023: 1,28,48,221) Series A Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares of 873.68 873.68
face value of INR 10 per share,
Firmroots Private Limited: 715 {March 31, 2023: 715) Seed C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face value of INR 10 per share 105.42 105.42
and 1,00,00,000 {March 31, 2023: 1,00,00,000) Series A Compulsorily Canvertible Preference Shares of face value of INR 10 per share,
Investrent In trusts - Carried at cost
Edubees Educational Trust Corpus fund contribution 0.01 0.01

Total 15,417.26 14,724,51
Aggregate book value of quoted Investments - -
Aggregate market vafue of quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 19,417.26 14,724.51

¥ fnvestments in subsidiaries also ncludes cost of ESOP contribution for optlons granted to employees of subsidiaries and its step down subsidiaries as per Company's

ESOP plan,

** The Company entered Into a Share subscription & Purchase Agreement dated May 02, 2022 to acqulre controlfing stake in Digital Age Retall Private Limited("the

Acquiree Company”), through acquisition of Equity Shares far consideration amounting to INR 2,406.25 millien.

Other non-current financial assets

Particulars As at March | As at March
31, 2024 31,2023
Unsecured, constdered good
Security deposits 315.94 273.46
Bank deposits {maturity more than 12 months) 0.88 182.63
Total 316.82 456.09
Other current financial assets
As at March | Asat March
Particulars 31, 2024 31, 2023
Unsecured, consldered good
Security deposits 7.45 "
Interest accrued on financial assets 38,52 -
Custom duty recelvable 0.66 2,78
Other Recelvables 645.07 47.46
Total 691,70 50.24




Brainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financlal Statements
{All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

10 Deferred tax assets {net}

The break-up of deferred tax tabliity and deferred tax assets Is as under:

particulars As at March | Asat March
31, 2024 31,2023
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 485,11 50127
Emplayees’ benefits 54.02 42,72
Right of Use Assets and Lease Llabilities 186.39 120.22
Carry forward losses 835,71 £84.85
Total 1,561.23 1,349.06
11  Income Tax Assets (net)
AsatMarch | Asat March
Particul
articuars 31, 2024 31,2023
Income Tax Assets (net} 201.35 167.54
Total 201.35 167,54

12{a) Other non current assets

Particulars As at March | As at March

31, 2024 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 20.68 26.88
Balance with Government autharities
GST recelvable 420,12 546,77
Amount paid under protest 9.44 10.98
Total 450,24 584.63

12(b} Other current assets

Particulars As at March | Asat March

31,2024 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good

Advance to employees ) 14,10 8.17
Prepaid expenses 17.79 18.29

Balance with Government authorities
GST receivable 103.83 73.08
Advance ta suppliers 125.89 212,11
Receivables from vendors 83.02 138.44
Tatal 344.63 450,09

13 Inventories

Particulars As at March | As at March

31, 2024 31,2023
Traded goods * 4,809.48 4,321.43
Total 4,809,498 4,321.43

*The write down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to INR 2.05 million (March 31, 2023 : INR 3.38 million}. Above Inventories Includes goods-In-transit
amounting to INR 368,14 million {March 31, 2023: INR 194,34 milfion)

14 Trade receivables

As atMarch | AsatMarch

Part "
articulars 31, 2024 31, 2023

Considered good — Secured - -
Considered good — Unsecured 234.75 519.40
Considered good — receivable from related parties [Refer note 40) 6,520,98 4,156,52
Trade Recelvables which have significant increase In credit risk - -
Trade Receivables — credit impalred - -
Total 5,755,73 4,675,952




Srainbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Lirnited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
{AH amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

15

16

17

Trade recelvables agelng schedule as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbitled NotDue | lessthané |6months—1| 1-Zyears 2-3years | Morethan3 Total
Revenue months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 269,82 280.82 6,160.00 7.37 25.68 7.78 4.26 6,755.73
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - " - - - - -
significant increase In credit risk
Undisputed Trade Recelvables — credit - . R R - - R -
impaired
Disputed Trade Recelvables—- considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - . . -
significant Increase In credit risk
Disputed Trade Recelvables — credit impalred
Trade recelvables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Lessthané | 6 months—1} 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Revenue months yenr years
Undisputed Trade recelvables — considered 79,14 3,451.64 1,002,24 41.66 6.67 457 - 4,675.92
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - R - R . - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit - - N - - - - -
impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good
Disputed Trade Recelvables — which have - - . - . - . R
signlficant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impalred
Cash and cash equivalents
AsatMarch { AsatMarch
Particulars
31, 2024 31,2023
Cash in hand 0.44 0.33
Balances with banks
In current accounts 100,36 337,55
1n deposit accounts having original maturity less than 3 months 562.24 780.00
Total 663.04 1,117.88
8ank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
As at March | Asat March
ticul
particulars 31,2024 31, 2023
Deposits with banks with orlginal maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months 1,609.25 7,009.44
Total 1,609.25 7,008.44
Leans
Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2024 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Subsidiaries {Refer Note 40}* 4,633.41 451,81
Loan to KMP {Refer Note 40}* 84.06 76.68
Loan to employees 268.71 245.89
Total 4,986,18 774.38

*There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and thelr related parties, either severally or Jointly with any other person,

that are:
{a} repayahle on demand; or
() without specifying any terms or perlod of repayment

Howaver, out of the loans made to subsidiaries, loans amounting te INR 950.00 million as on March 31, 2024, and INR 400.00 million as on March 31, 2023 are repayable

on demand,




Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnheas Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
{All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

18 Equity share capital

partleulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of INR 2 each 55,24,55,000 1,104.91 45,24,55,0600 a04.91
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares
Equity shares of INR 2 each 44,81,65,900 896,32 43,32,65,195 866.52
Total 44,81,65,900 896,32 43,32/65,195 866.52
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Nos Amount Nos Amount

A, Equity Shares
At the commencernent of the year 43,32,65,195 866,52 9,99,71,547 459.85

|shares issued during the year on account of exercise of stock aptions - - 1,27,644 0.64
Shares Issued to Bralnbees ESOP Trust 1,49,00,705 25,80 - -
Increase in shares on account of sub-diviston* - - 15,01,48,787 v
Reclassifled from Series A Equity Shares and Series E Equity Shares - - 18,30,17,218 366.03
At the end of the year 44,81,65,900 896,32 43,32,65,195 866.52
B. Series A Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year - " 40,232 0.20
Increase in shares on account of sub-division* - - 60,348 -
Reclassified as Equity Shares . - {1,00,580) {0.20)
At the end of the year - - . -
C, Serles E Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year - - 7,31,66,655 365.83
increase in shares on account of sub-division® " - 10,97,49,983 -
Reclassified as Equity Shares - - (18,29,16,638) (365.83)
At the end of the year - - - N
Total issued, subscribed and patd up share capital 44,81,65,900 896.321  43,32,65,195 866,52

* The Shareholders of the Company, at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on Apsil 25, 2022 have appraved the subdivision of its existing authorised, issued, subseribed and

pald-up share capltal of face value of INR 5 each to face value of INR 2 each with effect from April 25, 2022,

Investor shares shall Include the following:

Serles A Equity shares

Equity shares Issued under the Business Transfer Agreement
Equity shares held by investors

Serles E Equity Shares

N

Rights, preferences and restrlctions attached to Equity Shares, Serles A Equity Shares and Serles E Equity Shares

Equlty Shares and Series A Equity Shares

‘The Company has equity shares having a face value of INR 2 per share (face value of INR 5 each prior to April 25, 2022). Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company shall not declare dividend in respect of the Equity Shares or any other class of shares in excess of the dividend permissible to be pald to the non-resident

holders of the Investor Shares.

Series E Equity Shares

The Company has Issued Series E equity shares during the year ended March 31, 2019, having a face value of INR 2 per share {face value of INR 5 each prior to Aprl 25, 2022).
Each Series E Equity Share shall have one vate and carry voting rights on the basis of, and to the extent of, the amounts paid-up on each Series E Equity share. The holders of the
the other Security Holders but simuftaneously with the holders of

Series £ Equity Shares shall be entitled to participate in the distribution of the profits of the Company prior to
Series A CCPS, Serles B CCPS, Serles C CCPS, Sertes C1 CCPS, Series C2 CCPS, Serles D1 CCPS, Sertes D2 CCPS, in propor

the Series E Equity Shares shall be entitled to receive any non-cash dividend by way of deemed bonus declared by the Beard.

Employee stock options/ share purchase plan

Terms attached to stock optlons granted/ share purchase plan to employees are described in Note
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference

Convertible preference shares.

Particutars of shareholders holding mora than 5% shares of a class of shares**

44 regarding share based payments.
Shares, please refer nate 19 related to terms of conversion of Compulsorily

tion to their holding of Series E Equlty Shares. The holders of

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Nos Amount Nos Amount
‘|&qulty shares
SVF Frog {Cayman) Umited 13,83,08,813 31.92%| 13,83,08,813 31.92%
Mahindra Retall Limited* 4,11,16,885 9.49% 4,11,16,885 9.49%
Mr. Supam Maheshwart 3,82,36,597 8.83% 3,82,36,597 8.83%
Brainbees ESOP Trust 2,59,05,635 5.08% 2,59,05,635 5.98%
Pt Cpportunlties Fund — 1 2,13,49,265 4.93% 2.13,49,265 4.93%
TPG Growth V SF Markets Pte Ltd, 1,87,52,718 4.56% 1,97,52,718 4,56%
NewQuest Asia Investments HI Limited 1,85,76,620 4,29% 1,85,76,620 4,29%
Apricot Investments Limited 1,68,21,867 3.88% 1,68,21,867 3.88%
Bralnbees Employees Welfare Trust 1,31,36,590 3.03% 1,31,36,590 3.03%
Pl Opportunities Fund — 1 Scheme li 2,64,57,268 6.11% 2,64,57,268 6.11%
MextGen Management Services 2,24,82,090 5.19% 2,24,82,090 5.19%

*ahindra Retall Limited (formerly Mahindra Retall Private Limited) has amalgamated with Mahindra & Mahindra Limited pursuant to a

Natlonal Company Law Tribunal 'NCLT)
** Series A Equity §

$and Sefiés_E'thI;v Shares are classified as Equity Shares, hence there are no shareholders

holding these categorles of shares.

1 order dated April 29, 2022 passed by




Sralnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Litnited}
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financlal Statements
{All amounts in Rupees mlliion, unless otherwlse stated)

18  Equity share capltal {cantinued)

Particulars of Shareholding of promoters
As of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company does not have an identifiable promoter in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly disclosures
related to promoter shareholding is not given. The Company is a professionally managed Company.

Equity shares movement during 5 years preceding March 31, 2024

There were no equity shares Issued as bonus or without consideration during last 5 years as on March 31, 2024
The Company bought back 1,309,860 equity shares for an aggregate amount of INR 207.57 milllon at INR 234,81 per equity share., The equity shares bought back
were extinguished on October 15, 2020 .

19  Equity Compenent of Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount

Authorised
Serles A CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares} of INR 2 each 1,55,000 031 1,55,000 0,31
Serles B CCPS (Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 8,66,165 173 8,66,165 1.73
Series C CCPS (Compulsotily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 2,18,56,650 43,71 2,18,56,650 43,71
Series C1 CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 4,38,100 0.88 4,38,100 (.88
Serjes €2 CCPS [Computsorlly Convertible Preference Shares] of INR 2 each 77,500 0,16 77,800 0.16
Series D1 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 1,22,17,950 24.44 1,22,17,950 24,44
Serles D2 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares} of INR 2 each 1,41,97,750 28.40 1,41,97,750 28.40
Option & CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares} of INR 2 each 30,500 0.06 30,500 0.06
Option 2 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 70,000 0.14 70,000 0.14
Equity Component of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
series A CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 72,315 0.14 72,315 0.14
Series B CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 36,755 0.07 36,755 0.07
Series C CCPS {Compulsorlly Canvertible Preference Shares) of iNR 2 each 1,75,00,500 35.00 1,7%,00,900 35,00
Serjes C1 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 4,138,100 0.88 4,38,100 0.B8
Series €2 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertlbte Preference Shares) of INR 2 each 77,900 0.16 77,900 0,16
Series D1 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertibe Preference Shares) of iNR 2 each 1,22,17,950 24.44 1,22,17,950 24.44
Serles D2 CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares) of INR 2 each A48,39,650 9.68 48,39,650 9.68

Total 3,51,83,570 70,37 3,51,83,570 70,37
Reconclliatlon of shares outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount

Instruments entirely equity In nature
Series A CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 72,315 0.14 28,926 0.14
Increase in shares on account of sub-division* - - 43,389 .
At the end of the year 72,315 0.14 72,315 0,14
Series B CCP$ {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 26,755 0.07 14,702 0.07
increase in shares on account of sub-division* - - 22,053 -
At the end of the year 36,755 0.07 36,755 0.07
Series C CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 1,75,00,900 35,00 70,00,360 35.00
Incraase In shares on account of sub-division® - - 1,05,00,540 -
At the end of the year 1,75,00,900 35.00 1,75,00,900 35.00
Series C1 CCPS (Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the comrencement of the year 4,38,100 0.88 1,75,240 0.88
Increase In shares on account of sub-division® - - 2,62,860 -
At the end of the year 4,38,100 0.88 4,38,100 0.88
Serles C2 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 77,900 0,16 31,160 0.16
Increase in shares on account of sub-division* - - 46,740 -
At the end of the year 77,900 0.16 77,960 0.16
$eries D1 CCPS {Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 1,22,17,950 24.44 48,87,180 24,44
increase In shares on account of sub-division® - - 73,30,770 -
At the end of the year 1,22,17,950 24.44 1,22,17,950 24.44
serles D2 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)
At the commencement of the year 48,39,650 9,68 19,35,860 9.68
Increase in shares on account of sub-division* B - 29,03,790 -
At the end of the year 48,39,650 9.68 48,39,650 9.68

Total 3,51,83,570 70.37 3,51,83,570 70,37

he Sharehalders of the Company, at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on April 25, 2022 have approved the subdivision of its existing authorised, issued,
scribed and pald-up share capital of face value of INR 5 each to face value of INR 2 each with effect from Aptil 25, 2022,
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19 Equity Component of Campulserlly Convertible Preference Shares {continued)

Investor shares shall include the following:
1 Series A CCPS
2 Serles B CCPS
3 Series CCCPS
4 Series C1CCPS
5 Serles C2 CCPS
6 Serles 21 CCPS
7 Serles D2 CCPS

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Serles A, Series B, serles €, Serles €1, Serles €2, Series D1 & D2 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares and
Optlon 1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Serles A and Series B CCPS

The Company has lssued Series A and Serles B CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) having a face value of INR 2 per share, Each sharehclder of
Serles A CCPS and Series B CCPS shall be entitled to vote on Series A CCPS and Series B CCPS respectively held by them (as a single class and on a converted basis
and not as a separate class) except as specifically provided. The heolders of Series A CCPS shall be entitled to payment of 0.001% cumulative coupon par annum on
each Series A CCPS by way of dividends from the Company in accordance with applicable Laws and when the Board declares any dividend. The dividend would be
cumulative and would be paid prior to payment of any dividend with respect to Equity Shares and Series A Equity Shares. The holders of the Series A CCPS and
Series B CCPS shatl have the right to convert all or any portion of the Series A CCPS and Serles B CCPS held by them at any time at the then applicable Series A CCPS
and Series B CCPS conversion ratio ranging of 111 into Equity Shares of the Company, prior to expiry of 19 years from the aflotment of shares.

Series C, Serles C1 and Serles C2 CCPS

The Company has issued Serles €, Series C1 and Serles €2 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertlble Preference Shares) having a face value of IR 2 per share, Each
shareholder of Series €, Serles C1 and Serles €2 CCPS shall be entitled to vote on Serjes C, Series C1 and Series C2 CCPS respectively held by them (as a single class
and on a converted basis and not as a separate class) except as specifically provided. The holders of Series C, Serles C1 and Serles C2 CCP3 shall be entitled to
payment of higher of 0,001% curnutative coupon per annum on the Face value of each of Series C, Series C1 and Series C2 CCPS or the amount receivable by them
in the dividend declared based on thelr shareholding in the Company on an as Is converted basis, as and when the Board declares any dividend. The dividends
would be cumulative and would be pald prior to payment of any dividend with respect to Equity Shares {save the Series A Equity Shares as set out herein). The
holders of the Series €, Serles C1 and Series C2 CCPS shall have the right te convert all or any portion of the Serles C, Series C1 and Serles C2 CCPS held by them at
any time at the then applicable Series C, Series C1 and Serles C2 CCPS conversion ratio of 1:1 Into Equity Shares, prior to expiry of 19 years from the allotment of
shares,

Series D1 and Series D2 CCPS

The Company has Series D1 and Series D2 CCPS (Compusorily Convertible Preference Shares) having a face value of INR 2 per share. Each shareholder of Serles D1
and Series D2 CCPS shall be entitied to vote on Series D1 and Serles D2 CCPS respectively held by them (as a single class and on a converted basis and not as a
separate class) except as specifically provided. The holders of Serles D1 and Series D2 CCPS shall be entitled to payment of higher of 0.001% cumulative coupon per
annum on the Face value of each of Serles D1 and Series D2 CCPS or the amount recelvabte by them in the dividend declared based on their shareholding in the
Company on an as is converted basis, as and when the Board declares any dividend, The dividends would be cumulative and would be pald prior to payment of any
dividend with respect to Equity Shares (save the Series A Equity Shares as set out herein). The holders of Sertes D1 and Serles D2 CCPS shall have the right to
convert all or any portion of the Series D1 and Series D2 CCPS held by them at any time at the then applicabte Series D1 and Series D2 CCPS conversion ratio of 1:1
into Equity Shares, prior to expiry of 19 years from the allotment of shares.

Particutars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount

Series A CCPS (Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares)

Pl Opportunities Fund —1 72,315 100,00% 72,315 100.00%
Series B CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)

Pl Opportunities Fund - 1 36,755 100.00% 36,755 100.00%
Serles C CCPS [Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)

Valiant Mauritius Partners FOI Limited 1,07,38,987 61.36% 1,07,38,987 61,36%
TPG Growth V SF Markets Pte Ltd, 42,789,925 24.46% 42,79,925 24.46%
Pl Opportunities Fund ~ 1 18,16,383 10.38% 18,16,383 10.38%
Serles C1 CCPS [Compulsarlly Convertible Preference Shares)

Pl Opportunities Fund ~ £ 4,38,100 100.00% 4,38,100 100.00%
Series C2 CCPS (Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)

Ratan N Tata 77,900 100.00% 77,500 100.00%
Series D1 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)

Mzhindra Engineering and Chemical Products Limited* 1,22,17,950 100.00% 1,22,17,950 100.00%
Series D2 CCPS {Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares)

Valiant Mauritius Partners FDI Limited 38,47,105 79.49% 38,47,105 79.45%
Pratithi Investment Trust 3,38,200 6,99% 3,38,200 6.95%
*Mahindra Engineering and Chemical Products Limited has amalgamated with Mahindra & Mahindra Limited pursuant to_an order dated April 29, 2022 passed by

Mational Company Law Tribunal {'NCLT')
Equity shares movement during 5 years preceding March 31, 2024

‘There were no Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Issued as bonus or without consideration during last 5 years as an March 31, 2024, Also there were no
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares which were bought back or extinguished during fast 5 years as on March 31, 2023,
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20

21{a)

21{b)

Gther Equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Securities premium 32,434.01 28,832.21
Capital redemption reserve 6.59 6,52
Shares options outstanding account 6,067.28 4,375.78
Retained earnings 2,672.79 3,294.88
Total 41,180,67 36,509.46
{F) Securities prermium
Partculars A5 at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance 28,832.21 28,826.95
Premium on exercise of Stock options - 0.47
Premiurm on Issue of shares to Brainbees ESOP Trust 3,601.80 -
Transfer from shares option outstanding account on account of exercise of Stock Options - 4,79
Total 32,434.01 28,832,21
{1t} Capital redemption reserve
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance 6.59 6.59
Total 6,59 5,59
{iii} Shares options outstanding account
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance 4,375.78 958.45
Share based payment expense* 1,691.50 3,422,12
Transfer to Securities Premium on account of exercise of Stock Options - {4.79)
Total 6,067,28 4,375.78

e —————
* Includes cost of options granted to employees of wholly owned subsidlarles, which is incfuded In the investments In Note B, amounting to INR 96.57 million {31 March 2023:

190,11 million}

{iv} Retalned earnings

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance 3,294.88 4,846.16
Loss for the year (621.94) {1,563,91)
Remeasurement of post emptoyment benefit abligations {0.15} 12.62
Closing Balance 2,672.79 3,294.88

Securities premlum

Securities premium is used to record the premium recelved on issue of shares. It is utilised In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital redemption reserve

The Companles Act, 2013 (the "Companies Act") requires that where a company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premiumn account, a sum equal to
the pominal value of the shares so purchased shall be transferred to a capltal redemption reserve account and detalls of such transfer shall be disclosed In the balance sheet.
The capita redemption reserve account may be applied by the company, In paying up unissued shares of the company to be issued to sharehelders of the company as fully paid

bonus shares.

Shares options outstanding account

The Share Options Outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the Brainbees Employee Stack Option Plan 2011,

2022 and 2023 Plan,

Retained earnings
Retalned earnings are the profits that the Company has earned tilt date.

Other Non-current Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Security deposits 2,73 2.73
Total 2.73 273
Other Current Financial Labillties
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Accrued employee Habilities 67.85 63.71
Pavyables for property, plant and equipment 43.52 295,90
Deferred Consideration - 5,93
Cther Payable 1.09 1.30
Total 112,46 366.84
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22(a} Non-current provislons

23

24

25

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provislon for compensated absences 50.06 41.54
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 39) 118.07 91,78
Total 168.13 133.32
22{b} Current provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Provislon for employee benefits
Proviston for compensated absences 19.41 16,19
Pravision for gratuity (Refer note 39) 27.08 20.20
Total 46,49 36,39
Trade payahles
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 38) 3117.98 37.32
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than milcre and small enterprises 2,814,61 2,275.44
Total 3,132,59 2,312.76
Note :
1.Payables to related party included in above trade payables. For detalls refer Note 40,
Trade payables apelng schedule as at March 31, 2024
Particulars Unbliled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 yrs, 2-3yrs, More than 3 years Total
Dues
MSME 199.84 - 103.94 10.68 2.50 1.02 317.98
Cthers 2,036.71 439,55 319.55 - 593 12,86 2,814.61
Disputed dues- MSME - . - - - - -
Disputed dues- Others - - - - - - -
Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Particulary Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2yrs. 2-3 yrs, More than 3 years Total
Dues
MSME “ 24,50 12,42 0.03 0.37 0.00 37.32
Others 895.18 953.74 388.87 25,21 1.54 4.90 2,275.44
Disputed dues- MSME - . - - - . -
Disputed dues- Others - - - - - - -
Other current Habtlities
Partlculars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Statutory Dues
GST / Sales tax Payable 19,52 5.56
TDS payahie 50.63 15,77
PF, PT Payable 25.81 13.33
Advance from customers 434.87 371,73
Others 50,02 -
Total 580.85 406.39
e — e
Revenue from operations
1
Particulars For the year ended ] For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of products
Sale of baby and kids products 20,460.37 24,474.84
Total (A) 20,460,37 24,474.84
Other operating revenue
Internet display charges 655,21 596,48
Other Operating Revenue 516.52 347.60
Total {B) 1,171.73 944,08
Revenue from aperations (A+B) 21,632,10 25,418.92
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25 Revenue from operations {continued}

Recancliiation of revenue from cantract with customer

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 3%, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract Price 21,526.49 27,050.47
Loyalty Points {0.59) (0.71)
Discounts, Rebates, etc, 106.60 {1,630,84
Revenue from operations for the year ended 21,632.10 2541892
Refer accounting policy 3(h} for satisfaction of performance chligation and when the revenue Is recognised,
Contract balances
" The followlng table provides informatlon about recelvables, cantract assets and contract fiabilities from customers
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract assets
Trade Receivables 6,755.73 4,675.92
Contract liabilitles
Advance from customers 434.87 371,73
Maoverment In contract liabilities during the year:
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 371,73 463,06
Revenue recognised that was Included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year {37L.73) {463.06)
Advance received duting the year 434,87 371,73
Balance as at end of the year 434.87 371.73

Refer note 43 for Segment reporting,

The Company does not have any remalning performance ohligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter duratlon. There are

services wherein, performance obllgation Is unsatisfied to which transaction price has been allocated,

26 OtherIncome

no contracts for sale of

partlculars For the year ended For the year ended
@ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income ;
On fixed deposits with banks 279.19 452,32
On others 115,37 45.77
Lease rentals 496,28 327.38
Miscellaneous income 141.64 161.80
Total 1,032.48 987.27
27 Purchases of stock-In-trade
Particular For the year ended For the year ended
ars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases of stock-In-trade 14,570.92 14,193,59
Total 14,570.92 14,193,59
e
28 Changes In inventories of Stock-in-Trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
vt March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cpening stock of Stack-In-trade 4,321.43 7,698,710
Closing stock of Stock-in-trade 4,809.48 4,321.43
Total 488.05 {3,375.27)]
29 Employee benefits expense
particular For the year ended For the year ended
s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|5ataries, wages, bonus and other allowances 2,172,92 1,906.23
Contributions to provident and other funds B84.98 72.97
Statf welfare expenses 28,76 33.34
Total 2,286.66 2,012,54
30 Employee share based payment expense
particulars Fat the year ended For the year ended
! March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Employee share based payment expense {Refer Note 44) 1,563.44 3,232.01
Total 1,563.44 3,232.01
31 Finance costs
Particulars For the year endad For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|Interest expense en lease liabiities (Refer Note 5) 509.84 398.83
|Other borrowing costs 8,07 1.66
Total 518,91 400,49




Bratnbees Solutions Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)

Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements

{All amounts in Rupees million, unless otherwlse stated)

32 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particul For the year ended  {For the year ended
articdtare March 31, 2024 |March 33, 2023
Pepreciation on property, plant and equipment 670,67 589.48
Amortisation of right of use assets 752.64 569.69
Amortisation of intangible assets 36.88 3312
Total 1,500.19 1,292,259
e
33 Other expenses
partleul For the year ended For the year ended
ars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Subcontractor expenses 270,67 250.50
Packing expenses 91.00 93.45
Courler expenses 408.56 468,07
Power and fuel 120,32 92.30
Rent 67.31 56,71
Repairs and maintenance - others 55.12 44,13
Insurance 18.59 21,24
Rates and taxes 16.48 9.83
Travelling and conveyance 151.86 135,27
Legal and professional expenses 591,63 80.41
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 1,837.66 2,030.51
Telephone and internet charges 235,94 238,07
{Printing and stationary 517 5.38
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i} below) 2.00 3.65
Corporate Social Responsibllity Expenditure 0.87 1.21
Miscellaneous expenses 173.49 138.28
Total 3,546.57 3,709.01
(i} Payments to auditors
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As auditor
Statutory audit 1.90 1.90
Tax audit .10 0.10
Other Audit Services 24,19 1.65
Less - Amount transferred to other receivables - other current financial assets (24.19) -
Total 2.00 3.65
34 Income tax
A Amounts recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
beferred tax income 212,12 245.10
' Total 212.12 245,10
B Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loss before tax (834.06} {1,809.01)
Tax using the Corapany's domestic tax rate @25.17% {209.92) (455.29)
Prior year adjustment - 208.73
Disallowance under section 37 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - 0.40
Others 2,20} 1.06
Total {212,12) {245.10}

35 Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity halders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the welghted average number of equity shares that would be Issued an cenversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

The following reflects the loss and equity share data used in the basic and diluted £PS computations:

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loss attributable to equity shareholders (A) (621.94) {1,563.91)
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of Basic EPS {B) 47,23,57,147 45,84,40,022
|Basic EPS (A/B) 11.32) {3.34)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 47,23,57,147 46,84,40,022
Weighted average number of potenttal equity shares* { C) 31,65,360 33,21,612
| Weighted average number of equity shares for calcutation of Diluted £PS{D = B4C) 47,55,22,507 47,17,61,634
Dliuted EPS (A/B} (1.32) (3.34}

tg"r)t:ia! equity shares have not been considered in the calculation of diluted Yoss per share for the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023, since these
wolld décrease the Joss per share, hence considered "antl-dilutive”,
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36
I

37

a8

Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) For the assessment year 2015-16, the Company has received tax demand against penalty notice under sectlon 271{1){(c) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of INR 40,92 million. The
Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner of income Tax against the penalty demand passed by Assessing Officer by paying an amount of INR 8,18 millien as protest money.

b} For the assessment year 2016-17, the Assessing Officer has made the addition of INR 42,71 million and had reduced the brought forward losses, however, even after such addition
there Is no tax Hability. The Company has filed appeals agalnst such additions made te Commissloner of Income Tax [Appeals),

¢} For the assessment year 2016-17, the Company has received a penalty notice under Section 274 w.r.s 271C. ‘Fhe Company does not anticipate any financial liability as the
proceedings Ufs 201 which was filad with CIT{A} has been allowed in favour of the Company.

d) For the assessment year 2016-17, re-assessment proceedings In relation to above same transaction {i.e. point {c} above) was initiated by the Income Tax department under
section 148. The Faceless Assessing Officer has passed the order under section 347 yead with section 1448 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 {"the Act’) for AY 2016-17 by disallowing INR
96,98 million Le. the payment made to Facebook Ireland under section 40{a){i) of the Act, The Company has filed appeals agalnst such acditlons made to Commissloner of Income
Tax (Appeals}.:

&) For the assessment year 2017-18, the Assessing Officer has made the addition of INR 82.01 million and had reduced the brought forward losses, however, even after such addition
there is no tax lability. The Company has filed appeals agalnst such additions made to Commissioner of income Tax (Appeals).

f] For the assessment year 2017-18, the Company has received a penalty notice under Section 274 w.r.s 271C. The Campany has submitted to the Department that since the above
case is filed with CIT {A) and is still ongoing, the proceedings for penalty shall be kept on abeyance until conclusion of the sald case.

a) For FY 2017-18, the Company has recelved Goods & Services tax demand of INR 5.03 million from Maharashtra State G5T authorities, The sald demand Is Inclusive of interest of

. INR 2.45 rnillion. Against this tax demand, the Company has pald amount of INR 0.26 milfion as protest money and has filed an appeal to Deputy Commissloner of State Tax,

b} For FY 2017-18, the Company has recelved Goods & Services tax demand of INR 2.03 million from Dethi State GST authorities. The said demand is inclusive of Interest of INR 1.06
million, Against this tax demand, the Company has filled an appeal with GST appelfate authority and pald protest maney of INR 0.1 mililon .

¢} For FY 2017-18, the Company has recelved Goods & Services tax demand of INR 19.99 million from Karnataka State GST authorities. The said demand is inclusive of interest of INR
11.00 miflion, Against this tax demand, the Company has filled an appeal with GST appellate authority and pald protest money of INR 0.9 million .

The Company has received a dernand notice from Custom Commissionerate, Chennal on April 7, 2021 for an amount of INR 0.53 million towards duty for re-classification of Breast
Pump under a different HSN code. The Company has responded ta the demand notice on May 11, 2021 taking a position of no further tax payable by the Company.

Capital Commitments

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
W23

Capltal Commitments

13.28

84.03

Dues to micre and small enterprises

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {‘MSMED Act’}. The disclosures pursuant to the sald

MSMED Act are as follows:

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

a} Principal amount payable to suppliers as at year end 317,98 37.32
b) interest due thereon as at year end * 0.00 0.00
¢} Interest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursurant to provistons of MSMED Act actually paid during the perlod, Irrespective of;

the period to which interest relates 0.00
d) Amount of delayed payments actually made to suppliers during the year 1,414.17 126,07
e} Amount of interest due and payable for the perlod of delay In making payment {which has been pald but beyond the appolnted day

during the year} but without adding interest specified under the MSMED Act * 13,78 0.08
£} Interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of the year® 13,78 0.98
g) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding yeass, untll such date when the interest dues as above

are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disaliowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006 * 18.83 5.05

* Ahove interest amounts have not been provided in the books

The Company has complled this informatien based on intlmations received from the suppliers of their status as Micro or Small Enterprises and/ or its registration with the

appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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33 Employee Benefit Plans

a)

.b)

A

B,

Llabllities relating to employee benefits

Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2024 31 2023
Gratuity 145.15 111.88
Non-current 118.07 91.78
Current 27.08 20.20

For details about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 29.

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plan in form of pravident fund, ESIC and others. Contributions are made to the fund for employees at the rates
specified by regulations. For provident fund, contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obllgation of the
company s limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation, The expense recognised during the year towards
defined contribution plan |s INR 84.98 milllon {March 31, 2023 INR 72,97 million).

Pefined benefit plans

The Company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plans.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least
five years of cantinuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, hased
on the rate of wages Jast drawn by the employee concerned.

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as investment risk, Interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds,

Interest risk - A decrease In the bond Interest rate will Increase the plan liability;

Longevity 7lsk - The present value of the defined benefit plan llability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An Increase tn the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's Habllity.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liabllity Is calcutated by reference to the future salarles of plan participants, As such, an increase In the
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Funding

Company’s defined benefit plan Is unfunded.

Reconclliation of the net defined bhenefit Hability

a) Reconcillatlon of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As atMarch | AsatMarch

31, 2024 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 111,58 94,67
Benefits pald (3.42) {2.58)
Current service cost 28,79 36.30
Interest cost 8,05 5.54
Transfer in / Qut {0.05} {5.08)
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in financlal assumptions 0.56 {5.51)
- experience adjustments {0.76) [11.36)
|Balance at the end of the year 145.15 111.98

b} Amounts to be recognised in Balance Sheet

As at March | As at March

Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Present value of obligation at the end of year [145,15) {111.98)
Falr vaiue of the ptan assets at the ead of year - -
Net liability recognised in Balance Sheet (145.15) {111.58)
Current liability (27.08) (20.20)
Non-current lability {118.07) (91,78}
Net ilabtlity recognised in Balance Sheet (145.15) {111.98)

¢) Expenses to be recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss

As atMarch | AsatMarch
Parttculars

31, 2024 31, 2023
Service cost 28,79 36.30
Net interest expense 8.05 5.54
Transfer out {0.05) {5.08)
Expense to be recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss 36,79 36.76

d} Actuarial gains/{tosses) recognised In Other Comprehensive ncome

Particulars As at March | As at March

31,2024 31.2023
... | Remeasurement for the year - obligation {Gain) / Loss . {0.20) (16.87)
“* |Remeasurement for the year - plan asset (Gain) / Loss 0.00 0.00

Total Remeasurements Credit / {Cost} for the year recognlsed in OCI 0.20 16.87
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39 Employee Benefit Plans {Continued)

C. Defined benefit obligation
I, Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptlons at the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.20% 7.30%
Future salary growth 15% for the 1st year and B% 15% for the 1st year and B%
thereafter thereafter
Attrition rate 25.00% 25.00%

Mortality rates have been consldered in accordance with the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) uitimate (IALM ult}.

i, Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 139.73 150,99 107,75 116,54
Future salary growth (1% movement} 148,91 141.53 114.94 109.13
Attrition rate (1% movement} 144.65 145.67 111.57 11239

Although the analysis daes not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of

the assumpticns shown. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity a

The welghted average duratlon of the defined benefit obligation ranged between 5,54 years {March 31, 2023; 5.62 years},

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations !

nalysis from prior periods.

particulars AsatMarch | AsatMarch
31,2024 31, 2023
Less than 1 year 27.08 20,20
Between 1-5 years 115.59 B9.52
Over 5 years 134.84 113,32

¢y Compensated Absences

The Cornpany has recognised expense towards cormpensated absences amounting to INR 11.74 million {¢arch 31, 2023 iNR 7.03 million).

40 Retated party transactions

A

Name of the related parties and nature of relationship
{1} where control exists :

Wholly owned subsidiarles
1 intellibees Solutions Private Limited
2 Firstcry Management DWC - LLC
3 Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd
4 loybees Private Limited
5 Digital Age Retail Private Limited

Dther Direct subsidiaries
1 Swara Baby Products Private Limited
2 Firmroots Private Limited
3 Solis Hygiene Private Limited
4 Glokalbees Brands Private Limited

Step down subsidiaries
1 Flrstery Retali DWC - LLC
2 Firstery Trading Company
3 Firstcry General Trading LLC
4 Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
5 Maxinique Solutions Private Limited
6 Better and Brighter Homecare Private Limited
7 Eyezen Technologles Private Limited
8 Clouid Lifestyle Prlvate Limited
9 HealthyHey Foods LLP
10 Butternut Ventures Private Limited
11 Dynamic IT Salution Private Limited
12 Kubermart Private Limited
13 Mush Textlles Private Umited
14 Glebalbees Brands DWC LLC
15 HS fitness Private Limited
16 DF Pharmacy Limited
17 Candes Technology Private Limited
18 Solarista Renewables Private Limited
19 Encasa Homes Private Limited
20 Froatle Indla Private Limited
21 Prayosha Expo Private Limited
22 Wellspire India Private Limited

%,
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40 Related party transactions (continued)

A} Name of the related partles and nature of refationship
{i) where control exists ;

Step down subsidiaries
23 Plantex E-Cémimerce Private Limited
24 W Brands Private Limlted
25 Kitchenopedia Appliances Private Limited
26 Swara Hyglene Private Limited

Other Entities where control exists
1 Edubees Educational Trust
2 Brainbees ESOP Trust

B) Other Related Parties

1. Entities having significant influence

1 SVF Frog {Cayman) Umited (Refer Note 18}

2 Mahindra Retail Limited (formerly Mahindra Retall Private Limited) which has amalgamated with Mahindra & Mahindra Limited pursuant to an order dated April 29, 2022
passed by National Company Law Tribunal {'NCLT')

li. Key management personnel

1 Mr. Supam Maheshwarl - Managing Director & CEO (as Dlrector w.e.f, May 17, 2010, designation changed to Managlng Director w.e.f. February 02, 2012, re-appointed as
Managing Director for the period April 01, 2019 till March 31, 2024 and further re-appainted for the period from April 0%, 2024 till March 31, 2025 & appointed as Chief
Executive Officer w.e.f December (1, 2023)

2 Mr. Amitava Saha - Non-executive Director {as additional Non-executive director w.e.f May 16, 2011, re-appointed as Non-executive Director w.e.f October 17, 2011 till
December 26, 2023}

3 Mr. Zhooben Dossabhoy Bhiwandiwala - Non-executive Director (as additional Non-executive director w.e.f October 15, 2016, re-appointed as Non-executive Director w.e.f
Octaber 18, 2016 till April 12, 2023}

4 Mr. Amit Gupta - Non-executive Director {w.e.f December 24, 2019 till December 26, 2023}

5 Mr. Paul Alexander Davison - Non-executiva Director w.e.f July 15, 2019

& M. Akshay Tanna - Non-executive Director (as additlonal Non-executive director w.e.f March 17, 2021, re-appolnted as Non-executive Director September 29, 2021 till May 24,
2023)

7 Mr. Atul Gupta - Non-executive Director {as additlonal Non-executive director w.e.f June 03, 2021 and re-appointed as Non-executive Director w.e.f September 29, 2021 tilt
December 26, 2023)

& Mr. Vikas Agnihotri - Non-executive Director (appointed {as additional Non-executive director w.e.f January 12, 2022, re-appolnted as Non-executive Director w.e.f August 29,
2022 till December 26, 2023}

9 Ms. Bala C Deshpande - Non executive & Independent Director {as additional Non executive & Independent Director w.e.f. May 02, 2022, re - appointed as Non executive &
independent Director w.e.f August 29, 2022}

10 Mr. Gopalakrishnan Jagadeeswaran - Non executive & Independent Director {as additional Non executive & independent Director w.e.f. May 02, 2022, re - appointed as Non
executive & Independent Divector w.e.f August 29, 2022)

11 Mr. Neera) Sagar - Non executive & independent Director {as additional Non executive & Independent Director w.e.f. April 22, 2022 and re-appointed as Non executive &
Independent Director w.e.f August 28, 2022)

12 Mr. Sanket Hattimattur - Executive Director & Chlef of Staff {as additional Executive Director w.e.f. May 05, 2022, re-appointed as Executive Director w.e.f August 29, 2022 till
May 04, 2027 & again re-appointed on September 29, 2023)

13 Mes. Sujata Vilas Bogawat - Non executive & Independent Director {as additional Non executive & Independent Director w.e.f. May 02, 2022, re-appointed as Non executive &
Independent Director w.e.f August 29, 2022)

14 Mr, Puneet Renjhen - Nen-executive Director {as additional Non-executive director w.e.f April 24, 2023, reappointed as Non executive director w.e.f September 29, 2023 tili
December 26, 2023}

15 Mr. Simit Batra - Mon-executive Director {as additional Non-executive director w.e.f May 25, 2023, reappointed as Non exacutive director w.e.f September 29, 2023 till
December 26, 2023)

16 Mr, Gautam Sharma - Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. July 05, 2017

17 Ms. Samantha Rega - Company Secretary (w.e.f August 28, 2019 ill October 3, 2022)

18 Ms, Neelam Jethanl - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (As Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. December 16, 2022 & again designated as Compliance
Officer pursuant to SEBI Regulations w.e.f September 25, 2023)

{  Transactions with related parties

Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Wholly owned subsidiaries
Firstery Management DWCLLC
A) Investment made 1,922.62 2,013.74
8) Share based payments {included in Investments as per Note:8) 514 3129
C) Cost charge back expense 7.50 0.00
Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd
A) Professional fees paid 0.08 812
Digital Age Retall Private Limited
A} Sale of trading goods 12,424.47 7,919,438
B) Rent Income 494.44 325.20
C} Brand and Platform License Fees 12,80 12.80
D} Investment made 0.00 2,006.25
49,50 133.59
2,465.48 3,091.31
287.03 252,13
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40 Related party transactions {continued}

Transactions with related parties

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Step down subsidiarles and other entlties

Firstcry Retall DWC - LLC

A} Sale of trading goods 478.81 242,13

8) Service Income 73.82 64,11

C) Cost charge back 044 2.27

D) Share based payments (included in Investments as per Note:8) 23,10 25.23

E} Royalty Income 148,15 119,35

Firstery Trading Company

A) Sale of trading goods 136,33 87.43

B) Service Income 73.82 64.37

C} Cost charge back (.98 241

D) Royalty Income 54,07 0.00

£} Share based payments {included in Investments as per Note:8) 50.32 0.00

£dubees Educational Trust

A) Royally income 4,17 3,18

B} Sale of trading goods 297 6.43

Firmroots Private Limited

A Internet Display Charges 7.20 8.01

B} Rent Paid 0.05 0.05

C} Rent Recelved 0.01 0.01

Swara Baby Products Private Limited

A) Purchase of Traded Goods 1,944.26 2,065.71

8} Interest Income 32,75 21,80

C) Loan Given 50.00 400,00

Swara Hyglene Private Limited

A) Interest Income 24.54 0.00

8} Loan Given 500.00 0.00

Solis Hygiene Private Limited

A} Purchase of Traded Goods 87.89 15.41

Globalbees Brands Private Limlted

A} Cost charge back - 013

B} Sublease Rent Income B 0.05

C) Internet Display Charges - 0,10

D) Cost charge back expenses 3.52 0.00

Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

A) Internet Display Charges - 0.76

B} Miscellaneous income 0.58 -

C) Sublease Rent Income 1.80 -

Prayosha Expo Private Limited

A} Purchase of traded goods 0.27 0.32

Brainbees ESOP Trust

A) Loan Given 3,631.60 -

8) Shares ssued 3,631.60 -

Remuneration to Key management personnel*

Short-term employee benefits and share-based payment

Mr. Supam Maheshwarl 1,038.54 2,007.31

Mr. Sanket Hatimattur {w.e.f May 5, 2022} 113,22 185,72

M, Gautam Sharma 21.60 47,54

Ms, Samantha Rego {till October 3, 2022} - 1,30

Ms, Neelam tethani {w.e.f December 16, 2022} 3.77 0.99

Remuneration and Sltting Fees to Independent Directors

Mr, Gapalakrishnan Jagadeeswaran 0.19 .

Mirs. Bala C Deshpande 0.23 "

Mr. Neeraj Sagar 031 -

Mrs, Sujata Vilas Bogawat 012 -

Transactions with Key management personnel

Loan to Mr. Gautam Sharma - 75,58

Interest Income on lean to Mr, Gautam Sharma 7.39 1,09

*Remuneratlon to key management personnel includes short term employment benefits, Share based payments accrual and excludes provisions for gratuity, compensated

s and other long term employment benefit which have been actuarially determined and the amounts pertaining to the KMP are not material,
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40 Related party transactlons {centinued)

Il Outstanding batances with related parties

Partlculars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Elrstcry Management DWC LLC
Payable for cost charge back 7.50 0.00
shenthen St-arbees Services Ltd
Payable for professional services - 1,52
Digital Age Retall Private Limited
Recelvable for sale of goods and services 5,932.85 3,731.76
Security Deposit receivable 271 271
Firstery Retall DWC - LLC
Receivable for sale of goods 321.24 118.07
Receivable for Service charge 74,38 64.11
Receivable for cost charge back 0.44 2.01
Receivabie for Royalty Income 148,15 119.35
Firstcry Trading Company
Recelvable for sale of goods 36.08 26.84
Receivable for Service charge 138.19 64.37
Recelvable for cost charge back 0.95 2,41
Receivahle for Royalty Income 54.07 0.00
Edubees Educational Trust
Receivable towards security deposit 37.50 37.50
Receivabte towards sale of services and goods 29,03 2215
Flrmroots Private Limited
Receivable towards sate of services 1.20 5.05
Recelvable towards rent 0.01 0.01
Payable towards Rent 0.01 0.02
Globalbees Brands Private Limlted
Recelvable for Services 0.00 0.04
Security Deposit Payable 0.02 0.02
Receivable towards sublease rent income 015 0.14
Receivable for cost charge back 017 0.15
Payable for cost charge back 3.80 0.00
Maxinique Selutions Private Limited
Recelvable from Services - 0.06
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Recelvable from Services 0.46 0.00
Swara Baby Products Private Limited
Advance given towards purchase of goods 91.46 51,06
Loan given 450,00 400.00
Interest recelvable 13.98 0.00
Solis Hyglene Private Limited
Payabte for purchase of goods 9,24 L4
Prayosha Expo Private Limited
Payable for purchase of goods - -
Swara Hygiene Private Limited
Advance glven towards purchase of goods 0.00 60,00
Interest receivable 24.54 0.00
Loan given 500,00 0.00
Intellibees Solutions Private Limited
Capital advance 1.50 -
Brainbees ESOP Trust
Loan given 3,683.41 51.81
Balances outstanding with Key Management Personnel
Loan to Mr. Gautam Sharma 84,06 76,68

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis. There 1s no allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no loss

allowance has been recognised during the year in respect of recelvables due from related partles.
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41 Ratlos as per Schedule lil requirements

ﬁ) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabllities

particulars As at March 31, |[AsatMarch31,
2024 2023
Current assets 19,860.01 18,393,38
Current liabilities 4,487.01 3,586.32
Ratio 4.43 5.43
% Change from pravious year 113,73%)
b) Debt equity ratio = Total Debt divided by Total equity
particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023
Total debt 5,288.54 4,514.80
Total equity 42,147.36 37,446,35
Ratlo 0,13 0,12
% Change from previous year 4.07%
¢} Debt service coverage ratio = Earnings avallable for debt services divided by Total interest and princlpal payments
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particutars 3024 2023
Profit/{ioss) after tax (621.94) {1,563.91})
Add : Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
- Depreciation and amortisation 1,500.19 1,292.29
- Finance costs 518.91 400.49
Earnings avallable for debt services 1,397.16 128,87
Interest cost on borrowings 518,91 40049
Principal repayments and lease payments 457,99 353,11
Total Interest and principal repayments 976.90 753.60
Ratle 1.43 0.17
% Change from previous year 736.34%

The above ratio has been changed primarily due to employee share based payment cost of INR 3,232.01 million during the year ended March

the reduction In the profit after tax. The same has been reduced to INR 1,177.59 million during the year ended March 33, 2024,

d} Return on £quity Ratle / Return on Investment Ratio = Nat profit after tax divided by Equity

31, 2023 which has led to

particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2024 2023
Profit/(Loss) after tax (621.54} (1,563.91)
Total Equity 42,147.36 37,446.35
Ratlo {0.01} {0.04)
% Change from previous year (64.67%)

The above ratlo has been changed primarily due to employee share based payment cost of INR 3,232.01 million during the year ended Ma

the reduction in the profit after tax, The same has been reduced to INR 1,177.99 million during the year ended March 31, 2024.

e} Inventory Turngver Ratio = Cast of material consumed divided by closing inventory

rch 31, 2023 which has led to

-

particulars As at March 33, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Purchase of traded goods 14,570.92 14,193.59
Changes in Inventory (488.05) 3,375.27
Cost of material consumed 14,082.87 17,56B.86
Average Inventory 4,565.46 6,005.07
Ratlo 3,08 292
% Change from previous year 5.50%
) Trade Recelvables turnover ratlo = Credit Sales divided by average trade recelvables
particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Revenue from operations 21,632,10 25,418.92
Average Trade Recelvables (excluding unbilled receivables) %,715.83 3,061,231
Ratio 3.78 8.30
% Change from previgus year (54.42%)
There has been decrease In receivable balance in March 31, 2024 on account of reduction in credit perled days to the customers,
g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by Average Trade Payables
particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Credit Purchases 14,570.92 14,193.59
Average Trade Payables 2,722.68 3,083.60
Ratio 5.35 A.60
% Change from previous year 16.27%
h) Net working capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital whare net working capital = current assets - current liabllities
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
. 2024 2023
Revenue from operations 21,632.10 25,418,492
Net working capital 15,373.00 14,813.06
Ratlo {Times) 1.41 172
% Change from previous year {18.0034)

uction In net working capital which is on account of increase in trade payables.

This ratio has reducegl di
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41 Ratlos as per Schedule ill requirements

i} Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023
Profit/(Loss) after tax (621.96) {1,563.93}
Revenue from operations 21,632,10 25,418.92
Ratio (0.03) {0.06)
% Change from previous year {53.27%}

The ahove ratio has been changed primarily due to empioyee share based payment cost of (NR 3,232.01 million during the year ended March 31, 2023 which has led to the

reduction in the profit after tax.

1) Return on Capital employed = Earnings hefore interest and taxes {EBIT) divided by Capital Employed

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Profit/{Loss) before tax (A) {834.08) {1,809.03)
Finance costs {B) 518,51 400,49
Finance income (C} 0.00 0.00
EBIT (D) = [A}+(B}-{C) (315.17} {1,408.54)
Totak equity (E} 42,147.32 37,446,33
Berrawings {including lease liabilitles) (F) 5,288.54 4,514.80
Intangible assets (G) 374.88 308.14
Capltal Employed (H)=(E}+(F}-(G) 47,060.98 41,562.59
Ratio {1.61) {4.52}
% Change from previous year (64.42%)

The above ratlo has changed primarily due to Increase in profit before tax for the year ended March 31, 2024 which Is due to decrease in ESOP expense during the year. The same
has been reduced from INR 3,232,01 mitlion to INR 1,177.99 million during the year ended March 31, 2024,

42 Detalls of significant Investments in subsidiarles

Country of incorporation/ Place of

% direct holding

Name of the Company buslness As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Subsldiaries

Intellibees Solutions Private ilmited India 100.00% 100.00%
Firstery Management DWC - LLC United Arab Emirates 100,00% 100.00%
Shenzhen Starbees Services Ltd China 100.00% 100.00%
Jovbees Private Limited india 100.00% 100.00%
Digital Age Retail Private Limited India 100,00%! 100.00%
Swara Baby Products Private Limited India 86.01% 53.45%
Firmroots Private Limited India 67.90% 67.90%
Solis Hygiene Private Limited India 79.34% 79.34%
Globalbees Brands Private Limited india 52,15% 52.15%)
Other entitles

Edubees Educational Trust India 100.00% 100,00%
|Bralnbees ESOP Trust India 100.00% 100.60%

43 Segment

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the intemat reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors has heen identified as
the chief operating decision maker. The Company has only one operating and reportable segment which is "8aby and Kids products”. The company has also ventured into pre
school business for kids through various franchisee partners In indla. However the same does not quallfy to be a separate reportable business segment.

Information concerning principal peographic areas Is as follows:

Particulars Far the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net sales to external customer by geographic area by location of customer
Within india 20,763.96 24,908.63
Cutside India 868,14 510.29
Total 21,632.10 25,418.92

All the assets of the Company are located within India except for foreign currency receivables.

Major Custorners

The Company has no external customer which accounts for more than 10% of the Campany's total revenue for the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2043,
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44 Share based payments

See acrounting pollcy in Note 3{£){il).

A, Description of share-based payment arrangements

The Corspany has the following share-based payment arrangements:
Share optlon plans (equity-settled)

On March 31, 2011 the Company established share option plans (‘Brainbees Employee Stock Option flan 2011'} that entitle the employees to purchase shares In the
Company. Under this plan, holders of vested options are entitied to purchase shares at 10% of the market price of the shares determined at the immedlately
preceding round of equity raised by the Company. Afl the options have a vesting condition of 25% every year aver a period of 4 years and have an exerclse life of 10
vears.

On April 1, 2019 the Company established share option plans that entitle the employees to purchase shares In the Company. Under this plan, holders of vested
options are entitled to purchase shares at INR 5 per share price. The options have a vesting condition of 25% every year over a period of 4 years,

On April 1, 2019, the Company established Restricted Stack Unit (RSU) plans that entitle the employees ta purchase shares in the Company. Under this plan, holders

of vested options are entitied to purchase shares at INR 5 per share price, The options have a vesting condition of 25% every year over a period of 4 years,
On January 21, 2022 Company established share option plans that entitle the employees to purchase shares in the Brainbees Selutlons Private Limited. Under this

plan, holders of vested options are entitled to purchase shares at INR 2 per share price. The options have a vesting condition of 25% every year over a period of 4
years.

On February 14, 2022 the Company established share option plans that entitle the employees to purchase shares In the Company. Under this plan, holders of vested
options are entitled to purchase shares at INR 5 per share price. The vesting of these options Is linked to certaln market based conditions,

B. Measurement of fair values

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value of employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes eption pricing model,
The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as follows:

March 31, 2024
Particulars Grant 1 Grant2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5
Fair value at grant date 9,29 25,08 33.47 7437 74.37
Share price at grant date 9.29 25.08 3347 7440 74.40
Exercise price 2,32 6.27 836 7.44 7.44
Expected volatility {welghted average volatility) 251% 251% 251% 251% 251%
Expected life (expected weighted average Life} 7.50 8.05 8.07 6,25 6,25
Expected dividends - - - . -
Risk-free Intarest rate {based on government bonds) 8.30% 8.81% 8.81% B.81% 8.81%
Particulars Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant9 Grant 10
Fair value at grant date 92.40 94.00 94,00 157,19 157.19
Share price at grant date 93,75 94.00 94.00 161.06 161.06
Exercise price 5.37 9.40 9.40 15.44 15.44
Expected volatility (welghted average volatility) 251% 251%| - 251% 112% 112%
Expected life {expected welghted average Life) 7.53 6.53 6.53 7.25 7.25
Expected dividends - - - - -
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds}) 8.81%| 8.81% B.81% 6.60% 6.60%)
Particulars Grapt 11 Grant 12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Fair value at grant date 157,19 257.48 | 279.71-258.78 279,90 279,80
Share price at grant date 161.06 280.87 281.58 28158 281,58
Exercise price 2.00 28.09 2.00 2.00 2.00
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility} 112%) 72% 68% 2% 2%
Expected fife {expected weighted average Life) 7.25 3.00 150 3.00 3.00
Expected dividends - - - - -
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 6.60% 4,99% 4.44% 5.71% 5.71%
Particulars Grant 16 Grant 17 Grant 18 Grant 19 Grant 20
Falr value at grant date 441.07 441.20 | 485.91 - 485.92 48591 485,92
Sharae price at grant date 442,81 442.81 487.53 487.53 487,53
Exercise price 2.00 2,00 2.00 2,00 2.00
Expected volatility (welghted average volatility} 57% 58%| 51.64%-52.19% 509% 49%
Expected Jife {expected weighted average Life) 2.25 3,00 3.00 3.00 3,00
Expected dividends . - - - -
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 6,20% 7.06% 6.95% - 7.16% 7.05% 7.16%




March 3%, 2023

Particulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5
Fair vaiue at grant date 9,29 25,08 33.47 74.37 74.37
Share price at grant date 9.29 25.08 33.47 74.40 74.40
Exercise price 2.32 6,27 B.36 7.44 7.44
Expected volatility [weighted average volatility) 251% 251%, 251% 251% 251%
Expected life {expected weighted average Life} 7.50 8.05 8.07 6.25 6.25
Expected dividends - - - - -
Risk-free Interest rate (based on government bonds) 8.30% 8.81%) 8.81% 8.81% B.B1%
Partlculars Grant & Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 10
Fair value at grant date 92.40 94,00 94,00 157.19 157.19
Share price at grant date 93,75 94,00 94,00 161.06 161.06
Exercise price 9,37 440 9.40 15.44 15.44
Expected volatility {weighted average volatility) 251%) 251% 251% 112% 112%
Expected life {expected welghted average Life) 7.53 6.53 6.53 7.25 7.25
Expected dividends - - - - -
Risk-free Interest rate (based cn government bonds) 8.81% 8.81% 8.81% 6.60% 6.60%
Particulars Grant 11 Grant12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Fair value at grant date 157,19 257.48 | 279.71-258.78 279,50 275.90
Share price at grant date 161,06 280.87 281.58 281.58 281,58
Exercise price 2.00 28,09 2.00 .00 2,00
Expected volatifity (weighted average volatility) 112% 72% 68% 72%) 72%
Expected life {expected weighted average Life} 7.25 3,00 1.50 3.00 3.00
Expected dividends . - - - -
Risk-free Interest rate {based on government bonds) 6.60% 4,95% 4.44% 5.71% 5.71%
Particulars Grant 16 Grant 17
Fair value at grant date 441,07 441.20
Share price at grant date 442,81 442.81
Exercise price 2.00 2.00
Expected volatility {weighted average volatility) 57%, 58%
Expected life {expected weighted average Life) 2,25 3,00
Expected dividends - -
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 6,20% 7.06%
C. Reconcillation of outstanding share optlons
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share option under the share option plans are as follows:
March 31, 2024
Particulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant 5
Outstanding as at Aprif 1, 2023 - - 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
Granted during the year
Forfelted during the year - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - - - . -
Exercised during the year - - - - -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 - - 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
Exerclsable as at March 31, 2024 - - 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
Partleulars Grant 6 " Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 10
Outstanding as at April 1, 2023 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 95,699 8,74,950
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year - - - - (18,985)
Cancelled during the year - - - - “
Exercised during the year - - - - -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 95,699 8,55,965
Exercisable as at March 31, 2024 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 95,699 8,495,366




Particulars Grant 11 Grant 12 Grant13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Qutstanding as at April 1, 2023 - 1,17,902 1,81,53,410 16,02,925 38,495,225
Granted during the year
Forfelted during the year - {5,000) - (42,555) {74,975)
Cancelled during the year - - " - -
Exercised during the year - - - - -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 - 1,12,902 1,81,53,410 15,60,370 36,20,250
Exercisable as at March 31, 2024 - 87,736 - 11,74,013 23,99,956
Particulars Grant 16 Grant 17 Grant 18 Grant 18 Grant 20
Outstanding as at April 1, 2023 4,64,838 53,750 . - -
Granted during the year 3,19,766 15,875 1,92,583
Forfelted during the year {939) {3,000) {33,724} {3,000) {9,588}
Cancellad during the year - - - - -
Exercised during the year B - " - -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 4,63,959 50,750 2,86,042 12,875 1,82,695
Exerclsable as at March 31, 2024 2,21,261 12,688 71,260 - -
March 3%, 2023
Partleulars Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4 Grant5
Qutstanding at Aprli 1, 2027 2,55,765 - 1,35,180 1,62,390 2,825
Granted during the year - - - - -
Forfelted during the year - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - . - - -
Exercised during the year (2,55,765) - {50,028) {13,318} -
Outstanding at March 31, 2023 - - 85,153 1,49,073 2,825
Exercisable at March 31, 2023 - - 85,153 1,438,073 2,825
Particulars Grant 6 Grant? Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 10
Qutstanding at April 1, 2022 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 95,699 8,897,700
Granted durlng the year - - - - -
Forfeited during the year - " - - {22,750}
Cancelied during the year - - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - n -
Qutstanding at March 31, 2023 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 95,659 8,74,950
Exercisable at March 31, 2023 3,465 65,800 1,67,570 56,568 6,08,773
Particulars Grant 11 Grant 12 Grant 13 Grant 14 Grant 15
Outstanding at Aprit 1, 2022 - 1,22,590 1,81,53,410 17,23,870 37,83,353
Granted during the year - - - - B
Forfeited during the year - (4,688} - (1,20,945) (88,128)
Cancelled during the year . - . - .
Exercised during the year - " - -
Outstanding at March 31, 2023 - 1,17,902 1,81,53,410 16,02,925 36,95,225
|Exercisable at March 31, 2023 - 62,571 - 10,34,221 8,32,122
Partlculars Grant 16 Grant 17
Outstanding at April 1, 2022 - -
Granted during the year 4,66,148 53,750
Forfeited during the year {1,250) .
Cancelled during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Outstanding at March 31, 2023 4,64,898 53,750
Exercisable at March 31, 2023 - -
Welghted average exercise price for:
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Qutstanding as at the beginning of the year 2.75 2,79
Granted during the year 2.00 2.00
forfeited during the year 4,01 3.80
Cancelled during the year - -
Exercised during the year - 3.48
Outstanding at the end of the year 2.73 2,75
Exercisable at end of the year 5.36 6.46



Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Bralnbees Sofutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts In Rupees million, unless otherwlse stated)

45

Fair value measurements

A Accounting classifications and fair values

A6

Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables and other current financtal liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely
due to short term maturities of these instruments.

The following table shows carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

As at March 31, 2024

Partleulars Carrylng amount Falr valug

ying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortlsed cost .
nvestments 19,417.26 - - -
Security deposits 315.94 - - -
Bank deposits 0.88 - - -
Loans E 4,986,18 - - -
Trade receivables 6,755.73 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 663.04 - - -
Other bank halances 1,609.25 - B -
Other Current financial assets 691,70 . - -
Tatal financial assets 34,439,98 B . .
Financlal liabliltles at amortised cost
Lease Liability 5,288.54 ) - - -
Trade payables 3,132,59 - - -
Other non-current financial liabilities 273 - - -
Other current financial liabilities : 112.46 B - -
Total financlal liakilitles ' B,536.32 - u -
As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Carrylng amount Fair value

Ve Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised cost
Investments 14,724,51 - . .
Security deposits 273.46 - - -
Bank deposits 182.63 - - -
Loans 774.38 - - -
Trade recelvables . 4,675,92 - - B
Cash and cash equivalents 1,117.88 B - -
Other bank balances 7,009.44
Other Current financlal assets 50.24 - - -
Tatal financlal assets 28,808,47 - - -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease Liabllity 4,514,80
Trade payahles 2,312.76 - - -
Other non-curient financial Niabliitles 273 - - -
Cther cuzrent financial flabliitles 366.84 - . -
Total financial liabilitles 7,197.13 - - -

Financial instruments - Risk management
Financlal risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
1) credit risk;

1} liguidity risk; and

it} market risk,

I. Risk management framewark

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framewark. The senior management Is for
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The management reports regulariy to the Board of Directors on its activities,

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and cantrols and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to refiect changes In market conditlons and the Company's activitles. The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, alims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment In which all employees understand their roles and
ohligations,

il. Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial toss to the Cempany If a customer or counter party to a financial Instrument fails to meet Its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers
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46 Flnanclal instruments - Risk management {continued)
H. Credit risk {continued)

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factars that may influence
the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate.

Credt risk Is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously menitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms
in the normal course of husiness, On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a matrix
1o compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes I to account available external and Internal credit risk factors and Company's
historical experience for customers.

The Company has not made any provision on expected credit loss arising on trade recelvables and other financial assets, based on management estimates,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally [nvests in deposits with banks and financial Institutions with high credit ratings asslgned by domestic
credit rating agencies.

ili, Viquidity risk

Liquldity risk is the risk that the Company will encaunter difficulty In meeting the obligations associated with its financtal liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficlent liquidity to meet its Habilities when they are due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The management monitors rolling ferecasts of the Company's
liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabllitles at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and Include contractual interest

payments.
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying amount Cantractual cash flows
Less than 1 year 1- 3 years More than 3 years
Trade payables 3,132.59 3,132.59 - -
Lease liabilities 5,288.54 1,112.58 2,194.75 4,137.75
Other financlal llabilities 115.19 115.19 - -
As at March 31, 2023
' Particulars Carrying amount Contractual cash flows
Less than 1 year 1- 3 years More than 3 years
Trade payahles 2,312,76 3,312.76 - -
Lease liabilities 4,514.80 892,70 1,806,74 3,750,36
Other financial Habilities 369.57 369.57 - -

iv, Market rlsk

Market risk Is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financlal Instruments. The abjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is limited as majority of the transactions are In Its functlenal currency, As at the balance-sheet date, the Company had followlng
foreign currency exposures which have not been hedged by any derivative flnancial instruments as they are not material.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Forelgn surrency INR Foreign currency INR
Payable - USD {0.05) 4,34 (0.10} {7.69)
Payable - EURC {0.04) 3,37 {0.04) (3.31)
Recelvable - USD 8.60 712.20 0.53 76,10
Total 719.91 65.10
Sensitivity:

impact on profit before tax and
Particulars equity
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

USD sensltivity
USD/INR -Increase by 5% 35.83 3.42
USD/INR -Dacrease by 5% {35.83) {3.42)
EURD sensitivity
EURO/INR -Increase by 5% 0.17 {0.17)
EURO/INR -Decrease by 5% [0.17} 0.17

Forelgn Currency Sensitivity analysisi

The following tabte detalls the Company's sensitivity to a 5% Increase and decrease In the Rupees against the relevant foreign currencies, 5% Is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting forelgn currency risk Internally to key management persannel and represents management's assessment of the reasanably possible change in foreign exchange rates, The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denaminated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change In foreign currency rates,
itive number below Indicates an increase in profit and equity where the Rupee strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the Rupee against the
glévant-ciirrency, there would be a comparable Impact on the profit & equity and the balances betow would be negative,
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Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain tnvestar,
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,

assets to reduce debt,

Consistent with athers In the Industry, the Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt' 'equity’. For this purpose, net debt Is defined as total liabilities,
bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and other balances with Banks. Equity comprises all components. The company has no debt as on March 31, 2024,

March 31, 2023,

Corporate Saclal Responsilibity Expenditure

The details of Corporate Soclal Responsibliity as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 Is as follows:

creditor and other stakeholders' confidence and to sustaln future development of the buslness.
return capital to sharehalders, issue new share or sell

comprising interest-

Far the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2024 2023
{A) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 0,53 1.88
{8} Amount spent durlng the year on:
(i} Construction/ acquisition of any asset Nil Nil
{1} For purposes other than {{} above 0.53 1.90
a) Pald in cash 0.18 121
\ b} Yet to be pald in cash 0.35 0.69
{C) Related party transactions in relation to Corporate Soclal Responsibility . -
{D) Provision movement during the year - -
{E) Amount eatmarked for ongoing project (in separate Unspent CSR A/C)
Opening balance 0.69 B
Amount transferred during the year 0.35 0.69
Amount paid towards the engolng project {0.69} -
Closing batance 03s 0.69
{F} Shortfall at the end of the year 0,35 0.69
(G) Reason for shortfal fefer Note 1 Refer Mote 1
below below
{H) Nature of Corporate Soclal Responsibilty Education Education

Note 1: The Company has transferred the shortfall amounting to Rs. 0.35 million {March 31, 2023: Bs. 0.69 million} to the separate unspent CSR Account during the year ended March
31, 2024 amd March 31, 2023 respectively, The Company has an ongoing project and has earmarked the unspent CSR amount towards the said project. The Group has utilised Rs.
0.69 million from the said account towards ongoing project during the year ended March 31, 2024 for shortfall of previous year,

Subsequent Events

a) Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2024, one of the warehouse where inventory of the Company was stacked, Hooghly, West Bengal, caught fire and the inventory and property,
plant and equipment’s therein were completely destroyed. The Incident took place on May 20, 2024 before finalisation of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,
At the date of incldent, there was inventory of INR 483,75 milllon {including GST} in approximate value and carrying value of property, plant and equipment’s of INR 77.49 million
(histarical cost inciuding GST- Rs 269.37 million). The Company's insurance policy adequately covers the losses incurred. As on the date of finalisation of financial statements, the
Company is in the pracess of flling the Insurance clalm

In opinion of the Management, since, the event took place past the reporting date of March 31, 2024, it is a ron-adjusting event In these financial statements and hence, no
corresponding financial Impact Is considered in the financial statements, Further, based on the facts mentioned above and as per the judgement of Management, there Is no threat to
the Going Concern of the business and hence docs not warrants any adjustment to the financial assertions made in the financial statements in this regard

b) Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, and in accordance with the resclution passed by circulation by the Company's board of directors on July 5, 2024, all compulsorily
convertible prefarence shares {CCPS) L. Serles A CCPS, Series 8 CCP5, Serles C CCPS, Series C1 CCPS, Serles C2 CCPS, Serles D1 CCPS and Serles D2 CCPS, have been converted to
eauity shares at a 1:1 ratio,

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for compantes under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companles {Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the
Companies {Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting seftware for maintaining its books of account, shatl use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit tralt of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made In the hooks of account along with the date when such changes
were made and ensurlng that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company has used accounting software for malntaining Its books of account which has a feature of recarding audit trall (edit log) facility and the same was not operated
throughout the year, However, the Company has robust internal controls in place to maintain its accounting records

Other Statutory Informatlon required by schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

3} The Company does not have any benami property held in Its name. No proceedings have been initlated on or are pending against the Company for halding benaml property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1588 (45 of 1988} and Rules made thereunder,

b) The Company does net have any charges or satisfaction which s yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.
&) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023.

d) The Company does not have any transaction which Is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the tax
assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

@) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal Institution or government or any government authority.
f) The Company has not entered Into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact an current year or previous financial year,

)v',fh_e Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds [either horrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(les),
including foreign entities {Intermediarles) with the understanding {whether recarded in writing or otherwise) :

: l) [5'ir’éc_‘llydq'r_-lndlrectly lend or nvest In other person (s} or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries)

1} Provide,:an sguarantee, any securities or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries,

il 3
Vi ¢ l
PRI



Brainbees Solutlons Limited {formerly known as Brainbees Solutions Private Limited)
Notes forming part of these Standalone Financial Statements
{Al amounts ln Rupees miliion, unless otherwlse stated)
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h} The Company has not received any fund from any person {s) or entity (ies), inciuding foreign entities (Funding party} with the understanding {whether recorded In writing or
otherwise) that the company shalt :

1} Directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other person (s} or entities identified In any manner whatsoever on behalf of the Company {ultimate beneficiarles)

11) Provide any guarantee, any securities or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficlaries.

1) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plants and equipments including Right of Use asset during the year.
{} The Company has no transactions with any struck off company during the year,

k) The Company does not have any immovahle property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Group except those held under |lease arrangements for which lease
agreements are duly executed in the favour of the Company.

1) The Company Is [n compliance with the number of layers prescribed under Clause {87} of Section 2 of the Companies Act read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017,

Nﬁte:
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform with the current year’s classification, The lmpact of such regrouping s not matertal to financlal statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Brainbees Solutlons Limited {fermeriy known as Brainbees Solutjons Private
Chartered Accountants Limited) _,Q’}’
Fismn Registration Number : 001076N/N0Q013 CIN : U51100PN2010PLC136340 f \/‘“D/
( ; ;W Supam Maheshwarl ¢ _.-saket Hattimatiur
e Managing Director Director
Shashi Tadwalkar DIN : 01730685 DIN : (9593712
Partner Place : Pune Place : Pune
Membership Number - 101757 Date : Date: ¥
Place : Pune . -\(,\fh}
Date: ; ? }\IJJ
E m/
[ GaytanySharma Néelam Jethanl
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Pune Place | Pune

Date : Date !







To,

NOTICE OF 14" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Members,
Brainbees Solutions Limited

Notice is hereby given that the fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Brainbees
Solutions Limited, is proposed to be held at shorter notice on Monday, the 22" day of July, 2024 at 10.00
a.m. IST through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

315 March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon;
and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

31°* March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Paul Davison (DIN: 08457025), who retires by rotation and

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To appoint Mr. Puneet Renjhen (DIN: 09498488) as Director (Non-Executive & Non-Independent

category) of the company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and the Articles of
Association of the Company and other applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time being
in force), Mr. Puneet Renjhen (DIN: 09498488) be and is hereby appointed as Director (Non-
Executive & Non-Independent Director) of the Company with immediate effect, liable to retire by
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised
to sign and file necessary e-forms and such other forms and documents as may be necessary with
the Registrar of Companies and make necessary entries in the statutory records and registers of
the Company and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or expedient thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”



By order of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutions Limited

Supam Maheshwari
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01730685

Date: July 17, 2024
Place: Pune

Registered Office:

Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338,
Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road
Pune — 411001, Maharashtra



NOTES:

The members may note that as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, physical presence of
the members is mandatory in any general meeting to form a valid quorum. However, in view of the
various circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Company is allowed to pass
resolutions in an Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-
Visual Means (OAVM).

The members may note the following points in terms of General Circular No. 14/2020 dt. 8 April,
2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dt. 13 April, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 dt. 15" June,
2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dt. 28" September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dt. 31
December, 2020, General Circular No. 10/2021 dt. 23" June, 2021 & General Circular No. 20/2021
dt. 08" December, 2021 and General Circulars as of December 14, 2021 and May 05, 2022 being the
subsequent circulars and the latest being 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and the latest being
General Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25" September, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”):

A. The deemed venue for the meeting shall be Registered office of the Company located at
Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338, Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road, Pune-411001,
Maharashtra, India.

B. The Company will provide the VC / OAVM facility to its members for participating in this
meeting. Login details / link for the VC or OAVM will be intimated in due course with detailed
instructions.

C. Facility to join the meeting will be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the
meeting and will be kept open throughout the proceeding of the meeting.

D. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required
to send a scanned copy (PDF/IPG Format) of its Board or governing body
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC
facility on its behalf and to vote during the AGM.

E. Designated email id of the Company is gautam@firstcry.com /neelam.jethani@firstcry.com.

F. Members may pose questions concurrently during the meeting. Alternatively, members may
submit the questions in advance to the designated email id of the Company.

G. Members participating through the VC / OAVM facility shall be reckoned for the purpose of
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

H. Facility of appointment of Proxies by members is not available for this meeting in terms of the
MCA Circular. Accordingly, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not enclosed hereto.



In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of names will be entitled to vote.

All the documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying explanatory statement are
available electronically for inspection by the members from the date of circulation of this
notice upto the date of the meeting. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send
an email to the designated email id provided above.

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/mobile numbers,
Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details
such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code,
etc. to their Depository Participant(s) or to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of Company
(“RTA”) at the following address:

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, Embassy 247, 1st Floor,

L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai — 400 083

Tel. No. +91 22 4918 6000 Fax No. +91 22 4918 6060
Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining
to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account
Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the
bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc. immediately to the
Company at its registered office.

Since the meeting will be held through VC/OAVM, route map of the venue of the Meeting is
not annexed hereto.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in respect of Special Business under Item No. 3 of the Notice, is annexed hereto.

The forms for providing consent of shareholders for shorter notice of the 14" Annual General
Meeting is enclosed hereto and the shareholders are required to provide the same prior to
the 14" Annual General Meeting (AGM).

In case a poll is required to be cast, members are requested to convey their vote during the
meeting at the designated mail id which is gautam@firstcry.com /
neelam.jethani@firstcry.com where a poll is required, members are requested to cast their
vote on the resolution only by sending emails through their email addresses registered with
the Company.

Members can submit questions in advance with regard to the financial statements or any
other matter to be placed at the AGM, from their registered email address, mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number to the Company’s designated
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email address at least two (2) days before the date of the meeting so to enable the Company
to furnish the information. However members may pose questions alternatively during the
meeting. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.



Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

Item no. 3 Appointment of Mr. Puneet Renjhen (DIN:09498488) as Director (Non-Executive & Non-

Independent category) of the company

The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Puneet Renjhen (DIN:09498488) as an Additional Director
of the Company on 10%" July, 2024 under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. His term of office
as an Additional Director expires at the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company. In the
meantime, the Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a
member of the Company proposing the candidature of Mr. Puneet Renjhen for the office of Director.

The details of Mr. Paul Davison and Mr. Puneet Renjhen with respect to item No. 2 & 3 in accordance
with Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS 2) is mentioned herein below:

1. Director
Number (DIN)

Identification

08457025

09498488

2. | Name (in full)

Mr. Paul Alexander Davison

Mr. Puneet Renjhen

3. | Father’s Name (in full)

Mr. Noel Davison

Mr. Shamsher Renjhen

4. | Address 2292 Bay Street, Bay Street, San | A-301, Vivarea Hindoostan
Francisco Mills compound, Sane Guruji
— 94123 1822, California, United | Marg, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai,
States Maharashtra, 400011
5. | Age 36 years 46 years
6. | Qualification e Bachelors’ degree in arts | e Mr. Puneet Renjhen
from University of holds a post graduate
Cambridge diploma in management

from the Indian School
of Business, Hyderabad,
Telangana, India and has
also completed a
Mahindra
program from Harvard

universe

Business School, Boston,
Massachusetts, United
States of America.

7. | Experience

He has approximately seven
years of experience specifically
in technology investing.

He has experience of more
than 12 years in M&A
advisory and  leveraged

finance.
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8. | Terms and conditions of | Non-executive Non Independent | Non-executive Non
appointment Director, liable to retire by | Independent Director, liable
rotation to retire by rotation
9. | Details of remuneration | Mr. Paul Davison is not entitled | Mr. Puneet Renjhen is not
sought to be paid and last | to any remuneration, sitting fees | entitled to any remuneration,
drawn remuneration for attending the meetings of | sitting fees for attending the
Board/ Committees. meetings of Board/
Committees.
10. | Date of first appointment on | July 15, 2019 July 10, 2024
the Board
11. | Shareholding in the company | Nil Nil
12. | Relationship  with  other | None None
Directors, Manager and
other Key Managerial
Personnel of the company
13. | The number of Meetings of | 8 _
the Board attended during
the financial year 23-24.
14. | Other Directorships Indian Companies: NIL Indian Companies:
e Sustainable Energy Infra
Foreign companies: Investment Managers
e SVF Holdco (UK) Limited Private Limited
e Retina Finance UK Limited e Swaraj Engines Limited
e Retina Finance UK Two | ¢ Mahindra Susten Private
Limited Limited
e Retina Finance UK Three | ¢ Mahindra Holdings
Limited Limited
e 101 St. Georges Drive
Management
Company Limited
e Boston Dynamics, Inc.
15. | Membership/ Chairmanship | NIL e Member of Stakeholder

of Committees of other

Boards

Relationship Committee -
Sustainable Energy Infra

Investment Managers
Private Limited

e Member of Audit
Committee - Swaraj
Engines Limited

e Chairman of CSR

Committee and Member
of Audit Committee —
Mahindra
Limited

Holdings




By order of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutions Limited

Supam Maheshwari
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01730685

Date: July 17, 2024
Place: Pune

Registered Office:

Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338,
Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road
Pune — 411001, Maharashtra



Consent by shareholders for shorter notice
[Pursuant to section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013]

To
The Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutions Limited

I/We, , having address/its registered office at ,
holding Shares of Rs. /- each hereby give consent, pursuant to
Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013, to hold the 14" Annual General Meeting on July 22, 2024 at
a shorter notice.

<Signature>
Name
<Designation, if applicable>

Dated:




ADDENDUM TO THE NOTICE OF THE 14™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF BRAINBEES
SOLUTIONS LIMITED

To,
Members,
Brainbees Solutions Limited

This is an addendum to the Notice dated July 17, 2024 convening the Annual General Meeting of
the Company scheduled to be held at shorter notice on Monday, the 22" day of July, 2024 at
10:00 a.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”).

Accordingly, the following items of business are added in the aforesaid Notice as Item No. 4, 5
and 6 as Special Business and this addendum shall be deemed to be an integral part of the original
Notice dated July 17, 2024 and the notes provided therein. Attention of the shareholders is
specifically drawn to the attached explanatory statement to explain the background of the
proposed transactions.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 4

TO APPROVE GRANT OF AN INTER-CORPORATE LOAN TO GLOBALBEES BRANDS PRIVATE
LIMITED

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 185, Section 186 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for
the time being in force, read with the relevant rules framed thereunder, consent of the
shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to grant loan (in addition to
existing loans granted) for a term of 3 (three) years, repayable on demand on arms’ length basis
to Globalbees Brands Private Limited of an amount not exceeding Rs. 350,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Three Hundred and Fifty Crores only) in one or more tranches, at an interest of not exceeding
13.5% per annum or at such rate of interest at arms’ length basis, in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory regulations, to be
utilized for its principal business activities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby further authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or
desirable, including to make necessary applications, representations with the concerned
authorities and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise with respect to the

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com
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above matter without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the
members for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and further to authorise one or more
representatives of the Company to carry out any or all of the activities that the Board is
authorised to do and to execute such further deeds, documents and writings that may be
considered necessary and appropriate.”

Item No. 5

TO APPROVE THE COST OF ESOPs FOR MR. SUPAM MAHESHWARI, WHICH IS A PART OF THE
REMUNERATION IN THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of provisions contained in Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules framed
thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, and the Articles of
Association of the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the below
cost of ESOPs for Mr. Supam Maheshwari (DIN: 01730685), Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, which is a part of the remuneration in the related party
transactions as per the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):

(i)  ESOP cost for the amount accounted/to be accounted for based on the vesting schedule
of the ESOP already granted and appearing in the RPT because of the requirement of Ind
AS; and

(ii)  Taxable ESOP cost at the time of exercise of the vested ESOPs recognized as perquisite by
the Company at the time of exercise.

No. of ESOPs Date of ESOP | Cost accounted for till | Cost to be accounted
granted granted FY 2024 in financial for post FY 2024 in
statements financial statements
(INR) (INR)
1,48,49,523 14-Feb-22 3,23,49,12,384 73,14,84,173
Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340

Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal@firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT save and except as aforesaid, all other existing terms and conditions
of appointment and remuneration of Mr. Supam Maheshwari shall continue to remain in full
force and effect.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby further authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or
desirable, including to make necessary applications, representations with the concerned
authorities and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise with respect to the
above matter without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the
members for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and further to authorise one or more
representatives of the Company to carry out any or all of the activities that the Board is
authorised to do and to execute such further deeds, documents and writings that may be
considered necessary and appropriate.”

Item No. 6
TO APPROVE THE COST OF ESOPs FOR MR. SANKET HATTIMATTUR, WHICH IS A PART OF THE

REMUNERATION IN THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of provisions contained in Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules framed
thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, and the Articles of
Association of the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the below
cost of ESOPs for Mr. Sanket Hattimattur (DIN: 09593712), Executive Director and Chief of Staff
of the Company, which is a part of the remuneration in the related party transactions as per the
requirements of Indain Accounting Standards (Ind AS):

(i)  ESOP cost for the amount accounted/to be accounted for based on the vesting schedule
of the ESOP already granted and appearing in the RPT because of the requirement of Ind
AS; and

(i)  Taxable ESOP cost at the time of exercise of the vested ESOPs recognized as perquisite by
the Company at the time of exercise.

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal@firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com
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No. of ESOPs granted | Date of ESOP | Cost accounted for till FY | Cost to be accounted for
granted 2024 in financial post FY 2024 in financial
statements statements
(INR) (INR)
14,18,640 14-Feb-22 30,90,45,365 6,98,81,891

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT save and except as aforesaid, all other existing terms and conditions
of appointment and remuneration of Mr. Sanket Hattimattur shall continue to remain in full force
and effect.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby further authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or
desirable, including to make necessary applications, representations with the concerned
authorities and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise with respect to the
above matter without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the
members for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and further to authorise one or more
representatives of the Company to carry out any or all of the activities that the Board is
authorised to do and to execute such further deeds, documents and writings that may be
considered necessary and appropriate.”

By order of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutions Limited

Supam Maheshwari
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01730685

Date: July 20, 2024
Place: Pune

Registered Office:

Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338,
Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road
Pune — 411001, Maharashtra

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal@firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO. 4

TO APPROVE GRANT OF AN INTER-CORPORATE LOAN TO GLOBALBEES BRANDS PRIVATE
LIMITED

Members are requested to note that Globalbees Brands Private Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, has requested the Company to grant a loan, in one or more tranches, upto Rs.
350,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Fifty Crores only) for the purpose of its principal
business activities.

Pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company may advance any loan including
any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection
with any loan taken by any person in whom any of the director of the company is interested,
subject to the condition that: (a) a special resolution is passed by the company in general meeting
and (b) the loans are utilized by the borrowing company for its principal business activities.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on July 13, 2024 and July 20, 2024
has granted its approval, subject to the consent of members, for granting the loan, in one or more
tranches, of an amount not exceeding Rs. 350,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Fifty
Crores only) to Globalbees Brands Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, for a term of 3
(three) years, repayable on demand at the interest rate of not exceeding 13.5% per annum or at
such rate of interest at arms’ length basis, in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory regulations, for the purpose of its principal
business activities.

The Board of Directors recommend the members to pass a Special Resolution in this matter.

Except Mr. Supam Maheshwari and Mr. Neeraj Sagar, to the extent of their common
directorships in both the companies, none of the Directors of the Company or their relatives or
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the
item set out above.

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this notice as special resolution.

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal@firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com



ITEM NO. 5

TO APPROVE THE COST OF ESOPs FOR MR. SUPAM MAHESHWARI, WHICH IS A PART OF THE
REMUNERATION IN THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The members to note that the ESOPs were granted to Mr. Supam Maheshwari, Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in February 2022 pursuant to the necessary
approval received from the Board and Members in their respective meetings.

The members are informed that the cost of ESOPs forms part of the remuneration in the related
party transactions as per the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and for the
perusal of the members, it is further informed that the below cost of ESOPs form part of the
remuneration of Mr. Supam Maheshwari:

(i)  ESOP cost for the amount accounted/to be accounted for based on the vesting schedule
of the ESOP already granted and appearing in the RPT because of the requirement of Ind
AS.

(ii)  Taxable ESOP cost at the time of exercise of the vested ESOPs recognized as perquisite by
the Company at the time of exercise

Information required pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), in respect
of Directors, whose remuneration is under consideration.

Name of Director Mr. Supam Maheshwari

DIN 01730685

Date of Birth October 6, 1973

Age 50 years

Date of first appointment on the Board May 17, 2010

Qualifications A bachelor's degree in engineering

(mechanical) from Delhi College of
Engineering, University of Delhi and a post
graduate diploma in management from the
Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad

Experience and Expertise in Specific Functional| He is currently heading the Company as
Area Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer and is responsible for the overall
management of your Company. He was

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal@firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com
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previously associated with Brainvisa
Technologies Private Limited as a president.

Terms and conditions of appointment/re-| NA
appointment

Number of Board meetings attended during| 9
the year ended March 2024

Details of remuneration sought to be paid and [Existing approved limit: INR 42.12 Mn.
last drawn remuneration including a bonus of INR 8.1 Mn per Annum
and other benefits & Perquisites as per the
Company policy.

To include the below cost of ESOPs in the
already approved remuneration sought to be
paid:

(i) ESOP cost for the amount
accounted/to be accounted for based
on the vesting schedule of the ESOP
already granted and appearing in the
RPT because of the requirement of
Ind AS

(i)  Taxable ESOP cost at the time of
exercise of the vested ESOPs
recognized as perquisite by the
Company at the time of exercise

Cost accounted for |Cost to be accounted for
till FY 2024 in post FY 2024 in financial

financial statements statements (INR)
(INR)

3,23,49,12,384 73,14,84,173

Directorships/ Chairmanship / Membership of |[Busybees Logistics Solutions Private Limited —

Committees of other Boards Director
Chairman — Board IPO
Member — CSR
Member — CC
Swara Baby Products Private Limited —
Director
Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
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Firmroots Private Limited — Director
Globalbees Brands Private Limited — Director
Merhaki Foods And Nutrition Private Limited —
Director

Intellibees Solutions Private Limited — Director
Joybees Private Limited — Director

Firstcry Management DWC LLC, UAE —
Director

Firstcry Retail DWC LLC, UAE — Director
Quintessential Investment Advisors LLP —
Designated Partner

Shareholding of Director in the Company 2,88,93,347 Equity Shares (5.82%)

Relationship with other Directors/ Key| None
Managerial Personnel

In view of the above and in compliance with the provisions of Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
the approval of the members by way of special resolution is required on the aforesaid matter set
out at item no. 5 of this notice.

Except Mr. Supam Maheshwari, whose remuneration is under consideration, none of the
Directors of the Company or their relatives or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives are concerned or interested in the item set out above.

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of this notice as special resolution.
ITEM NO. 6

TO APPROVE THE COST OF ESOPs FOR MR. SANKET HATTIMATTUR, WHICH IS A PART OF THE

REMUNERATION IN THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The members to note that the ESOPs were granted to Mr. Sanket Hattimattur, Executive Director
& Chief of Staff of the Company, in February 2022 pursuant to the necessary approval received
from the Board and the Members in their respective meetings

The members are informed that the cost of ESOPs forms part of the remuneration in the related
party transactions as per the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and for the
perusal of the members, it is further informed that the below cost of ESOPs form part of the
remuneration of Mr. Sanket Hattimattur:

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com



(i)  ESOP cost for the amount accounted/to be accounted for based on the vesting schedule
of the ESOP already granted and appearing in the RPT because of the requirement of Ind
AS; and

(ii)  Taxable ESOP cost at the time of exercise of the vested ESOPs recognized as perquisite by
the Company at the time of exercise.

Information required pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), in respect
of Directors, whose remuneration is under consideration.

Name of Director Mr. Sanket Hattimattur

DIN 09593712

Date of Birth November 13, 1981

Age 42 years

Date of first appointment on the Board September 09, 2010

Qualifications A bachelor's degree in commerce (financial

accounting and auditing) from University of
Mumbai.

Experience and Expertise in Specific Functional | He is responsible for key initiatives in India
Area business, strategy, M&A and overseeing
international business expansion in our
Company. Prior to joining your Company, he
has worked with Brainvisa Technologies
Private Limited, Deutsche Bank Group,
Global Markets Centre Private Limited and
Tata AIG Life Insurance Company Limited.

Terms and conditions of appointment/re-| NA
appointment

Number of Board meetings attended during| 9
the year ended March 2024

Details of remuneration sought to be paid and [Existing approved limit: INR 19.88 Mn.
last drawn remuneration including a bonus of INR 3.5 Mn. per annum
and Perquisites as per the Company policy.

To include the below cost of ESOPs in the
already approved remuneration sought to
be paid:

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
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(i) ESOP cost for the amount
accounted/to be accounted for based
on the vesting schedule of the ESOP
already granted and appearing in the
RPT because of the requirement of
Ind AS

(i)  Taxable ESOP cost at the time of
exercise of the vested ESOPs
recognized as perquisite by the
Company at the time of exercise

Cost accounted for (Cost to be accounted for
till FY 2024 in post FY 2024 in financial
financial statements [statements (INR)

(INR)

30,90,45,365 6,98,81,891

Directorships/ Chairmanship / Membership of |Digital Age Retail Private Limited — Director
Committees of other Boards Shenzhen Starbees Services Limited — Director

Shareholding of Director in the Company 27,98,131 Equity Shares (0.56%)

Relationship with other Directors/ Key| None
Managerial Personnel

In view of the above and in compliance with the provisions of Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
the approval of the members by way of special resolution is required on the aforesaid matter set
out at item no. 6 of this notice.

Except Mr. Sanket Hattimattur, whose remuneration is under consideration, none of the
Directors of the Company or their relatives or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives are concerned or interested in the item set out above.

Brainbees Solutions Limited CIN: U51100PN2010PLC136340
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Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of this notice as special resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
Brainbees Solutions Limited

Supam Maheshwari
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01730685

Date: July 20, 2024
Place: Pune

Registered Office:

Rajashree Business Park, Survey No. 338,
Next to Sohrabh Hall, Tadiwala Road
Pune — 411001, Maharashtra
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Corporate/Registered Office:- Rajashree Business Park, Plot No. 114, Survey No. 338, Tadiwala Road, Nr. Sohrab
Hall, Pune — 411001 Contact: +91-8482989157 Email Id:legal @firstcry.com Website: www.firstcry.com
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